
VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM 
FOUNDED 1853 

 
  
 
 
NOTE: THIS MEETING WILL BE SIMULTANEOUSLY HELD VIA TELECONFERENCING. STAFF, COMMITTEE 
MEMBERS, AND THE PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MANNER.  TELECONFERENCING WILL BE 
AVAILABLE BY COMPUTER, PHONE, TABLET, OR DIAL-IN. CONNECTION INFORMATION BELOW: 
1. Call to Order: 
2. Quorum: 
3. Changes in Agenda: 
4. Visitors’ Comments: 
5. Approval of Previous Minutes: 
6. President’s Comments: 
7. Consent Agenda Items: 
8. Public Hearing:  

1. Public Hearing on ordinance 02-2024 and 03-2024, amendments to 14.02 and 17.40 , An ordinance amending Chapter 
17.40(1) and Chapter 14.02 (Building Code)  

2. Public Hearing on Hatch request to rezone parcels 121-01-12312744K1&K2 from Rural Residential to Commercial 
North 

9. Administration:  
1. Discussion and consideration regarding YMCA yoga and pilates classes on Anderson Dock request 
2. Discussion and consideration regarding Anderson Dock Capital Project RFP 
3. Discussion and consideration regarding AECOM proposal for North Path engineering 
4. Discussion and consideration regarding CIF submittal  
5. Discussion and consideration regarding Maintenance Garage capital planning discussions 
6. Discussion and consideration regarding  Hatch request to rezone parcels 121-01-12312744K1&K2 from Rural 

Residential to Commercial North 
7. Discussion and consideration regarding ordinances 02-2024 and 03-2024, amendments to 14.02 and 17.40  
8. Discussion and consideration regarding setting ordinance 04-2024, an ordinance providing emergency waiver of zoning 

ordinance powers to the Village Board, for public hearing. 
9. Discussion and consideration regarding setting public hearing for Barnes emergency waiver for temporary housing. 
10. Discussion and consideration regarding Green Tier/EBC request for community clean up day 
11. Discussion and consideration regarding Resolution 02-2024 – 2023 Budget Amendment  
12. Discussion and consideration regarding Intergovernmental Agreement with Door County (Tax Collection) 
13. Discussion and consideration regarding update to Fee Schedule (Electrical Service Fee Increase) 
12. Discussion and consideration committee appointments 
13. Discussion and consideration regarding renewal – Combination Class “B” and “Class C” Alcohol Beverage Retailers 

License 
1. Chef’s Hat Café LLC – dba Chef’s Hat – 3063 Church Street  
2. Larry George Krause – dba Old Post Office Restaurant – 10040 Water Street  
3. Summer Kitchen Inc. – dba Summer Kitchen Restaurant – 10425 Water Street  
5. Trixie’s LLC – dba The Fashionable – 9996 Pioneer Lane  
6. Burren Enterprises LLC – dba Pearl Wine Cottage – 3056 & 3058 Church Street 
7. Prince of Pierogi LLC – dba Prince of Pierogi Restaurant – 9922 Water Street #6  
8. Klaud’s Kitchen LLC – dba Klaud’s Kitchen – 10420 Water Street 
9. Sip JF LLC – dba Sip – 10326 Water Street  

14. Discussion and consideration regarding renewal – Class “B” Alcohol Beverage Retailers License 
1. A&M Enterprises of Door County Inc. – dba Somerset Inn & Suites – 10401 N. Water St.  
2. Eagle Harbor Inn Group LLC – dba Eagle Harbor Inn – 9914 Water Street 
3. Ephraim Motel Inc. – dba Ephraim Motel – 10407 Hwy 42 
4. Diane Taillon – dba Hillside Waterfront Hotel – 9980 Water Street 

15. Discussion and consideration regarding – Temporary Class “B” Alcohol Beverage Retailers License 
1. Ephraim Business Council (EBC) – Fyr Bal Festival – June 15, 2024 
2. Ephraim Fire & Rescue Association – Fyr Bal – June 15, 2024 
3. EBC – Evenings in Ephraim – Bondemarked (Farmers Market) – June17-August 26, 2024             

10. Marinas and Moorings 
a. Discussion and consideration pressure washing marina building 
b. Discussion regarding Anderson Dock breakwater 

11. Committee Minutes for review: 
12. Visitors’ Comments: 
13. New Business for Next Meeting:  
14. Adjournment: 

 
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://meet.goto.com/622822109 
 
You can also dial in using your phone. 
Access Code: 622-822-109 
United States: +1 (872) 240-3412 
 
 
**Deviation from the listed order may occur*** 

Please note, that upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  
For additional information please contact Andrea Collak, Clerk Village of Ephraim, PO Box 138, Ephraim, WI  54211 

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2024, 7:00 PM 
9996 Water Street- Village Hall 

 
 
Andrea Collak – Clerk 
 
 
Kim Roberts – Deputy Clerk 

Date : 5/10/2024 
X  Village Administrative Office 

X  Visitors Center 
X  Post Office 

X  Website : Ephraim.wi.gov 
X  Emailed:  WDOR 

X  Emailed: Peninsula Pulse 
 

https://meet.goto.com/622822109
tel:+18722403412,,622822109


 

1 
 

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM BOARD MEETING MINUTES   
CLOSED SESSION 
TUESDAY APRIL 9, 2024 –6:30 PM 
9996 WATER STREET – VILLAGE HALL 
 
Present: Carly Mulliken, Ken Nelson, Tim Nelson, and Michael McCutcheon – Chair. 
Absent: Matt Meacham. 
Staff: Brent Bristol – Village Administrator. 
   

1. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order by Chairman McCutcheon at 6:30 PM. 
2. Quorum: A quorum was present for this meeting.  
3. T. Nelson moved,  K. Nelson seconded to convene into closed session per §19.85(1)(g) Conferring 

with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning 
strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become 
involved. For the purpose of discussing legal opinions received. 
A roll call vote was taken: Mulliken aye,  K. Nelson aye, T. Nelson aye, and McCutcheon aye. 
Motion carried. 

4. Please take notice pursuant to §19.85(2) Wis. Stats, the Village Board may entertain a motion and 
reconvene in open session and may address the matters considered in closed session and all other 
matters on the agenda.  
T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to reconvene into open session.  
A roll call vote was taken: Mulliken aye, K. Nelson aye, T. Nelson aye, and McCutcheon aye. 
Motion carried. 
T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to proceed as discussed in Closed Session, all ayes. Motion 
carried. 

5. Adjournment: 
T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to adjourn at 6:56 PM, all ayes. Motion carried. 

  Recorded by,  
  Kim Roberts – Deputy Clerk 

 



 

1 
 

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM  
VILLAGE BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
TUESDAY, APRIL 9, 2024 – 7:00 PM 
9996 WATER STREET- EPHRAIM VILLAGE HALL 
 
Action Items: 
Mulliken moved, T. Nelson seconded to approve the minutes of March 12, 2024, with K. Nelson 
abstaining, all ayes. Motion carried. 
K. Nelson moved, Mulliken seconded to approve the consent agenda items as presented with T. Nelson 
abstaining, all ayes. Motion carried. 
K. Nelson moved, T. Nelson seconded to approve ordinance 01-2024, an ordinance amending Chapter 
17.29 (floodplain) as prescribed by WI DNR and FEMA, all ayes. Motion carried. 
K. Nelson moved, T. Nelson seconded to accept the proposal dated January 9, 2024, from JF 
Construction to upgrade the German Road Property for boat trailer parking at a cost not to exceed 
fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000), all ayes. Motion carried. 
K. Nelson moved, T. Nelson seconded to approve the 2024 paving projects work estimate (time and 
materials) to pave Anderson Lane, Settlement Road, and Cherry Street from the Door County Highway 
Department for approximately one hundred ninety-six thousand dollars ($196,000), all ayes. Motion 
carried. 
K. Nelson moved, T. Nelson seconded to approve the Upper Cherry Street drainage work estimate (time 
and materials) from the Door County Highway Department for approximately six thousand five hundred 
dollars ($6,500), all ayes. Motion carried.                                                                                                   
The consensus was that the funding source for the Upper Cherry Street drainage work would be bond proceeds 
because the work was to be completed within the road right of way.  
K. Nelson moved, T. Nelson seconded to approve the 2024 Fyr Bal road closure as presented to be the 
same as last year, all ayes. Motion carried. 
T. Nelson moved, Mulliken seconded to support the EBC request for nine thousand seven hundred 
dollars ($9,700) to finance the fireworks for Fyr Bal.   Roll call vote: Mulliken aye, T. Nelson nay, K. 
Nelson nay, McCutcheon nay. Motion failed 1-3. 
T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to approve resolution 03-2024 World Migratory Bird Day, all ayes. 
Motion carried. 
K. Nelson moved, Mulliken seconded to set a public hearing on the Hatch request to rezone parcels 
1210112312744K1 and 1210112312744K2 from Rural Residential to Commercial, all ayes. Motion carried. 

T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to set ordinances 02-2024 and 03-2024, amendments to §14.02 and 
§17.40 of the Ephraim Code of Ordinances for public hearing in May, all ayes. Motion carried. 

T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to approve the Combination Class “B” and “Class C” Alcohol 
Beverage Retailer’s License for Klaud’s Kitchen Inc., dba Klaud’s Kitchen – 10420 Water Street 
contingent on health and fire inspections, all ayes. Motion carried.  
T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to approve the renewal Class “B” and “Class C” Alcohol Beverage 
Retailer’s License for Sunset Harbor Grille, LLC, dba Sunset Harbor Grill – 10018 Water Street 
contingent on health and fire inspections, all ayes. Motion carried. 
T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to approve the Class “B” Alcohol Beverage Retailers License for 
Eagle Harbor Inn  Group LLC – dba Eagle Harbor Inn – 9914 Water Street expiring June 30, 2024, 
pending health and fire inspections, all ayes. Motion carried. 
 



 

2 
 

T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to adjourn at 9:11 PM, all ayes. Motion carried. 
Present: Carly Mulliken (online), Ken Nelson, Tim Nelson, and Michael McCutcheon – President. 
Absent: Matt Meacham. 
Staff: Brent Bristol -Village Administrator and Kim Roberts - Deputy Clerk.   
Guests online:  Martin Franke, Yvonne Torres, Ann Hutchins, BD Thorp, Cody Schreck, Jane Larson, “K”, 
“caller +14144163385”, “caller +19208199922”, and Lane Methner (EBC) joined at 8:45 PM. 
Guests in person: Missy Le Belle (EBC), Kelsey Stone (EBC), Lane Methner (EBC), Sarah Martin (EBC), 
Diane Taillon, Kurt Heggeland, Maggie Peterman, Elfi Johnson, Maureen Ossyra (League of Women Voters), 
Colin Welford, Dennis Jewell, Anna and Nicolae Nistor (Klaud’s Kitchen), and Matthew Gurnsey (Eagle 
Harbor Inn).     
1. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order by McCutcheon at 7:01 PM. 
2. Quorum: A quorum was present for the meeting. 
3. Changes to the agenda:  McCutcheon noted that the agenda items for the airport, Physical facilities & 

Utilities, and Ephraim Business Council would be moved ahead on the agenda. 
4. Visitors’ Comments: There were no visitors’ comments. 
5. Approval of previous minutes: 

Mulliken moved, T. Nelson seconded to approve the minutes of March 12, 2024, with K. Nelson 
abstaining, all ayes. Motion carried. 

6. President’s Comments:  
McCutcheon offered his praise and thanks to Chief MacDonald for the efforts to keep the Village office and 
Fire Department running off the generator during the recent winter storm.  He further complimented 
Wisconsin Public Service for its efforts to get Door County up and running again.  

7. Consent Agenda Items:  
K. Nelson moved, Mulliken seconded to approve the consent agenda items as presented with T. 
Nelson abstaining all ayes. Motion carried. 

8. Public Hearing: 
a. Public hearing on ordinance 01-2024, an ordinance amending Chapter 17.29 (Floodplain) as 

prescribed by WI DNR and FEMA: 
McCutcheon opened the public hearing for ordinance 01-2024, an ordinance amending Chapter 17.29 
(Floodplain) as prescribed by WI DNR and FEMA. 
McCutcheon asked for comments regarding ordinance 01-2024. There were no comments. 
Bristol reported that there had been no correspondence regarding ordinance 01-2024 and confirmed that 
there had been two (2) insertions into the Peninsula Pulse. 
McCutcheon closed the public hearing. 

9. Administration: 
a. Discussion and consideration regarding ordinance 01-2024, an ordinance amending Chapter 17.29 

(floodplain) as prescribed by WI DNR and FEMA: 
K. Nelson moved, T. Nelson seconded to approve ordinance 01-2024 an ordinance amending 
Chapter 17.29 (floodplain) as prescribed by WI DNR and FEMA, all ayes. Motion carried. 

10. Airport: 
a. Discussion regarding Airport Financial Statements: 

Martin Franke presented the annual airport report.  He reviewed the financials, including the balance 
sheet.  He explained that the P&L Statement reflected an operating loss due to depreciation; without 
depreciation, there would have been a sixteen thousand five hundred dollars ($16,500) profit for the 
year. He explained that expenses had been lower for the year. 



 

3 
 

Franke noted that the Young Eagle event would be on June 1, 2024, and detailed the success of the 
Friends Scholarship program. 
Franke provided an update on the construction of the five (5) hangars to be built on the land that was 
purchased in 2022. He explained that the DNR rejected the bids for technical reasons and that they 
restrict tree clearing from March 31-November 15 thereby delaying the project from moving forward. 
He noted that they have deposits for four (4) out of the five (5) hangars. 
McCutcheon thanked Franke and noted the airport and the Friends group have come a long way. 

11. Physical Facilities: 
a. Discussion and consideration regarding German Road property trailer parking upgrades: 

MacDonald discussed the German Road site and the desire to make the property more useful. There is a 
desire to alleviate the congestion at the Wastewater Plant. A solution to achieve that is to move the boat 
trailer parking out to the German Road site. There is a problem with trailers being parked by those who 
are not marina patrons. MacDonald reviewed two (2) quotes for the work and recommended approval of 
the quote from JF Construction for fourteen thousand five hundred eighty-five dollars ($14,585). He 
noted that there was money in the Physical Facilities and Utilities (PFU) committee budget.   
A discussion was held regarding the German Road property trailer parking upgrade. Mulliken asked 
how many trailers would be able to fit.  Bristol explained it was a replication of the current area at the 
Wastewater Plant currently being used for boat trailer parking. Clarification was provided to Elfie 
Johnson that the trailer parking would be for marina patrons; it would not be for boat storage.  
T. Nelson discussed that the Marinas and Moorings Committee had not requested this project; it did not 
ask for the boat trailer parking to be moved. It should be an open item of discussion moving forward to 
be sure Marinas and Moorings is not costing the Village money for its operations. We exist at the 
pleasure of the Village.   
K. Nelson moved, T. Nelson seconded to accept the proposal dated January 9, 2024, from JF 
Construction to upgrade the German Road Property for boat trailer parking at a cost not to 
exceed fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000), all ayes. Motion carried. 

b. Discussion and consideration regarding the 2024 paving of Anderson Lane, Settlement Road, and 
Cherry Street: 
MacDonald reviewed the process of road ratings conducted over the past year to work out a paving 
schedule.  His goal is to get the Village on a better schedule for road paving. While it is a hefty year for 
paving, it is a good year because oil prices are down and the County Highway Department will be in the 
area to pave CTH Q.   
K. Nelson moved, T. Nelson seconded to approve the 2024 paving projects work estimate (time 
and materials) to pave Anderson Lane, Settlement Road, and Cherry Street from the Door County 
Highway Department for approximately one hundred ninety-six thousand dollars ($196,000), all 
ayes. Motion carried. 

c. Discussion and consideration regarding upper Cherry Street drainage work: 
A discussion was held regarding the Upper Cherry Street drainage work. MacDonald reviewed the 
proposal submitted by the Door County Highway Department to complete drainage work to alleviate the 
washout issues with the Upper Cherry Street steps. He explained that a trench drain would be installed to 
catch the water coming down Cherry Street so it doesn’t get to the steps. This option provides a solution 
to collect and slow the water.  
K. Nelson moved, T. Nelson seconded to approve the Upper Cherry Street drainage work estimate 
(time and materials) from the Door County Highway Department for approximately six thousand 
five hundred dollars ($6,500), all ayes. Motion carried.                                                                                                   
The consensus was that the funding source for the Upper Cherry Street drainage work would be bond 
proceeds because the work was to be completed within the road right of way.  



 

4 
 

 
8. Administration (continued) 

g. Ephraim Business Council (EBC) Presentation:  
Lane Methner and Kelsey Stone presented the Ephraim Business Council (EBC) report. They reviewed 
the EBC purpose, Board of Directors, staff, and membership. They reviewed their winter objectives: A 
membership drive, Fyr Bal planning, brochure layout and distribution, monthly e-newsletter, social 
media, and business database. Methner and Stone reviewed the new event calendar on the EBC website 
and the community collection drives. Finally, EBC staff reviewed summer events including Evenings in 
Ephraim and Bondemarked. 

h. Discussion and consideration regarding EBC member survey topics: 
Stone discussed the EBC member survey topics. The list is derived from an EBC member survey. 
Mulliken added that they had tried to prioritize the list and that nothing had been dropped from the list 
even though they would like to see a smaller list. She reiterated that the list came from their members; 
EBC is not driving this. What they are doing is showing the Board what items are important to the EBC 
members and the business community. She noted that during the last Board meeting, there had been a 
discussion regarding which committees might handle each of the topics on the list.  They hoped that the 
revised list would promote discussion rather than just talking about committees. Stone added that the 
EBC wanted to make sure that the items on the list were getting traction and moving forward. Some of 
the items on the list are pretty easy, Stone stressed, and relatively low cost (under ten thousand dollars 
($10,000). She added that she hoped that the tasks would be assigned to the appropriate committees to 
keep things moving forward. 
McCutcheon asked if there were any comments from the Board.  
There were no comments from the Board. 
McCutcheon noted that crosswalks came up throughout the Streetscape project. WisDOT controls 
crosswalks. We’d like to have them in lots of places but they simply will not allow it. There must be an 
origin, destination, and density. 
Stone stated that they were not looking for new crosswalks. They would like the current crosswalks 
painted and signage. 
Bristol confirmed that the painting for the crosswalks is scheduled. 
McCutcheon explained that the crosswalk signs get hit; they are targets for cars. 
Stone felt that the crosswalk signs getting hit were better than the alternative if someone gets hit. 
Martin stated that she had asked for the agenda item again to get some traction going. She wanted to 
know when the Board would be discussing the next steps if they weren’t going to discuss it tonight. 
There are items on the list that could be completed before the season. 
McCutcheon stated that the assumption is correct, the items would not be reviewed tonight.    
K. Nelson inquired about the committee assignments discussed in last month's Board minutes. 
Bristol explained it was a discussion, part of the dialogue.  He offered as an in-between, having minutes 
such as last month's meeting, gives board members, who chair every committee in the Village besides 
the Wastewater Committee, the opportunity to pick up one of the topics, and put it before their 
committee if they desired.  As far as process, it would be for the Board to dictate that a specific item 
should be before a certain committee. If that is the direction of the committee, the Board would need to 
direct the committee to take up a specific item unless the committee chair is so inclined to pick it up 
themselves.  
McCutcheon suggested that the committee chairs on the Village Board go through the list, and see if any 
items pertain to their particular committee. Then the Village Board will discuss it from there as to 
whether we are going to do this. 



 

5 
 

 
i. Discussion and consideration of Fyr Bal Closure: 

Lane Methner (EBC) explained that the request was for the same road closure for Fyr Bal as in previous 
years. The closure will be from 7:30 AM to 10:30 PM. Two (2) reserve deputies have been requested to 
monitor the closures. There will be bus transportation into the closure area. Signage will be placed as in 
years past to indicate that businesses are open within the closure area. 
K. Nelson moved, T. Nelson seconded to approve the 2024 Fyr Bal road closure as presented to be 
the same as last year, all ayes. Motion carried. 
Further discussion included traffic at the Fire House Marina parking lot. Stone said they will be 
communicating with the deputies as well as attending the May Marinas and Moorings meeting to 
discuss. Bristol offered a reminder that because the closure is a state highway, it is not a Board decision. 
Bristol clarified that the Board is authorizing him to apply to WisDot to close the highway on behalf of 
the EBC. 

j. Discussion and consideration of EBC Fyr Bal fireworks donation request: 
Stone (EBC) reviewed the donation request for the Fyr Bal fireworks at a cost of nine thousand seven 
hundred dollars ($9,700).  She reviewed the reasons they were requesting to get ahead of any questions 
that may be asked by the Village Board. She started with an authentic, person-to-person reason for why 
we are all here. Everyone in the room is a stakeholder in the Village of Ephraim. All of us are here to 
represent Ephraim and ensure it stays what it is. People don’t know the difference between the EBC and 
the Village of Ephraim when people come to Fyr Bal. They don’t know that they are at EBC’s Fyr Bal, 
they are at Ephraim’s Fyr Bal. That is how we want it to be, Stone said, we want people to see one (1) 
unified group coming together. Fyr Bal is a true celebration of our community. It is one of the few Door 
County events left that are a celebration and reflection of the community it is hosted in. This will be the 
59th Fyr Bal celebration and a lot of time and effort has been spent to make sure that the event stays a 
celebration of our community. It is the Chieftan voting, the bonfire, the vendors, and events all of which 
put Ephraim on display. The event draws people to the community but then they want to come back due 
to the incredible and unique experience of Fyr Bal. We make sure the entire day is filled with things that 
people cannot get in other communities. The whole day culminates with the fireworks show.  
Stone added that the EBC was fully aware that the main concern will be that EBC funding increased this 
year. It did increase from 2023 to 2024. From 2021 to 2024, the past four (4) years of funding the EBC 
funding went up 108%. She noted that while that was a nice increase in funding, costs also have 
increased. While looking at the EBC increases in funding, one would also need to look at the Village's 
numbers as well. The EBC receives its portion of room tax and so does the Village. The Village receives 
its portion of room tax and in 2022 the Village began receiving Premier Resort Area Tax ”PRAT”. Both 
of those are tax amounts that we are only receiving because the businesses are generating those taxes. 
Room tax and PRAT are not like property tax in which residents pay as well. The businesses are the 
ones collecting room and PRAT taxes which in 2023, with both taxes combined, generated five hundred 
sixty-five thousand three hundred twenty-two dollars ($565,322). That is a lot of money. That is almost 
five (5) times larger than the EBC budget for this year. Stone said that they understand that their funding 
went up but so did the Village’s by an astronomical level. 
Methner handed out graphs depicting EBC and Village funding 
Stone reviewed the handout and noted if you look at the jump from 2020 to 2021, the Village’s funding 
went up a substantial amount, approximately one hundred and sixty thousand dollars ($160,000). When 
comparing, she said on page two (2) of the handout, from 2020 to 2023, the last four (4) years of the 
Village’s funding including room tax and PRAT tax, the Village saw an increase in funding of 568% 
while EBC saw a 108% increase. That is an exponential growth for the Village. That is quite a stark 
difference. That is money that is coming in because of these businesses and they are the reason people 
are coming to Ephraim. Ephraim has the lowest municipal population of all nineteen (19) Door County 
municipalities, if you look at room tax collections, the Village ranks 5th out of 19 municipalities. She 



 

6 
 

noted that it was pretty incredible that the village had the lowest population but collects the fifth (5th) 
highest amount of room tax. That is because of all our amazing lodging establishments that collect room 
tax. Stone stressed that the EBC understands that PRAT tax cannot be used for fireworks. However, it is 
an added number to the budget that is collected by businesses. 
McCutcheon reviewed the particular stance which commenced in 2022 and then was repeated in 2023. 
The Village Board said “We’ll do it one (1) more year.” He added that he didn’t think it should come as 
a surprise to EBC if the Village Board says no to the request for funding. 
Stone explained that EBC was not here expecting the money. They are here to ask. 
McCutcheon explained that the Village was heavily bonded to do the Streetscape project and room tax 
revenue was used to complete the Shoreline Project. Both these projects benefit everyone. Five (5) 
Capital Projects are currently being considered: Anderson Dock, Maintenance Building, Administration 
Building, the North End Path, and the Firehouse. Some of the Streetscape Bond will go to the North End 
Path project which will clearly benefit the businesses in North Ephraim. One of the ways to look at this 
is that the money from Room Tax helps keep the tax burden of the Ephraim Village down. So we can 
take that money and use it for things that benefit both the residents and businesses. EBC has a source of 
money, the logic is by using your money, our taxes won’t go up.  
Stone replied that the request for nine thousand seven hundred dollars ($9,700) is 1.7% of room tax and 
PRAT combined in 2023. This is money that was brought in by the businesses. We are not asking for the 
fifty percent (50%) that we had received before 2020, we are not even asking for the flat rate of thirty-
five thousand dollars ($35,000) that we received in 2021, we are asking for nine thousand seven hundred 
dollars ($9,700) for fireworks for this community event. 
K. Nelson noted that the Village borrowed five (5) million dollars for the Streetscape project and then 
we used room tax for the Shoreline Project, all of which benefits everyone. It benefits the residents and 
businesses. We also have five (5) other Capital Projects that the Village is starting to look at which 
combined could be three (3) to four (4) million dollars. Yes, we have money coming in but the way 
Ephaim works is that we save and pay for projects as we go. We borrowed the five (5) million but that is 
the first money we have borrowed in a long time. We want to do these projects and pay as we go. That is 
why we passed the PRAT tax. Our businesses collect and remit the taxes and our visitors pay the taxes. 
He added that he didn’t want it to seem like we have all this money and why don’t we spend some. It 
has been allocated; the Village went through a process and we involved the public two (2) years ago to 
help determine what were the top infrastructure projects. The public spoke and that is what we are trying 
to do, that is our plan for the money. It is a nice amount of money to be sitting there but there is upwards 
of three (3)  million dollars to spend to get our Village facilities up to speed. 
Stone stated that Cody Shreck was not on the call at the moment.  He is the Executive Director of the 
Ephraim Historical Foundation “EHF” and did submit a statement that he asked to be read to all of you 
today. Stone said this is from Cody Shreck from the Ephraim Historical Foundation and began to read 
his statement “While it is true the EBC funding has increased this year, it still not nearly kept pace with 
the exponential increase in the Village’s funding. Moreover, that exponential increase seen in the 
Village's funding is a direct result of the healthy business culture the EBC has helped facilitate. In my 
mind, there should be no question that the Village should show support for the local businesses and the 
EBC by using a very small portion of their funds for the Fyr Bal fireworks. A decision to not provide for 
this relatively minor support would appear as a conscious shunning of our local businesses and the 
positive financial impact that they have on the Village’s bottom line. Sincerely, Cody Shreck” 
Shreck was available online at 8:11 PM and stated that he stood by the statement he wrote and intended 
for it to be read. He added that he did understand the pending projects as described by McCutchen and 
K. Nelson. He understood that and it makes sense. The Village used to provide some support for Fyr Bal 
in the past, it was a sign of good grace to support a Village event. He said he was curious why with an 
increase of 500% in funding, at this point why was the Village saying no.  Why is that offer of good 
grace gone, he asked. 



 

7 
 

McCutcheon asked Schreck if his statement had gone before the EHF board and does the statement 
reflect the feelings of the EHF board. 
Schreck clarified that this was him as an individual. 
T. Nelson stated that one reason the Board has tried to get away from funding is because it started with 
the increase in room tax.  When the increase in room tax was proposed we were told there would be 
enough money and the municipalities would no longer need to fund the business associations.  It was a 
selling point of the room tax increase. That was one reason why I was willing to go along with the 
increase. I had always favored the original 50/50 split between the Village and EBC; that was fair. When 
the increase was proposed one of the selling points was that we the Village would no longer have that 
obligation. That was going to be taken care of with the boatloads of money that were going to be coming 
in via room tax. Yes, the Village is getting a lot more money but if you have been listening to the 
Village meetings every month and it has been gone over a couple of times tonight we have exponentially 
increased our projected expenditures for municipal Village improvements.  We aren’t just sitting on a 
bunch of money and not doling it out; it is already spent.  This nine thousand seven hundred dollars 
($9,700) for the Fyr Bal fireworks belongs with EBC in my opinion. This is what was promoted. 
Schreck stated that he appreciated the context. He reiterated that he stood by his written statement. It is a 
written statement that reflects himself as an individual as a board member of the EBC and not as an 
official statement of the EHF. He thanked the Board for their time. 
Stone added that she was fully aware of the bill of goods that were sold to the Village. It's frustrating, I 
wasn’t around back then but have heard many retellings of that story. I am aware of the selling points 
that were offered to you. The person who was selling them to you knew what you wanted to hear.  The 
municipality that, that person is the Town Chair of is still funding their Community Business 
Association “CBA”. He knew what Ephraim wanted to hear and that is what he said. 
Yvonne Torres of Destination Door County “DDC” commented about the room tax increase and the 
belief that the increase in funds was going to completely fund all of the CBAs. The different CBAs vary 
in size and scope, as well-intentioned as that individual who made those assertions back in 2020 when 
discussions were being held about the room tax increase was and doing the simple math he was doing at 
the time to be able to make that assertion, what was not taken into account was how costs would 
increase. We are talking about growing staff and the general costs that even you as overseers of the 
municipal side of those room tax collections have seen. Just because that was said and it was unfortunate 
it was taken that way, we are doing our best to continue to fund and support the EBC as well as we can. 
They did see an increase in the Strategic Community Partnership “SCP” funds. Every year when they 
submit a budget to us they prioritize and allocate funds in different ways.  The budget that was presented 
to DDC, when it comes to fireworks and what they are asking the Village to contribute, is significantly 
lower, 50% lower, than what is contributed by other communities who have fireworks. It is a small 
amount of money, even though it is making a bigger impact.  
Torres explained that Fyr Bal is one of the first events of the Door County season, many visitors 
consider it the kick-off event of the season. Fyr Bal is still held in a very traditional fashion. There is a 
lot of tradition tied into Fyr Bal, how it is done, and all of the events that are tied to it.  It is done in a 
very respectful manner. Ephraim does a really good job sharing the charm and the quality of those 
events and staying very true to Ephraim.  At DDC we know even our visitors really appreciate that.  I 
know you have a responsibility to ensure that you are not spending an uncomfortable amount of money 
funding the EBC when DDC is handling its funding primarily. The SCP funding serves to be a 
supplement to the work that EBC is doing in supporting their members, supporting their business 
community, and in turn supporting their municipality with increased room tax. She echoed Stone’s 
sentiment that it says a lot that Ephraim is one of the smallest communities in Door County yet generates 
as much room tax as Ephraim does. If there is no other support coming from the municipality, as far as 
funding outside this request for nine thousand seven hundred dollars ($9,700) for the fireworks, we at 
DDC would urge the Village to consider. It is not the totality of their funding; it is a nominal amount. It 



 

8 
 

will make a really big impact not only for the Village of Ephraim but for Door County tourism as a 
whole. 
T. Nelson noted that Ephraim provides EBC with the Visitor Information Center “VIC” and office space 
for five hundred five dollars ($505) per year.  If we were going to rent out the VIC building to someone 
else we would be, as you say, exponentially higher with those charges. He asked what the Village 
charged EBC for the use of the facilities and maintenance personnel for Fyr Bal. 
Bristol replied nothing. 
T. Nelson stressed that Ephraim supports EBC and that Ephraim participates in Fyr Bal. Make no 
mistake about that. If DDC thinks that Fyr Bal is such a great operation why doesn’t it provide the 
money itself, he asked. EBC can afford this, EBC is receiving money from room tax to cover these 
expenses. He stressed that there is no good reason. In my mind, I have not heard an argument that 
changed my mind. This is an EBC expense.  The fireworks are beautiful and a great way to end Fyr Bal. 
They are part of Fyr Bal, and EBC does a great job with it. This is part of the EBC’s business.  
T. Nelson referenced the discussion from Martin Franke and the Airport Financial Report. The Ephraim 
Gibraltar airport had long been supported by the municipality until it was proposed that the airport 
become self-sufficient. No other airport at the time was self-sufficient; they relied on funds from local 
municipalities to operate. Ephraim made that change and it was the right thing. When you have an entity 
that can be self-sustaining, it should. Talking about how much money we have and why aren’t we 
spending some of it on Fyr Bal; we are spending it on Fyr Bal, we just aren’t charging for it. 
Torres stated that when the SCP fund program was created the DDC had toyed with different ideas of 
how to fund the program.  The program was started back in 2009 and was re-vamped in 2012. 
Discussions were had about individual CBAs coming with projects similar to how they would come to 
an individual municipality to request money for a project. Because the CBAs are run on their own, they 
have their own Board of Directors, and they worked at the time very closely with their municipalities. 
We decided that they were the experts on how they were going to allocate those SCP funds. We allowed 
them to do that and still do. They do send a budget proposal in the later part of the year and we ensure 
compliance with State statutes and they take it from there. All of the municipalities in some capacity, 
give some level of support to their CBAs whether it is a percentage of the 30% municipal distribution of 
room tax or a set amount every year. However, all the municipalities provide some level of contribution 
to their CBA.  She added that they had hoped to put together a visual for distribution for municipalities 
that have this question. I’m not suggesting that you change your way of thinking in that regard but 
because outside the space they use for the VIC and office space that allows them to do their job, there is 
no additional funding coming from the municipality. I just wanted to make that clear, she said, and why 
DDC doesn’t fund individual things. To make it fair and equitable we provide them 19% of what we 
receive of room tax collections based on the contributions that each municipality makes towards the 
room tax pot. So if your municipality contributes 11% of the totality of room tax collections in a year,  
EBC would receive 11% of our 19% to be able to fund the entirety of their operational expenses outside 
of rents and things that are paid by the municipality. 
McCutcheon asked if EBC cannot find a source of funding directly from DDC could they not submit a 
grant to the Community Investment Fund “CIF”. 
Torres that CIF grant was open to tourism infrastructure-related projects. It would be something they 
could consider but there are application windows. 
Stone stated that she had asked during an initial CIF meeting and was told that it could be applied for but 
they won’t get funding for fireworks. It is not in the realm of what they are looking for. 
McCutcheon stated that his understanding was that the CIF grant was to benefit both the guests and the 
residents of Door County. This is a perfect example of that; it hits both. I’m not talking for this year, he 
clarified, that is what the money is there for and they have a lot of it to hand out.  It would be awfully 
premature and short-sighted to be told that you don’t have a chance. 



 

9 
 

A brief discussion was held regarding the CIF application deadlines. It was determined that a deadline 
had just passed on March  25. The next deadline is June 24, after Fyr Bal. 
K. Nelson explained that he sits on the DCTZC board and the CIF grant fund is now north of 2 million 
dollars. The CIF fund balance exists because of the 8% room tax increase. He added that in his opinion 
the DCTZC had an incredible amount of overflow money. He suggested that all the CBAs work together 
to approach DDC for more funding; they can't spend all of their money. They gave a million dollars to 
the park last year. 
Torres added that there can certainly be conversations going forward about the CIF as we start to think 
about 2025, 2026, and beyond. With the grants that have been awarded to date, the fund sits at 1.5 
million. The parks fund had nothing to do with the CIF. Part of the agreement with the DCTZC is 
anything over and above what DDC projects in their budget for the year, is held in reserve. DDC still 
has to by state law receive 70%  of the room tax collection. The excess doesn’t just get to sit at the bank 
at DDC. We have the opportunity to go to the Door County Tourism Zone Commission “DCTZC” to 
present ideas of where we think these excess funds should go.  Excess funds are when we had a great 
year; a stellar year in tourism. What we anticipated and what we did bring in for room tax collections 
turned into something greater.  That is great news for everyone. That is where the park fund money 
came from. It was part of a collaborative effort to direct excess funds into alternative programming by 
the DDC and DCTZC. While it benefits visitors it is not necessarily the traditional visitor-focused, 
marketing, heads-in-beds kind of approach that we would take on with our marketing efforts. 
What it is, K. Nelson said, is that you are bringing in more revenue than you need at Destination Door 
County; so you have allocated those funds. I understand the process. The point is that there is a heck of a 
lot of money out there that is coming in with the 8%. I think we should partner together to get more 
money for CBAs from that money. A million dollars went to parks last year. 
Stone discussed the quarterly meetings that are held between Village representatives and EBC. She felt 
that this conversation has been very valuable and wondered if Board members could be swapped out for 
the upcoming meeting to continue building relationships. She suggested that Ken Nelson attend an 
upcoming meeting or set up a separate meeting to have the conversation.  We need to talk next steps to 
get some additional funding.  
Martin reminded the Board that had the EBC not received support from the Village for the last two (2) 
years for fireworks, EBC would have lost money on the Fyr Bal event, instead, we broke even. It is 
definitely not a money-making event. Expenses have increased significantly over the years but they still 
try and put on a good event. They appreciate the collaboration and all of the support they get from the 
Village and try to show their appreciation regularly. The Maintenance Department is amazing at Fyr 
Bal; that does not go unrecognized and we do understand that there is value there. The EBC funding was 
cut significantly a few years ago therefore they have been operating at a budget deficit and climbing 
back up. While the funding has increased for this year, the way it is allocated it has not come in yet. 
There was a time pre-room tax that the Village paid for the fireworks and they supported us in the same 
way at the Visitor Center.  That was when we didn’t have the funding nor did the Village have the 
funding. As a resident, I feel like it is something the Village can afford to do, and I am comfortable with 
my tax dollars going toward the fireworks. I would find it disappointing as a resident that you wouldn’t 
choose to support that.  
Stone said she did not want to sound at all unappreciative for the support that they receive. Tonight it is 
obviously a little more contentious. Up until today, we have spent a lot of time thanking staff directly 
and publically at meetings. We are so appreciative and feel that our relationship with Village staff has 
improved.  We are fully functioning together as a collective. That is the goal of all this, Ephraim running 
on four (4) wheels together. She apologized if it didn’t come off that way today but we are unbelievably 
appreciative of the work we have gotten from Village staff.  
Kurt Heggeland asked EBC if they didn’t receive the money from the Village that there would not be 
fireworks. 



 

10 
 

Stone replied that their next plan is to proceed with what other CBAs do which is to send a letter to 
residents requesting donations. Other communities do this along with support from their municipalities 
and they raise funds to support fireworks. That is our next step. 
Martin stated she couldn’t see EBC putting on the festival without fireworks. Probably what would have 
to happen is that they would have to make some other adjustments in their budget for the remainder of 
the year.  When we start scaling back on other things which typically would be marketing and stuff 
which could make people less aware which would in theory lead to less room tax and could lead to 
decreased market share which would impact both entities. 
Heggeland stated that he was sure they would figure it out and we’ll have fireworks. It would be really 
weird not to.  As a part-time resident and sort of a business owner, if there weren’t people would be 
really confused because everyone knows how much more money is coming in with the extra tax. It 
would be strange if Ephraim suddenly couldn’t afford to have fireworks, whoever Ephraim is in their 
mind, it would be crazy. 
McCutcheon called the question. 
T. Nelson moved, Mulliken seconded to support the EBC request for nine thousand seven hundred 
dollars ($9,700) to finance the fireworks for Fyr Bal.  
Mulliken noted that had the Village not supported the fireworks in 2023, EBC would have lost money 
on Fyr Bal. It is about marketing for the Village, it is not a one-to-one thing that you can see. It is hard to 
quantify the support.  
Roll call vote: Mulliken aye, T. Nelson nay, K. Nelson nay, McCutcheon nay. Motion failed 1-3. 

b. Discussion and consideration regarding resolution 03-2024, World Migratory Bird Day 
Resolution:  
T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to approve resolution 03-2024 World Migratory Bird Day, 
all ayes. Motion carried. 

c. Discussion and consideration regarding the Anderson Dock Capital Project: 
A discussion was held regarding the Anderson Dock Capital Project.  Discussion included the marker in 
relation to the dock elevation.  Bristol reviewed the two (2) next steps: Scope and details of a Request 
for Proposal “RFP”. Then the Board would approve the RFP. With an established scope for firms to 
work with then proposals can be compared apples to apples. Bristol suggested a physical walking 
meeting. K. Nelson agreed and noted that the goal was to bring a draft RFP to the next meeting for 
approval. T. Nelson agreed as well. McCutcheon explained that the Board would conduct a walk-
through of Anderson Dock to define the scope and then review a draft RFP at the next meeting. 

d. Discussion and consideration regarding setting a public hearing on Hatch request to rezone 
parcels 1210112312744K1 and 1210112312744K2 from Rural Residential to Commercial: 
Bristol reviewed that this request to rezone for the Hatch parcels would be a two (2) step process.  First, 
the public hearing would be set. Second, the public hearing would be held in order to listen to comments 
and concerns.  This is the second time that the Hatch’s have gone before the Plan Cmmmitee to rezone. 
The first time they didn’t continue with the process even though the Plan Committee had recommended 
approval to the Board. They have restarted the process again. 
K. Nelson moved, Mulliken seconded to set a public hearing in May on the Hatch request to 
rezone parcels 1210112312744K1 and 1210112312744K2 from Rural Residential to Commercial, 
all ayes. Motion carried. 

e. Discussion and consideration for setting ordinances 02-2024 and 03-2024, amendments to §14.02 
and §17.40 for public hearing in May: 
Bristol provided an overview of the amendments to §14.02 and §17.40 to be set for public hearing in 
May as ordinances 02-2024 and 03-2024 as part of the ordinance review from the Plan Committee. 



 

11 
 

T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to set ordinances 02-2024 and 03-2024, amendments to 
§14.02 and §17.40 of the Ephraim Code of Ordinances for public hearing in May, all ayes. Motion 
carried. 

f. Discussion and consideration regarding Combination Class “B” and “Class C” Alcohol Beverage 
Retailer’s License: 
i. Klaud’s Kitchen Inc, dba Klaud’s Kitchen – 10420 Water Street: 

T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to approve the Combination Class “B” and “Class C” 
Alcohol Beverage Retailer’s License for Klaud’s Kitchen Inc., dba Klaud’s Kitchen – 10420 
Water Street contingent on health and fire inspections, all ayes. Motion carried.  

g. Discussion and consideration regarding renewal combination Class ”B” and “Class C” Alcohol 
Beverage Retailers License: 
ii. Sunset Harbor Grille LLC, dba Sunset Harbor Grill – 10018 Water Street: 

T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to approve the renewal Class “B” and “Class C” 
Alcohol Beverage Retailer’s License for Sunset Harbor Grille, LLC, dba Sunset Harbor Grill 
– 10018 Water Street contingent on health and fire inspections, all ayes. Motion carried. 

h. Discussion and consideration regarding – Class “B” Alcohol Beverage Retailers License: 
iii. Eagle Harbor Inn Group LLC – dba Eagle Harbor Inn – 9914 Water Street: 

T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to approve the Class “B” Alcohol Beverage Retailers 
License for Eagle Harbor Inn  Group LLC – dba Eagle Harbor Inn – 9914 Water Street 
expiring June 30, 2024, pending health and fire inspections, all ayes. Motion carried. 

12. Committee minutes for review: There were no comments on the Committee minutes. 
13. Visitors’ comments: There were no comments. 
14. New business for the next meeting:  

a. Scope and Request for Proposal for Anderson Dock. 
15. Adjournment: 

T. Nelson moved, K. Nelson seconded to adjourn at 9:11 PM, all ayes. Motion carried. 
 

Recorded by,  
Kim Roberts – Deputy Clerk 



 

1 
 

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM BOARD MEETING MINUTES   
TUESDAY, MAY 7TH, 2024 – 12:30 PM 
9996 WATER STREET 
 
Action Items: 

Meacham moved, T. Nelson seconded to implement option number three (3) as presented by Attorney Kalny to 
amend the Ephraim Zoning Code to permit temporary variances in any zone in case of emergency or unforeseen 
difficulty under the purveyance of the Village Board, all ayes. Motion carried. 

T. Nelson moved to adjourn at 1:29 PM, Meacham seconded, all ayes. Motion carried.  

Present: Carly Mulliken, Matt Meacham, Ken Nelson, Tim Nelson, and Michael McCutcheon-Chair 

Absent: None. 

Staff: Brent Bristol - Village Administrator, Kim Roberts - Deputy Clerk, and Justin MacDonald - Maintenance Manager. 

Guests: Scott Barnes, Julie Barnes, Fred Bridenhagen, Steve Chomeau, Kelsey Stone, and Monique McClean. 

Guests online: Andrew Bartelt, “Ephraim Planning Board”, and Attorney Jim Kalny. 

Call to Order: The meeting was called to order by Chair McCutcheon at 12:30 PM.  

1. Quorum: A quorum was present for this meeting.  

2. Changes in Agenda: There were none. 

3. Administration: 
a. Discussion and consideration regarding Barnes emergency/temporary housing issues resulting from 

fire: 
The meeting commenced with Scott Barnes making a statement and then Julie Barnes making her 
statement. Scott Barnes provided information and pictures of the proposed housing trailers to members of 
the Village Board. 

Scott Barnes: “In the early morning hours of April 25th we suffered a devasting fire at our 2854 Shannon 
Square property.  Seven (7) Fire Departments responded and worked professionally and with compassion 
to put the fire out.  At the time of this writing, we do not know the cause, nor do we have confirmation of 
total loss. What we do know is we lost housing for two (2) full time residents and seven (7) contracted J1 
employees. The first of seven (7) arrived last Friday. Our immediate loss of housing puts both of our 
businesses, Ephraim Motel and Door County Rock and Gem at great risk to operate. Julie and I have 
been doing everything in our power since the fire, to formulate a plan to secure and provide needed 
housing for at least nine (9) people for the 2024 season (May-October). We are proposing the solution of 
bringing onto our property, mobile housing units. We are working with our company (Secura) to find 
appropriate units. Our biggest problem to address is the lack of time. We have to have housing secured 
no later than June 10, 2024- ready to live in.  Julie and I are here today to ask for your participation and 
partnership. To help us and our businesses in a time of great need. We come to you with a hardship 
request. The recent event was not a choice. Julie and I have level land next to the burned property (known 
here as Yellow House). It is zoned North Ephraim Commercial.  We would like to ask the blessing of the 
Village to bring in temporary mobile housing to provide the needed shelter for our people.  This is only 
temporary and seasonal. Temporary until such a time as Yellow House is rebuilt and we have an 
occupancy permit. Services to the temporary housing will come from services currently at Yellow House. 
Much like an umbilical cord, when service is no longer needed, they will be cut off. The sewer will 
connect directly to the sewer currently on the property. Our plan to provide necessary housing under this 
hardship condition does not have any spare time in the equation. Whatever the solution, we have to house 
people, contracted to be housed by us, no later than June 10th.  Our solution will be to secure, obtain, and 
install temporary, seasonal mobile housing with eight (8) beds. This will be for the 2024 season and 
possibly 2025. This will be located on our vacant land, zoned commercial, on our lot next to 2854 
Shannon Square. This area is not visible to the general public and will be removed upon the rebuild of the 
Yellow House.” 

Julie Barnes: “Scott and I would like to thank you all for taking the time at this emergency Board 



 

2 
 

meeting. We come before you to ask for your understanding and assistance in helping us create a solution 
to a difficult situation that we find ourselves facing. While standing in the early morning hours watching 
so much of what we have worked for go up in flames many thoughts went through my head.  At the 
forefront of those thoughts was how are we going to fulfill the promise that we have made to the girls that 
are traveling halfway around the world to join us for the season at the motel. These girls become so much 
more than employees. This year Usti from Lithuania, is coming back for a third summer. She will be 
joined this summer by girls from both Thailand and Romania. Our need is to make sure these girls have a 
safe place to live and to call home for the summer is not only contractual but personal.  We take this 
seriously and have proven this by creating a place that we have lovingly called Yellow House for many 
years. We have thought through and have had many options suggested to us but have come to realize that 
the best option is to create a temporary home-like shelter as near to us as possible. That place being on 
the land just next to Yellow House and the structures being RV like units. Working together with both our 
insurance company and their rehoming team we have located units that are available to us now and will 
be available for our use through the end of our season at the end of October. We have spoken with all of 
the contractors that will be needed to ready the site and get them situated and they are ready to help. We 
ask now for your partnership and help to complete this arduous task. We realize that there is currently no 
precedence or language in the Village ordinances that easily allows for the granting of permission. What 
we are hoping is for an understanding of our unique situation and that an emergency exception be made 
on our behalf. As a resident of Ephraim for the past twenty-four (24) years, I have come to love and 
appreciate its charm and beauty. I would never do or ask for anything to be done to change that. This is 
our home in the place we do business. We plan to continue the tradition of Yellow House as we rebuild. It 
may take on a new shape or color but those details to be worked out are for another time. Thank you.”  

A discussion was held regarding the Barnes housing issues as a result of the recent fire at 2854 Shannon 
Lane. McCutcheon asked the Barnes if they had considered any other housing alternatives for their staff. 
Julie Barnes explained that yes, they had considered alternatives but they kept running into roadblocks. 
They have space in the motel until mid-June to house employees after which they are at 100% occupancy. 
They have been unable to find housing that will provide housing for the entire season. The rehoming 
company also has been working on options and they, as well, cannot find anything in this area for the 
season. There are options in Green Bay, but logistically that is not a feasible solution. 

Bristol explained that the pictures of the housing are representative of a camper. There is no mechanism 
in the current zoning code to allow it. If you call it temporary housing or housing, our minimum standard 
is one thousand (1,000) square feet, for new construction.  If you look at it as a camper, it is prohibited. If 
you look at it as a mobile home, mobile homes are specifically prohibited in the code. Relative to 
exceptions, waivers, and variances from a process standpoint no mechanism clearly exists in the current 
code. 

Attorney Kalny reviewed the current situation and possible options for the future.  Currently, there are no 
general special exception provisions. The Village has always been a very strict community when it comes 
to zoning codes, building codes, and permit exceptions. The code in its current condition would very 
directly prohibit what is being proposed. We are not just talking about an exception; we are talking about 
an exception that is directly contrary to area issues and the actual prohibitions of the code. It does create a 
problem. We don’t have a procedure to grant a temporary special exception and no guidance on how we 
are supposed to do it. You always have to be careful about special interests, legislation, and often times 
can create a slippery slope, making it difficult to say no in the future. While this situation is related to a 
hardship, I need to be realistic in advising the Village about the status of the current zoning code and the 
legal issues that surround zoning provisions and building code provisions particularly as they are related 
to safety and minimum health standards.  

Attorney Kalny outlined three (3) options all of which required changing some portion of the Village 
code. The first option would be “Temporary Construction on-site housing” which would apply to all 
structures in all zones. This option would allow for temporary housing on construction sites and it would 
have to be tied to a building/ permit. It would be allowed for the length of the building permit as long as 
construction is ongoing. It would allow for certain sanitary standards, insurance, and hold harmless 
agreements, and could require a review to set additional standards. As it would apply in all districts, it 
could be argued that it would be a police regulation. A hearing would not be required to enact it. The 
pros: It is not a zoning ordinance, no hearing to enact would be required, and it would be easy to 



 

3 
 

administer at the staff level. The cons: It is one size fits all and might apply somewhere we don’t want it 
to. 

The second option is to “allow for temporary housing variance in unexpected consequences (temporary 
housing special exception)”. Kalny explained what you would actually be doing is creating a special 
exception. There have been some changes in the State Statute regarding the hearing process. It would 
apply to temporary housing needed due to an act of God, an act beyond the control of the property owner, 
or displaced persons. This would grant temporary permission during construction to have temporary 
structures. As long as there is a building permit (getting ready to correct the issue) we can provide for 
time limits, use maximum state dwelling unit requirements, require the posting of insurance, hold 
harmless agreements, and it would apply to all districts or simply residential districts. A hearing would be 
held before the Plan Committee or the Board depending on how you want to do it to set conditions. One 
of the conditions would be in all these situations that people would have to comply with all state and 
federal regulations. There are some pros to adding this to your code: It is flexible and limited to housing 
issues. The cons are that it would require a hearing process both to enact the ordinance and to provide for 
the special exception. This may be a timing problem with the current situation. 

The third option, Kalny explained, is to create a temporary variance provision. It would apply in any zone 
in the event of an emergency due to unforeseen events and unnecessary hardship types of situations not 
caused by the applicant. It could be applied for as long as there is no harm to public interests. It is 
essentially a mini variance. It could go before the Plan Committee or the Village Board so long as there is 
a hearing. There would be a need to impose time limits and conditions that would serve the public 
interest. There would be minimum conditions, which you would always have, such as proof of insurance, 
a hold harmless agreement, and statutory compliance because you are varying from your code. The pros: 
This is the most flexible and its use has been observed in other communities. When there is a general 
emergency, a temporary variance provision makes it very clear that it does not run with the property but 
you allow yourself to vary the code in these circumstances. The cons: This is clearly a zoning ordinance; 
you will be amending your zoning code so it requires a hearing to enact and to process. He cautioned that 
you will have to be careful if you are going to single things like this out, particularly if you don’t have a 
procedure on the books to do it. 

A discussion was held regarding the options presented by Attorney Kalny. K. Nelson inquired if a letter 
of understanding would be sufficient between the parties.  Kalny did not recommend this option because 
it would be altering the zoning code without following the process. Mulliken asked how Attorney Kalny 
had seen the use of option three (3). Kalny stated that it is an actual provision of the zoning code, that 
allows for a variance for a temporary use addressing an emergency situation. Then the code lists what 
would constitute an emergency. It can be granted by the governing body under a set procedure that is 
outlined. It sets out that we recognize that there may be emergencies where we need to grant special 
exceptions/special use exceptions. These variances would not run with the land as a normal variance 
would. It is a temporary right to violate the zoning code with the understanding that it will be removed 
once the emergency has been addressed. 

Further discussion included the timelines for hearing regarding option three (3). Attorney Kalny reviewed 
with the Board how Class 2 notices work. Bristol encouraged the Board to decide if the decision would 
live with the Plan Committee or the Village Board. He felt that option three (3) would be a nice provision 
to have in the code.  

Additional discussion included narrowing down how long the Barnes’ would need to have the temporary 
housing. The Board felt that there needed to be very specific start and end dates.  It was concluded with 
input from the Barnes that they would need housing from 6/1-10/31 with three (3) trailers. The Barnes 
agreed that employees may be in the hotel for housing until mid-June until they reach 100% occupancy. 

McCutcheon noted that it seemed that option three (3) worked best now and for the future. He asked if the 
ordinance could be written and set for a public hearing in five (5) weeks to meet the deadline for housing 
for the Barnes’. 

Discussion commenced to outline the process of writing the amendment to the ordinance, setting it for 
two (2) public hearings, and public notice.  Bristol asked Kalny if the hearings needed to be two (2) 
standalone meetings. Bristol added that essentially you would be passing the ordinance with the first 



 

4 
 

public hearing and hearing the first applicant with the second hearing in the same meeting. Kalny 
confirmed it was possible to proceed that way. Bristol added that it would have to be a special meeting at 
the end of the month or early June. Kalny stressed that without a special meeting, the Village would not 
be able to do it in time. Kalny reiterated as long as the meeting is properly noticed, public hearings can be 
held at regular Board meetings or Special Board meetings. 

Bristol reviewed that the Board will need to set a public hearing at the Board meeting on May 14th. He 
will work with Attorney Kalny on what the ordinance language will look like for option three (3). All the 
special circumstances/conditions such as the three (3) trailers are somehow codified in giving the Board 
the ability to impose conditions on that special exception. We will need a list or a memorandum of 
understanding of the finer points. 

Kalny clarified that it effectively will end up as a conditional use which requires an agreement between 
the Village and the property owner.  All the conditions will be spelled out. As a condition, we can require 
that there be an agreement. 

Bristol inquired about general catchalls to include applicable state, federal, and J1 regulations. There are a 
lot of governing bodies that are part of all the working pieces of this situation that have oversight beyond 
the Village permitting the use. He added working with the building inspector, the Wastewater OIC for 
sewer, and WI DNR for the well. Everything needs to be coordinated; it is beyond the Village Board that 
needs to be involved. 

Kalny explained that all we are doing is saying that we are going to permit them to have temporary 
housing provided that it complies with all other relevant statutes, regulations, and codes. That is not our 
business. The applicant has to make darn sure that everything they are doing is compliant with all 
applicable regulations. 

Barnes confirmed that they are working on that and they have received strong assurances that this all 
works.  He noted that he cannot kick the can down the road in readying the site to bring the trailers in; 
getting the services in place. He explained that he has to get that ball rolling and get contractors working 
when he can. They’ve assured him they will make time for him. This is work that has to be done before 
the housing can come on-site. He asked what the process would be to move forward with this work. 

Bristol noted that WPS will not energize a temporary service without an inspection. He advised Barnes to 
begin working with the building inspector. Same with sewer, he needs to work with Rasmusson at the 
Wastewater plant. 

Attorney Kalny stressed that the property owner will need to proceed at their own risk. There is not a 
100% assurance that the ordinance will pass without holding a public hearing. There are no guarantees 
but we are optimistic. It is up to the applicant to ensure that they are complying with all state and federal 
codes. We will not be involved in regulating adherence to said codes; that will be one of the conditions. 
There is a lot of work and some risk for the applicant. 

T. Nelson stated there is physical work (plumbing, electrical, and excavating) that needs to be completed 
on the property, that needs to begin sooner not later. He asked what could begin without an issued 
Building Permit or another permit letting work commence. 

Bristol explained that he gave Rasmusson from Ephraim’s Wastewater Plant a heads-up that he would be 
hearing from Barnes in relation to the sewer connection. From a code standpoint, we don’t have a permit 
for something like this. It comes down to working with the building inspector and letting them know to 
expect a phone call for permitting on something that is not allowed at this time.  

Bristol stated that this is a unique situation and other than trenching for the septic side there is really no 
site prep required.  

Barnes clarified that there is some scrub to be removed, an umbilical for power, and water from the well 
from the existing structure. 

T. Nelson stressed that he wanted to make sure Barnes was not being set up for a violation.  

Bristol discussed the issuance of an early start permit. Which is usually for site prep, cutting trees, and 
maybe some backhoe work to clear the site. If a project is code compliant, then it would be just design 



 

5 
 

review process but the house would be a permitted use.  

Kalny clarified the cart is before the horse in this situation.  

McCutcheon suggested passing option three (3) so that Bristol and Kalny begin working on the ordinance 
and set it up for public hearing and our approval. 

Bristol asked if the consensus was that this would remain under the purview of the Board. 

The consensus was yes. 

Kalny explained the agreement would outline the conditions that would need to be signed by the parties 
for the exception to be in place. 

Bristol encouraged Board members to submit conditions that need to be covered so that he can work with 
Kalny. 

Meacham moved, T. Nelson seconded to implement option number three (3) as presented by 
Attorney Kalny to amend the Ephraim Zoning Code to permit temporary variances in any zone in 
case of emergency or unforeseen difficulty under the purveyance of the Village Board. 

Roll call vote: Carly Mulliken - aye, Matt Meacham - aye, Ken Nelson - aye, Tim Nelson - aye, and 
Michael McCutcheon -aye. 

Motion carried. 

Further discussion included that the item should go before the Plan Committee to receive a 
recommendation to the Village Board.  

4. Visitors’ Comments: There were none. 

5. Adjournment: 
T. Nelson moved to adjourn at 1:29 PM, Meacham seconded, all ayes. Motion carried.  

Recorded by,  
Kim Roberts – Deputy Clerk  



Administrator Report 
May 2023 – BRENT   BRISTOL 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 

• We have a couple items this month for consideration that can be put in the capital planning 
category.   

o Tim, Ken and I have been working on an RFP for engineering firm selection for the 
Anderson Dock Project.  We have a short list of firms we are looking to send this to 
and have provided enough detail in the scope to determine, from the submittals, the 
qualifications of the firms and team that will be the best fit for us and this project.  
There will be a great deal of detail added to the scope once we select a firm and 
move this project towards plan submittal. 

o Aecom is working on a proposal for us on the North Path project to perform the 
engineering services necessary to plan, permit, and construct our path.  As of the 
writing of this I do not have the submittal in hand but am told to expect it on Friday.  
Much of the work will be survey.  From the early days of streetscape, when a path 
of some type was envisioned, it was planned on the Northbound side of the road.  
While we have recently found the Southbound side, more buildable we 
unfortunately don’t have the necessary survey info and as a result have some extra 
expense associated. 

o Ken, Matt, Justin and I met this past month to discuss the maintenance garage 
capital project.  The final report from the capital project ad-hoc committee is 
attached to this packet.  Our recommendation is to pursue the new building option, 
with a twist.  Rather than razing the existing garage and build new in the current 
location, we recommend investigating leaving the existing garage in place, perhaps 
turning the maintenance side of that building over to the WW department for their 
use, and building the new building a new location.  This would provide WW with 
more space, allow continued use of a building that exists, and also provide us with a 
place to house maintenance while the new building is being constructed.  If agreed 
we would like to go back to Keller for a proposal on new building drawings and 
plans.   

• Jim Kalny and I are working on a draft ordinance for the new emergency zoning waiver 
provision that will be added to the zoning ordinance.  This likely will be completed and 
sent as a supplement to this packet on Monday or Tuesday. 

 



VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM 
FOUNDED 1853 

 
 
 
 
 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM  

TO:                                        VILLAGE BOARD 

FROM:                                                  CLERK 

SUBJECT:                                        CLERK’S REPORT 

DATE:                                                    MAY 14, 2024 

 
I submitted an annual project and expenditure report for the American Rescue Plan Act-Coronavirus 
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (ARPA-SLFRF) for the Village of Ephraim on April 20, 
2024. 
In April I was obtaining information from alcohol applicants to ascertain if they qualify to be licensed 
for the 2024/2025 season. I ensured the forms submitted are filled out appropriately, and verified the 
accuracy of the information obtained. Application for Alcohol License notices for Chef's Hat, Eagle 
Harbor Inn, Ephraim Motel, Hillside Waterfront Hotel, Klaud's Kitchen, Old Post Office 
Restaurant, Pearl Wine Cottage, Prince of Pierogi, Sip, Somerset Inn & Suites, Summer 
Kitchen Restaurant, and The Fashionable former Trixie's were published in the newspaper on 
April 19 & 26, 2024. There were no significant modifications made to where the alcoholic beverages 
are going to be stored, sold/served, and consumed.  

The Renewal Alcohol Beverage License Applications are attached to your packet for your 
consideration. All of the businesses still need proof of a recently passed fire inspection and health 
inspection. The approval should be contingent upon a passed fire inspection and health 
inspection.  
Ephraim Business Council applied for Temporary Class “B” Licenses. They would like to be able to 
sell fermented malt beverages at the 58th FYR Bal Festival on Saturday, June 15, 2024. They also 
would like to sell fermented malt beverages at the Evenings in Ephraim – Bondemarked (Farmer’s 
Market) every Monday from June 17th through August 26th, 2024. Both applications are complete and 
attached to your packet for your consideration. 
 
Ephraim Fire-Rescue Association applied for Temporary Class “B” License. They would like to be 
able to sell fermented malt beverages at the 58th FYR Bal Festival on Saturday, June 15, 2024. The 
application is complete and attached to your packet for your consideration. 
 
2023 Budget Amendement Resolution 04-2024 is included in your packet. 
Please, find included in the packet revised Tax Collection Agreement/Contract between the 
County and our Municipality. The charge for first half collections of property taxes was reviewd 
and updated by the treasure’s office and finance department of Door County. The recommended new 
charge for 2024 tax year was approved by the County Finance Committee. The charge will be $1.51 
per billable parcel, this is an increase from the last three years at $1.43 per parcel.   

Due to a large increase in electrical service permit requests over the last year and the challenging 



schedules that these service inspections require, as well as continued rise in costs, Brett Guilette from 
Inspection Specialists LLC (Ephraim commercial inspector) determined that an increase in the 
Electrical Service permit fee is required. Their current fee, is $50 for residential service and $60 for 
commercial services. They would like to increase this fee to $75 for both residential and commercial 
electrical service requests. 

I have taken minutes for HPC, and Plan Committee, and entered invoices for payment. I have also 
reconciled cash, made deposits, processed payroll, and all the necessary government reports.  

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns. 
 
Sincerely,   
 
Andrea Collak - Clerk/Treasurer 



VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/09/2024     10:20AM       PAGE: 1

ADMINISTRATION

100-10-41110 GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES .00 1,336,375.88 1,336,375.31 (                         .57) 100.0

100-10-41150 MANAGED FOREST LANDS .00 40.52 8.00 (                     32.52) 506.5

100-10-41210 ROOM TAXES 1,827.11 1,827.11 320,000.00 318,172.89 .6

100-10-41220 ROOM TAX GRANT .00 .00 36,000.00 36,000.00 .0

100-10-41223 PRAT .00 13,381.06 150,000.00 136,618.94 8.9

100-10-41800 INTEREST ON TAXES 55.67 55.67 300.00 244.33 18.6

100-10-43410 STATE - SHARED REVENUE .00 .00 6,161.00 6,161.00 .0

100-10-43430 EXEMPT COMPUTER AID .00 .00 142.00 142.00 .0

100-10-43530 STATE TRANSPORTATION AIDS 19,498.67 38,997.34 44,593.72 5,596.38 87.5

100-10-43650 STATE AID - FOREST CROP .00 (                     10.13) 1,000.00 1,010.13 (    1.0)

100-10-43660 STATE PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES 497.67 7,315.78 2,000.00 (                5,315.78) 365.8

100-10-43690 STATE-VIDEO SERVICE PROVIDER .00 .00 2,773.00 2,773.00 .0

100-10-44100 CABLE FRANCHISE FEES .00 3,511.73 13,000.00 9,488.27 27.0

100-10-44110 LIQUOR LICENSES .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

100-10-44111 OPERATOR LICENSE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

100-10-44112 PICNIC LICENSE .00 .00 20.00 20.00 .0

100-10-44113 SHORT TERM RENTAL LICENSE 750.00 1,750.00 5,000.00 3,250.00 35.0

100-10-44200 DOG LICENSES 16.50 137.50 8.00 (                   129.50) 1718.8

100-10-44300 BUILDING & SIGN PERMITS .00 656.40 2,500.00 1,843.60 26.3

100-10-44310 BUILDING INSPECTION FEES 10.00 (                   356.10) .00 356.10 .0

100-10-46101 ASSESSMENT LETTERS 175.00 450.00 1,000.00 550.00 45.0

100-10-46730 TENNIS COURT FEES .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

100-10-46840 PERSONNEL SERV PAYMENTS .00 .00 19,900.00 19,900.00 .0

100-10-46900 OTHER REVENUE .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

100-10-48100 INTEREST INCOME/GENL .00 61,857.74 100,000.00 38,142.26 61.9

100-10-48200 RENTALS OF VILLAGE PROPERTIES .00 501.00 7,000.00 6,499.00 7.2

100-10-48307 SALE OF RECYCLABLE MATERIALS .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 22,830.62 1,466,491.50 2,055,281.03 588,789.53 71.4

 FIRE

100-50-43420 STATE - FIRE DUES .00 .00 11,000.00 11,000.00 .0

TOTAL  FIRE .00 .00 11,000.00 11,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 22,830.62 1,466,491.50 2,066,281.03 599,789.53 71.0



VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/09/2024     10:20AM       PAGE: 2

 ADMINISTRATION

100-10-51100-100 SALARIES 1,500.00 6,000.00 18,000.00 12,000.00 33.3

100-10-51100-101 SS/MED 114.75 459.00 1,377.00 918.00 33.3

100-10-51100-320 TRAINING/CONFERENCES .00 .00 200.00 200.00 .0

100-10-51300-200 LEGAL FEES 793.00 2,006.50 30,000.00 27,993.50 6.7

100-10-51400-100 SALARIES 10,744.48 48,075.00 139,678.35 91,603.35 34.4

100-10-51400-101 SS/MED 722.90 3,279.75 10,685.39 7,405.64 30.7

100-10-51400-102 RETIREMENT 741.36 3,317.15 9,498.13 6,180.98 34.9

100-10-51400-103 HEALTH INSURANCE 3,612.42 14,449.68 43,349.27 28,899.59 33.3

100-10-51400-104 DISABILITY INSURANCE 306.97 1,227.88 2,800.00 1,572.12 43.9

100-10-51400-105 WORKERS COMPENSATION .00 156.12 649.60 493.48 24.0

100-10-51400-310 VEHICLE FUEL 29.10 62.60 600.00 537.40 10.4

100-10-51400-311 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE .00 61.49 500.00 438.51 12.3

100-10-51400-312 CELLPHONE 151.15 543.45 1,750.00 1,206.55 31.1

100-10-51400-320 TRAINING/CONFERENCES .00 499.00 2,000.00 1,501.00 25.0

100-10-51400-330 BANK FEES 39.81 216.58 500.00 283.42 43.3

100-10-51400-331 POSTAGE 300.00 682.49 3,500.00 2,817.51 19.5

100-10-51400-332 OFFICE EQUIPMENT .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

100-10-51400-333 OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENCES 179.87 893.22 5,000.00 4,106.78 17.9

100-10-51400-334 COMPUTER SUPPLIES/EXPENCES 4,980.78 8,722.84 5,000.00 (                3,722.84) 174.5

100-10-51400-335 PROFESSIONAL DUES/EXPENCES 175.00 175.00 1,500.00 1,325.00 11.7

100-10-51400-336 LEGAL NOTICES/ADDS 85.45 85.45 500.00 414.55 17.1

100-10-51400-339 PRINTING COSTS 389.69 1,623.74 1,000.00 (                   623.74) 162.4

100-10-51400-340 VEHICLE INSURANCE .00 157.82 357.58 199.76 44.1

100-10-51400-342 COMMITTEE/WORKER EXPENSE .00 .00 220.00 220.00 .0

100-10-51400-343 CONTINGENCY .00 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 .0

100-10-51400-344 UNIFORMS .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

100-10-51400-710 CHARITABLE DONATIONS 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 100.0

100-10-51440-316 SUPPLIES/EXPENCES 19.96 96.01 500.00 403.99 19.2

100-10-51440-320 TRAINING/CONFERENCES .00 157.50 500.00 342.50 31.5

100-10-51440-342 COMMITTEE/WORKER EXPENSE 623.50 623.50 2,500.00 1,876.50 24.9

100-10-51500-100 SALARIES 2,530.08 11,320.56 32,890.33 21,569.77 34.4

100-10-51500-101 SS/MED 169.46 768.83 2,516.11 1,747.28 30.6

100-10-51500-102 RETIREMENT 174.58 781.14 2,236.54 1,455.40 34.9

100-10-51500-103 HEALTH INSURANCE 878.70 3,514.80 10,544.42 7,029.62 33.3

100-10-51500-300 AUDITING EXPENSES 9,794.02 9,794.02 11,000.00 1,205.98 89.0

100-10-51530-210 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICE 707.53 2,830.16 67,200.00 64,369.84 4.2

100-10-51600-211 PROPERTY INSURANCE .00 1,130.00 1,151.36 21.36 98.1

100-10-51600-303 ELECTRICITY 715.69 3,419.10 6,500.00 3,080.90 52.6

100-10-51600-304 LP GAS .00 678.56 1,500.00 821.44 45.2

100-10-51600-306 PHONE 644.40 1,794.59 4,000.00 2,205.41 44.9

100-10-51600-309 INTERNET 388.40 658.37 675.00 16.63 97.5

100-10-51601-210 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

100-10-51601-211 PROPERTY INSURANCE .00 2,992.00 3,047.42 55.42 98.2

100-10-51601-303 ELECTRICITY 170.82 742.49 3,500.00 2,757.51 21.2

100-10-51601-304 LP GAS 868.19 4,322.53 6,000.00 1,677.47 72.0

100-10-51601-308 SEWER FEES 467.48 467.48 1,500.00 1,032.52 31.2

100-10-51601-309 INTERNET 198.93 764.08 1,700.00 935.92 45.0

100-10-51910-730 MISC EXPENSE 15,829.83 15,829.83 3,800.00 (              12,029.83) 416.6

100-10-51930-212 LIABILITY INSURANCE .00 5,883.50 5,500.00 (                   383.50) 107.0

100-10-52400-100 SALARIES 711.20 3,182.16 9,244.74 6,062.58 34.4

100-10-52400-101 SS/MED 48.62 220.14 707.22 487.08 31.1

100-10-52400-102 RETIREMENT 49.08 219.60 628.64 409.04 34.9



VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/09/2024     10:20AM       PAGE: 3

100-10-52400-103 HEALTH INSURANCE 195.26 781.04 2,343.20 1,562.16 33.3

100-10-53510-210 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

100-10-55300-316 SUPPLIES/EXPENSES .00 .00 2,600.00 2,600.00 .0

100-10-56400-100 SALARIES 1,778.00 7,955.40 23,111.85 15,156.45 34.4

100-10-56400-101 SS/MED 121.56 550.38 1,768.06 1,217.68 31.1

100-10-56400-102 RETIREMENT 122.68 548.91 1,571.61 1,022.70 34.9

100-10-56400-103 HEALTH INSURANCE 488.18 1,952.72 5,858.01 3,905.29 33.3

100-10-56400-333 OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSES .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

100-10-56700-720 SUBSIDY TO ORGANIZATION .00 40,652.69 .00 (              40,652.69) .0

100-10-56701-210 ROOM TAX EXPENSES .00 .00 36,000.00 36,000.00 .0

100-10-58100-600 PRINCIPAL .00 210,000.00 210,000.00 .00 100.0

100-10-58200-601 INTEREST .00 70,834.38 136,419.00 65,584.62 51.9

TOTAL  ADMINISTRATION 63,562.88 499,161.23 896,478.83 397,317.60 55.7



VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/09/2024     10:20AM       PAGE: 4

PUBLIC WORKS

100-20-53000-100 SALARIES 11,205.76 44,692.48 152,878.97 108,186.49 29.2

100-20-53000-101 SS/MED 745.68 3,010.50 11,695.24 8,684.74 25.7

100-20-53000-102 RETIREMENT 773.20 3,083.79 10,350.77 7,266.98 29.8

100-20-53000-103 HEALTH INSURANCE 4,035.84 15,251.97 56,371.14 41,119.17 27.1

100-20-53000-104 DISABILITY INSURANCE 351.40 770.29 2,500.00 1,729.71 30.8

100-20-53000-105 WORKERS COMPENSATION .00 2,284.08 9,504.13 7,220.05 24.0

100-20-53000-312 CELLPHONE 83.11 264.33 1,000.00 735.67 26.4

100-20-53000-320 TRAINING/CONFERENCES .00 83.35 600.00 516.65 13.9

100-20-53000-333 OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSES 149.99 308.39 1,000.00 691.61 30.8

100-20-53000-344 UNIFORMS .00 393.48 1,500.00 1,106.52 26.2

100-20-53301-220 MOWING .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

100-20-53301-221 SWEEPING/MARKING 91.87 226.87 6,000.00 5,773.13 3.8

100-20-53301-222 ROAD TRIMMING .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

100-20-53301-223 SNOW REMOVAL 20.00 4,478.23 34,000.00 29,521.77 13.2

100-20-53301-300 FACILITY EQUIPMENT .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

100-20-53301-302 FACILITY  MAINT./REPAIR/STREET .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

100-20-53302-810 EQUIPMENT OUTLAY/STREET REC .00 46,000.00 .00 (              46,000.00) .0

100-20-53302-820 OTHER IMPR. OUTLAY/STREET REC .00 378.00 .00 (                   378.00) .0

100-20-53310-310 VEHICLE FUEL 795.45 2,142.40 6,500.00 4,357.60 33.0

100-20-53310-311 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 2,803.54 2,845.49 10,000.00 7,154.51 28.5

100-20-53310-340 VEHICLE INSURANCE .00 622.32 1,410.08 787.76 44.1

100-20-53321-303 ELECTRICITY/VISITOR CENTER 34.37 132.83 800.00 667.17 16.6

100-20-53321-308 SEWER FEES/VISITOR CENTER 124.00 124.00 500.00 376.00 24.8

100-20-53322-210 OTHER CONTR. SERV./MAINT.BUILD .00 283.50 1,500.00 1,216.50 18.9

100-20-53322-211 PROPERTY INSURANCE/MAINT.BUILD .00 4,215.00 4,292.26 77.26 98.2

100-20-53322-301 FACILITY  SUPPLIES/MAINT.BUILD 16.56 161.94 2,000.00 1,838.06 8.1

100-20-53322-302 FACILITY  MAINT/REPAIR/MAIN.B 1,151.99 3,114.04 17,000.00 13,885.96 18.3

100-20-53322-304 LP GAS/MAINT.BUILD .00 438.64 1,000.00 561.36 43.9

100-20-53322-350 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES/MAINT.BUIL 187.41 276.12 4,500.00 4,223.88 6.1

100-20-53322-351 HARDWARE/TOOLS/MAINT.BUILD 29.45 278.80 1,700.00 1,421.20 16.4

100-20-53322-352 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 79.98 79.98 500.00 420.02 16.0

100-20-53322-820 BLDG IMPR.OUTLAY/MAINT.BUILD .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

100-20-53420-301 FACILITY SUPPLIES/STREET LIGHT 19.78 19.78 300.00 280.22 6.6

100-20-53420-302 FACILITY MAINT/REPAIR/STREET L .00 17.98 500.00 482.02 3.6

100-20-53420-303 ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHT 773.83 6,394.38 16,000.00 9,605.62 40.0

100-20-53440-210 OTHER CONTR SERVICE/STORM SE 1,520.00 1,520.00 2,000.00 480.00 76.0

100-20-53620-210 OTHER CONTR SERVICE/RECYCLING 783.36 3,331.64 6,500.00 3,168.36 51.3

100-20-53621-210 OTHER CONTR SERVICE/GARBAGE 232.42 2,150.18 2,500.00 349.82 86.0

100-20-53640-210 OTHER CONTR SERVICES/WEED .00 .00 3,200.00 3,200.00 .0

100-20-55200-225 MULCH .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

100-20-55200-226 DIRT & STONE .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

100-20-55200-227 FLOWERS .00 109.70 6,000.00 5,890.30 1.8

100-20-55200-228 TREE CUTTING .00 606.99 6,500.00 5,893.01 9.3

100-20-55200-229 PLUMBING 274.20 298.67 3,000.00 2,701.33 10.0

100-20-55200-230 ELECTRICAL/PARKS & GROUNDS .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

100-20-55200-232 CONCRETE .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

100-20-55200-300 FACILITY EQUIPMENT/PARKS&GROU .00 1,090.00 1,000.00 (                     90.00) 109.0

100-20-55200-302 FACILITY MAINT/REPAIR/PARKS&GR .00 538.02 4,500.00 3,961.98 12.0

100-20-55200-303 ELECTRICITY/HARBORSIDE/WETLAN 65.97 268.95 700.00 431.05 38.4

100-20-55200-353 EQUIPMENT REPAIR/MAINT/PARKS 6.49 152.25 2,500.00 2,347.75 6.1

100-20-55200-830 OTHER IMPR OUTLAY/PARKS/TREES .00 3,150.20 31,000.00 27,849.80 10.2

100-20-55200-840 PROJECT OUTLAY/PARKS&GROUNDS .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0



VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/09/2024     10:20AM       PAGE: 5

100-20-55420-308 SEWER FEES/BEACH 136.40 136.40 500.00 363.60 27.3

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 26,492.05 155,725.96 451,102.59 295,376.63 34.5

 FIRE

100-50-52100-301 LAW ENFORCEMENT .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

100-50-52200-100 SALARIES 1,520.84 6,083.36 19,500.00 13,416.64 31.2

100-50-52200-101 SS/MED 424.86 1,400.28 5,000.00 3,599.72 28.0

100-50-52200-102 RETIREMENT 141.86 413.99 800.00 386.01 51.8

100-50-52200-103 HEALTH INSURANCE 339.00 524.32 3,000.00 2,475.68 17.5

100-50-52200-105 WORKERS COMPENSATION .00 268.28 1,000.00 731.72 26.8

100-50-52200-106 LOSA (AD) .00 .00 8,000.00 8,000.00 .0

100-50-52200-211 PROPERTY INSURANCE .00 701.00 713.95 12.95 98.2

100-50-52200-302 FACILITY  MAINTENANCE/REPAIR 123.94 516.20 7,000.00 6,483.80 7.4

100-50-52200-304 LP GAS .00 455.45 1,400.00 944.55 32.5

100-50-52200-310 VEHICLE FUEL 169.47 361.75 5,500.00 5,138.25 6.6

100-50-52200-312 CELLPHONE 49.43 148.29 800.00 651.71 18.5

100-50-52200-320 TRAINING/CONFERENCES 1,879.71 3,975.19 13,000.00 9,024.81 30.6

100-50-52200-333 OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENCES .00 6.25 300.00 293.75 2.1

100-50-52200-335 PROFESSIONAL DUES/EXPENCES .00 95.00 700.00 605.00 13.6

100-50-52200-340 VEHICLE INSURANCE .00 2,646.72 5,996.98 3,350.26 44.1

100-50-52200-353 EQUIPMENT REPAIR/MAINTENANCE 967.44 2,555.62 27,000.00 24,444.38 9.5

100-50-52200-368 PREVENTION MATERIALS (AD) .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

100-50-52200-369 FIRE NUMBER IMPROVEMENTS .00 47.47 .00 (                     47.47) .0

100-50-52200-370 PAGER MAINTENANCE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

100-50-52200-371 EQUIPMENT 3,536.29 10,101.20 40,000.00 29,898.80 25.3

100-50-52200-372 EPHRAIM FIRE CALLS 192.00 1,010.00 7,000.00 5,990.00 14.4

100-50-52200-373 MID DOOR FIRE CALLS .00 253.00 .00 (                   253.00) .0

100-50-52200-374 MUTUAL AID FIRE CALLS 288.00 648.00 8,500.00 7,852.00 7.6

100-50-52200-375 EPHRAIM FIRE MTGS 1,104.00 4,764.50 23,000.00 18,235.50 20.7

100-50-52200-376 MID DOOR FIRE MTGS .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

100-50-52200-378 EPHRAIM EVENT CALLS .00 .00 475.00 475.00 .0

100-50-52200-379 INSPECTION/DATA ENTRY (AD) 32.25 849.25 3,500.00 2,650.75 24.3

100-50-52200-810 EQUIPMENT OUTLAY .00 555.49 4,000.00 3,444.51 13.9

100-50-52300-377 FIRST RESPONDER EXPENCES .00 11,134.40 8,000.00 (                3,134.40) 139.2

TOTAL  FIRE 10,769.09 49,515.01 201,985.93 152,470.92 24.5

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 100,824.02 704,402.20 1,549,567.35 845,165.15 45.5

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (              77,993.40) 762,089.30 516,713.68 (            245,375.62) 147.5



VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2024

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/09/2024     10:20AM       PAGE: 6

 PUBLIC WORKS

201-20-46410 WATER TEST REVENUE 3,060.00 5,697.75 36,100.00 30,402.25 15.8

201-20-48100 WATER ACCOUNT INTEREST .00 125.56 .00 (                   125.56) .0

TOTAL  PUBLIC WORKS 3,060.00 5,823.31 36,100.00 30,276.69 16.1

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 3,060.00 5,823.31 36,100.00 30,276.69 16.1



VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2024

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/09/2024     10:20AM       PAGE: 7

 WASTEWATER

201-30-53700-110 PERSONNEL SERVICES .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

201-30-53700-210 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICE .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

201-30-53700-331 POSTAGE .00 41.24 1,000.00 958.76 4.1

201-30-53700-335 PROFESSIONAL DUES/EXPENSES 25.00 25.00 400.00 375.00 6.3

201-30-53700-397 WATER TESTING COSTS .00 4,199.56 12,800.00 8,600.44 32.8

201-30-53700-398 WATER TESTING OPERATIONS EXP 54.65 874.37 8,400.00 7,525.63 10.4

201-30-53700-400 VEHICLE REPLACEMENT .00 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 .0

TOTAL  WASTEWATER 79.65 5,140.17 36,100.00 30,959.83 14.2

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 79.65 5,140.17 36,100.00 30,959.83 14.2

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 2,980.35 683.14 .00 (                   683.14) .0



VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2024

DOCKS FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/09/2024     10:20AM       PAGE: 8

 DOCKS

202-40-46751 MOORINGS .00 1,556.00 10,000.00 8,444.00 15.6

202-40-46752 SEASONAL SLIPS 4,410.00 57,993.62 82,000.00 24,006.38 70.7

202-40-46753 LAUNCHING FEES 50.00 50.00 10,000.00 9,950.00 .5

202-40-46754 TRANSIENT FEES 353.10 1,273.08 15,000.00 13,726.92 8.5

202-40-46755 SEASONAL DINGHY FEES .00 106.00 1,500.00 1,394.00 7.1

202-40-46756 SEASONAL LAUNCH FEES .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

202-40-48100 INTEREST INCOME .00 689.71 500.00 (                   189.71) 137.9

TOTAL  DOCKS 4,813.10 61,668.41 121,000.00 59,331.59 51.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 4,813.10 61,668.41 121,000.00 59,331.59 51.0



VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2024

DOCKS FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/09/2024     10:20AM       PAGE: 9

 DOCKS

202-40-55430-100 SALARIES .00 .00 27,000.00 27,000.00 .0

202-40-55430-101 SS/MED .00 .00 900.00 900.00 .0

202-40-55430-105 WORKERS COMPENSATION .00 158.62 660.02 501.40 24.0

202-40-55430-110 PERSONEL SERVICES .00 .00 19,900.00 19,900.00 .0

202-40-55430-211 PROPERTY INSURANCE .00 5,300.00 5,398.20 98.20 98.2

202-40-55430-303 ELECTRICITY 169.63 628.05 1,800.00 1,171.95 34.9

202-40-55430-307 WATER TREATMENT .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

202-40-55430-308 SEWER FEES 124.00 124.00 496.00 372.00 25.0

202-40-55430-309 INTERNET 109.99 435.94 1,000.00 564.06 43.6

202-40-55430-312 CELLPHONE 22.66 67.98 600.00 532.02 11.3

202-40-55430-331 POSTAGE .00 41.24 175.00 133.76 23.6

202-40-55430-333 OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPESES .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

202-40-55430-334 COMPUTER SUPPLIES/EXPENCES .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

202-40-55431-240 BUOYS & PLACEMENT 246.73 246.73 7,500.00 7,253.27 3.3

202-40-55431-360 DOCK REPAIR 289.56 984.12 8,000.00 7,015.88 12.3

202-40-55431-361 DOCK EQUIPMENT .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

202-40-55431-362 MINOR PROJECTS 73.76 432.18 10,000.00 9,567.82 4.3

202-40-55431-810 EQUIPMENT OUTLAY .00 .00 31,870.78 31,870.78 .0

TOTAL  DOCKS 1,036.33 8,418.86 121,000.00 112,581.14 7.0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 1,036.33 8,418.86 121,000.00 112,581.14 7.0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 3,776.77 53,249.55 .00 (              53,249.55) .0



VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2024

WASTEWATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/09/2024     10:20AM       PAGE: 10

 WASTEWATER

610-30-41900 MISC NONOPERATING INCOME/TAX .00 128,059.00 128,059.00 .00 100.0

610-30-45190 0.045 LATE CHARGE-SEWERED CUS 16.03 16.03 1,500.00 1,483.97 1.1

610-30-46410 SEWER CHARGES .00 94,122.32 376,669.00 282,546.68 25.0

610-30-46411 HOLDING TANK/SEPTIC CHARGES 927.97 2,716.32 24,000.00 21,283.68 11.3

610-30-46730 MISC RENTALS/SERVICES .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

610-30-48100 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS .00 9,152.52 .00 (                9,152.52) .0

610-30-48400 MISC INCOME/LAWSUIT SETTLEMEN .00 .00 1,400.00 1,400.00 .0

610-30-48410 WATER TEST LABOR INCOME .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

610-30-49200 TRANSFERS IN OTHER FUNDS - WW .00 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 .0

TOTAL  WASTEWATER 944.00 234,066.19 545,128.00 311,061.81 42.9

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 944.00 234,066.19 545,128.00 311,061.81 42.9



VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2024

WASTEWATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/09/2024     10:20AM       PAGE: 11

 WASTEWATER

610-30-54270-601 DEBT INTEREST EXPENSE 2,107.67 2,107.67 .00 (                2,107.67) .0

610-30-57401-100 SALARIES 12,036.88 52,379.20 148,201.38 95,822.18 35.3

610-30-57401-101 SS/MED 812.16 3,578.62 11,337.41 7,758.79 31.6

610-30-57401-102 RETIREMENT 830.54 3,614.12 10,077.69 6,463.57 35.9

610-30-57401-103 HEALTH INSURANCE 3,751.08 14,774.73 41,140.31 26,365.58 35.9

610-30-57401-104 DISABILITY INSURANCE 148.19 592.76 2,000.00 1,407.24 29.6

610-30-57401-105 WORKERS COMPENSATION .00 2,168.90 9,024.86 6,855.96 24.0

610-30-57401-200 LEGAL FEES .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

610-30-57401-211 PROPERTY INSURANCE .00 7,334.00 7,468.66 134.66 98.2

610-30-57401-306 PHONE 381.71 1,463.13 3,600.00 2,136.87 40.6

610-30-57401-310 VEHICLE FUEL 191.10 567.89 2,500.00 1,932.11 22.7

610-30-57401-311 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE  1,039.24 1,146.16 4,000.00 2,853.84 28.7

610-30-57401-312 CELLPHONES 88.65 280.95 600.00 319.05 46.8

610-30-57401-320 TRAINING/CONFERENCES 155.26 1,379.72 8,000.00 6,620.28 17.3

610-30-57401-331 POSTAGE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

610-30-57401-333 OFFICE SUPPLIES/EXPENSES .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0

610-30-57401-334 COMPUTER SUPPLIES/EXPENSES 287.00 729.75 1,500.00 770.25 48.7

610-30-57401-335 PROFESSIONAL DUES/EXPENSES .00 330.00 4,000.00 3,670.00 8.3

610-30-57401-337 AUDITING EXPENSES 4,172.58 4,172.58 5,000.00 827.42 83.5

610-30-57401-340 VEHICLE INSURANCE .00 715.14 1,620.35 905.21 44.1

610-30-57401-343 CONTINGENCY .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

610-30-57401-344 UNIFORMS .00 .00 450.00 450.00 .0

610-30-57401-387 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE .00 13.99 500.00 486.01 2.8

610-30-57401-389 SAFETY EXPENSES 89.68 135.03 1,000.00 864.97 13.5

610-30-57402-210 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 49.28 464.21 2,000.00 1,535.79 23.2

610-30-57402-303 ELECTRICITY 1,928.26 7,859.69 27,000.00 19,140.31 29.1

610-30-57402-304 LP GAS 274.60 1,451.78 1,500.00 48.22 96.8

610-30-57402-351 HARDWARE/TOOLS 206.91 298.38 1,300.00 1,001.62 23.0

610-30-57402-380 CHEMICALS PLANT .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

610-30-57402-381 CHEMICALS LAB .00 805.86 3,000.00 2,194.14 26.9

610-30-57402-382 LAB EQUIPMENT & REPAIR 164.99 4,136.19 2,000.00 (                2,136.19) 206.8

610-30-57402-383 SLUDGE EXPENSE .00 303.91 20,000.00 19,696.09 1.5

610-30-57402-385 PLANT EQUIPMENT & REPAIR 382.53 1,233.10 10,000.00 8,766.90 12.3

610-30-57402-386 ODOR CONTROL .00 .00 2,600.00 2,600.00 .0

610-30-57402-390 UV PLANT DISINFECTION .00 2,300.00 4,500.00 2,200.00 51.1

610-30-57402-810 EQUIPMENT OUTLAY .00 8,500.00 7,500.00 (                1,000.00) 113.3

610-30-57403-303 ELECTRICITY 612.66 1,928.87 7,200.00 5,271.13 26.8

610-30-57403-304 LP GAS .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

610-30-57403-384 COLLECTION SYSTEM MAINT 6,463.60 6,933.55 12,500.00 5,566.45 55.5

610-30-57404-810 EQUIPMENT OUTLAY 50,308.50 83,579.70 10,698.33 (              72,881.37) 781.2

TOTAL  WASTEWATER 86,483.07 217,279.58 387,068.99 169,789.41 56.1

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 86,483.07 217,279.58 387,068.99 169,789.41 56.1

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (              85,539.07) 16,786.61 158,059.01 141,272.40 10.6



Village of Ephraim Physical Facilities/Utilities 
April Maintenance Manager Report 

 
   
Work done in April: 

• Cleaning of Administration Building, Library, and Village Hall. 
• Attended Fyr-Bal planning meeting. 
• Turned on water to all buildings and completed repairs to broken water lines as needed. 
• Thatching of all properties. 
• Reset water bib heights along shorefront. 
• Poured 4 concrete slabs for garbage cans. 
• Mulching began on Village Properties. 
• Removed slit fence from beach and leveled beach along with 1st tilling. 
• Door County Highway swept roadways. 
• Road prepping began for paving operations within the next month. 
• Patching of potholes 
• Deep cleaning all Public Restrooms. 
• Conducted Snow & Ice Removal 1 time. 
• Cleared parking lot and walkway until end of Election due to snowstorm. 
• Clean up of downed trees following heavy snow and wind. 
• Generator ran 70 hours straight to keep Administration and Fire Station in operation 

during Power Outage. 
• Placed benches for season. 
• Brought down Buoys, Channel Markers and Moorings from dump.  
• Installed Launch Dock. 
• Reset Historical Rock across from Village Hall. 
• Contacted JF Construction to get on schedule for work on German Road that was 

approved at the Board Level. 
 
 

 
 
Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
Justin MacDonald 
Maintenance Manager 
jmacdonald@ephraim.wi,gov 
920-495-0039 

mailto:jmacdonald@ephraim.wi,gov


 

 
Ephraim Fire Department 
P.O. Box 138, Ephraim, WI 54211 
Fire Chief Justin MacDonald 
 
 

 
EPHRAIM RUNS: 4 
04/03/24  2908 German Rd.                                        5 Firefighters                    Wires down/Secure area 
04/03/24  Village Wide                                                 6 Firefighters                    Assist with Trees Down 
04/24/24  2854 Shannon Sq.                                       6 Firefighters                    Structure Fire/Extinguish  
 
EPRHAIM EMR CALLS: 3 
 
MUTUAL AID (MA) AUTO AID (AA) or MABAS RUNS: 3 
04/12/24  GFD      9665 Maple Grove Rd.                 9 Firefighters                    Secure LZ for Helo 
04/15/24  BHFD   8455 CTY Q                                     5 Firefighters                    Brush Fire/Assist on scene 
04/25/24  BHFD   8288 STH 57                                   7 Firefighters                    Missing Child/Cancelled enroute 
    
YEAR TO DATE FIRE CALLS: 14      YEAR TO DATE EMS CALLS: 13 
 
TRAINING COMPLETED: 
Ephraim Home Meeting:  
  Our 1st Home meeting was conducted on April 4th and was Wildland Fire Review.  Firefighters reviewed op-
erations of Brush Truck, Wildland Fire Attack, Various tools used for wildland fire and general wildland fire 
safety guidelines.  Review of calls and discussion on upcoming training was held.  10 Firefighters participated 
in this training. 
 
Ephraim 2nd Meeting: 
  Our 2nd monthly training was conducted on Thursday April 18th, this was pump operations.  Firefighters 
practiced drafting with Engine 408, Pump operations on Brush 417, nursing Brush 417 with Tender 415 and 
Fill Site operations.  6 Firefighters participated in this training. 
  
Other Training: 
-EMR’s attended monthly training. 
 
Other: 
-Chief MacDonald began fire inspections for business that applied for Alcohol Licenses. 
-Truck Checks were completed and any minor repairs were conducted if needed. 
-Chief MacDonald, Assistant Chief Rockwell, Captain J. Stahl, and FF N. Stahl attended the FDIC Tradeshow in 
Indianapolis to meet with vendors regarding starting to get specs on a new Mini Pumper. 
-Chief MacDonald, Assistant Chief Rockwell, and FF T. Penchoff assisted with Investigation of Fire on Shannon 
Square with Egg Harbor Fire Investigator Ashley Staats. 
-Chief MacDonald meet with Insurance Fire Investigator for Fire on Shannon Square. 
 
Respectfully Submitted 
Fire Chief  
Justin MacDonald 
 
 
 



Village of Ephraim Unpaid Invoice Report Page:     1

Report dates: ALL-ALL May 09, 2024  10:21AM

Invoice Sequence Description Type Invoice Due Invoice Discount Net Invoice GL Account

Number Number Date Date Amount Amount Check Amount Number

13 FRONTIER

0737-100501 1 Phone Charges-WW 262-159-0737 Invoice 04/25/2024 05/15/2024 380.64 380.64 610-30-5740

          Total 0737-100501-5-4-24: 380.64 .00 380.64

0798-100501 1 Phone Charges-Admin 262-159-0798 Invoice 04/25/2024 05/15/2024 59.05 59.05 100-10-5160

          Total 0798-100501-5-4-24: 59.05 .00 59.05

          Total 13 FRONTIER: 439.69 .00 439.69

16 HAMMERSMITH TV

10087590 1 Lights & Covers for Plant MCC Invoice 04/12/2024 05/15/2024 178.42 178.42 610-30-5740

          Total 10087590: 178.42 .00 178.42

          Total 16 HAMMERSMITH TV: 178.42 .00 178.42

18 FERRELLGAS

1126446174 1 Propane Admin Invoice 04/01/2024 05/15/2024 300.03 300.03 100-10-5160

          Total 1126446174: 300.03 .00 300.03

1126447505 1 Propane WW Invoice 04/01/2024 05/15/2024 162.58 162.58 610-30-5740

          Total 1126447505: 162.58 .00 162.58

1126447506 1 Propane Maint Invoice 04/01/2024 05/15/2024 301.35 301.35 100-20-5332

          Total 1126447506: 301.35 .00 301.35

1126514759 1 Propane VH Invoice 04/08/2024 05/15/2024 490.54 490.54 100-10-5160

          Total 1126514759: 490.54 .00 490.54

1126648608 1 Propane VH Invoice 04/22/2024 05/15/2024 413.22 413.22 100-10-5160

          Total 1126648608: 413.22 .00 413.22

          Total 18 FERRELLGAS: 1,667.72 .00 1,667.72

24 WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE

0403256491- 1 Streetlights Invoice 04/26/2024 05/15/2024 687.58 687.58 100-20-5342

          Total 0403256491-22-4-24: 687.58 .00 687.58

          Total 24 WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE: 687.58 .00 687.58

47 CINDY NELSON

EL TRAININ 1 2024/2025 Election Training Invoice 03/21/2024 05/15/2024 15.00 15.00 100-10-5144

          Total EL TRAINING: 15.00 .00 15.00

          Total 47 CINDY NELSON: 15.00 .00 15.00



Village of Ephraim Unpaid Invoice Report Page:     2

Report dates: ALL-ALL May 09, 2024  10:21AM

Invoice Sequence Description Type Invoice Due Invoice Discount Net Invoice GL Account

Number Number Date Date Amount Amount Check Amount Number

48 GOING GARBAGE

4-18-24 1 Grit at WW Invoice 04/18/2024 05/15/2024 77.27 77.27 610-30-5740

          Total 4-18-24: 77.27 .00 77.27

          Total 48 GOING GARBAGE: 77.27 .00 77.27

53 NORTHERN DOOR COMMUNICATIONS

30059 1 Monitor VI Pager Invoice 01/27/2024 05/15/2024 545.95 545.95 100-50-5220

          Total 30059: 545.95 .00 545.95

30073 1 MIN6 Channel Selector Knob Invoice 04/11/2024 05/15/2024 10.85 10.85 100-50-5220

          Total 30073: 10.85 .00 10.85

30076 1 VHF Replacement Antenna, Beltclip Invoice 05/06/2024 05/15/2024 31.60 31.60 100-50-5220

          Total 30076: 31.60 .00 31.60

          Total 53 NORTHERN DOOR COMMUNICATIONS: 588.40 .00 588.40

64 CULLIGAN

4-4-24 1 Salt for Water Softener Invoice 04/04/2024 05/15/2024 22.95 22.95 610-30-5740

          Total 4-4-24: 22.95 .00 22.95

          Total 64 CULLIGAN: 22.95 .00 22.95

138 COUNTY OF DOOR - RYAN SCHLEY

2024-330001 1 Culvert Work Invoice 04/25/2024 05/15/2024 14,159.56 14,159.56 100-20-5330

          Total 2024-33000124: 14,159.56 .00 14,159.56

          Total 138 COUNTY OF DOOR - RYAN SCHLEY: 14,159.56 .00 14,159.56

139 HOCKERS EXCAVATING

3748 1 Tub Grinder & Trucking, 924 Cat Loade Invoice 03/22/2024 05/15/2024 2,185.00 2,185.00 100-20-5520

          Total 3748: 2,185.00 .00 2,185.00

          Total 139 HOCKERS EXCAVATING: 2,185.00 .00 2,185.00

235 QUILL CORPORATION

38089095 1 Office Supplies Invoice 04/08/2024 05/15/2024 72.07 72.07 100-10-5140

          Total 38089095: 72.07 .00 72.07

38279535 1 Office Supplies Invoice 04/17/2024 05/15/2024 50.99 50.99 100-10-5140

          Total 38279535: 50.99 .00 50.99

          Total 235 QUILL CORPORATION: 123.06 .00 123.06

252 MARTIN SYSTEMS INC

22938-24 1 VH-Door Lock Invoice 04/01/2024 05/15/2024 2,329.61 2,329.61 100-20-5330



Village of Ephraim Unpaid Invoice Report Page:     3

Report dates: ALL-ALL May 09, 2024  10:21AM

Invoice Sequence Description Type Invoice Due Invoice Discount Net Invoice GL Account

Number Number Date Date Amount Amount Check Amount Number

          Total 22938-24: 2,329.61 .00 2,329.61

          Total 252 MARTIN SYSTEMS INC: 2,329.61 .00 2,329.61

342 BIWER WELDING

24109 1 4x8x1/2 No 6 Grating Invoice 03/27/2024 05/15/2024 120.00 120.00 100-20-5520

24109 2 Snowplow Repair Invoice 03/27/2024 05/15/2024 160.00 160.00 610-30-5740

          Total 24109: 280.00 .00 280.00

          Total 342 BIWER WELDING: 280.00 .00 280.00

376 JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFETY INC

IN313812 1 5 Gal Shield Solutions Wash & Wax Invoice 04/18/2024 05/15/2024 95.55 95.55 100-50-5220

          Total IN313812: 95.55 .00 95.55

          Total 376 JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFETY INC: 95.55 .00 95.55

421 CUMMINS SALES AND SERVICES

F4-60246 1 VH Generator Maintenance Invoice 04/26/2024 05/15/2024 606.22 606.22 100-20-5332

          Total F4-60246: 606.22 .00 606.22

          Total 421 CUMMINS SALES AND SERVICES: 606.22 .00 606.22

529 KEITH KRIST

BOA-4-24 1 BOA Meeting 4/30/2024 Invoice 04/30/2024 05/15/2024 30.00 30.00 100-10-5144

          Total BOA-4-24: 30.00 .00 30.00

          Total 529 KEITH KRIST: 30.00 .00 30.00

543 CELLCOM WISCONSIN RSA 10

224041 1 Cell Phone Charges-Spartan Go Cam Invoice 04/22/2024 05/15/2024 30.45 30.45 100-20-5300

224041 2 Cell Phone Charges- Maintenance Invoice 04/22/2024 05/15/2024 37.57 37.57 100-20-5300

224041 3 Cell Phone Charges-Admin Invoice 04/22/2024 05/15/2024 61.06 61.06 100-10-5140

224041 4 Cell Phone Charges-WW Invoice 04/22/2024 05/15/2024 73.56 73.56 610-30-5740

224041 5 Cell Phone Charges-FD Invoice 04/22/2024 05/15/2024 26.77 26.77 100-50-5220

224041 6 Cell Phone Charges-FD Invoice 04/22/2024 05/15/2024 22.57 22.57 100-50-5220

224041 7 Cell Phone Charges-Marina Invoice 04/22/2024 05/15/2024 22.57 22.57 202-40-5543

          Total 224041: 274.55 .00 274.55

          Total 543 CELLCOM WISCONSIN RSA 10: 274.55 .00 274.55

593 ANDERSON FAMILY PROPERTIES LLC

TAXES-2023 1 Ground Lease at Anderson Dock Invoice 04/26/2024 05/15/2024 3,217.71 3,217.71 100-10-5140

          Total TAXES-2023: 3,217.71 .00 3,217.71

          Total 593 ANDERSON FAMILY PROPERTIES LLC: 3,217.71 .00 3,217.71

605 NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE INC

2406378 1 Ammonia Test-April 2024 Invoice 04/26/2024 05/15/2024 22.44 22.44 610-30-5740



Village of Ephraim Unpaid Invoice Report Page:     4

Report dates: ALL-ALL May 09, 2024  10:21AM

Invoice Sequence Description Type Invoice Due Invoice Discount Net Invoice GL Account

Number Number Date Date Amount Amount Check Amount Number

          Total 2406378: 22.44 .00 22.44

          Total 605 NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE INC: 22.44 .00 22.44

722 APPEL OUTDOOR MAINTENANCE

7003 1 2024 Lawn Fertilizing/ Airating Invoice 04/27/2024 05/15/2024 3,483.27 3,483.27 100-20-5364

          Total 7003: 3,483.27 .00 3,483.27

          Total 722 APPEL OUTDOOR MAINTENANCE: 3,483.27 .00 3,483.27

730 KAREN McMURTRY

BOA-4-24 1 BOA Meeting  4/30/2024 Invoice 04/30/2024 05/15/2024 30.00 30.00 100-10-5144

          Total BOA-4-24: 30.00 .00 30.00

          Total 730 KAREN McMURTRY: 30.00 .00 30.00

759 DOOR COUNTY PIGGLY WIGGLY

2514 1 H2O-Maintenance Invoice 04/22/2024 05/15/2024 10.35 10.35 100-20-5332

          Total 2514: 10.35 .00 10.35

          Total 759 DOOR COUNTY PIGGLY WIGGLY: 10.35 .00 10.35

832 MCMAHON ASSOCIATES INC.

00934611 1 Facility Plant Amendment - 2025 Needs  Invoice 04/11/2024 05/15/2024 5,100.00 5,100.00 610-30-5740

          Total 00934611: 5,100.00 .00 5,100.00

          Total 832 MCMAHON ASSOCIATES INC.: 5,100.00 .00 5,100.00

835 IRONBROOK PARTNERS

8914 1 UV System Rebuild Invoice 04/24/2024 05/15/2024 35,160.00 35,160.00 610-30-5740

          Total 8914: 35,160.00 .00 35,160.00

          Total 835 IRONBROOK PARTNERS: 35,160.00 .00 35,160.00

864 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS

1712055010 1 Internet -Admin Invoice 05/01/2024 05/15/2024 89.99 89.99 100-10-5160

1712055010 2 Phone Charges-Admin Invoice 05/01/2024 05/15/2024 139.47 139.47 100-10-5160

          Total 171205501050124: 229.46 .00 229.46

2287829010 1 VoIP Charges-Admin Invoice 05/01/2024 05/15/2024 194.11 194.11 100-10-5160

          Total 228782901050124: 194.11 .00 194.11

          Total 864 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS: 423.57 .00 423.57

879 HERLACHE SMALL ENGINE INC

167542 1 4x Oil Filters Invoice 04/09/2024 05/15/2024 80.00 80.00 100-50-5220

          Total 167542: 80.00 .00 80.00



Village of Ephraim Unpaid Invoice Report Page:     5

Report dates: ALL-ALL May 09, 2024  10:21AM

Invoice Sequence Description Type Invoice Due Invoice Discount Net Invoice GL Account

Number Number Date Date Amount Amount Check Amount Number

167624 1 2x Belts for Leaf Sucker Invoice 04/16/2024 05/15/2024 133.90 133.90 100-20-5520

          Total 167624: 133.90 .00 133.90

          Total 879 HERLACHE SMALL ENGINE INC: 213.90 .00 213.90

892 BRAD RASMUSSON

REMIB2024 1 Mileage Reimbursement=On Call Invoice 04/03/2024 05/15/2024 34.84 34.84 610-30-5740

          Total REMIB2024: 34.84 .00 34.84

          Total 892 BRAD RASMUSSON: 34.84 .00 34.84

988 P.J. KORTENS COMPANY INC

10024830 1 Annual Service Call Invoice 04/17/2024 05/15/2024 716.40 716.40 610-30-5740

          Total 10024830: 716.40 .00 716.40

10024847 1 Investigate, Repair SCADA Invoice 04/29/2024 05/15/2024 1,278.40 1,278.40 610-30-5740

          Total 10024847: 1,278.40 .00 1,278.40

          Total 988 P.J. KORTENS COMPANY INC: 1,994.80 .00 1,994.80

1047 GFL ENVIRONMENTAL

U500000710 1 Trash-5/1-5/31/24 Invoice 04/19/2024 05/15/2024 231.10 231.10 100-20-5362

          Total U50000071089: 231.10 .00 231.10

U500000710 1 Recycle-5/1-5/31/2024 Invoice 04/19/2024 05/15/2024 861.76 861.76 100-20-5362

          Total U50000071090: 861.76 .00 861.76

          Total 1047 GFL ENVIRONMENTAL: 1,092.86 .00 1,092.86

1064 KIM ROBERTS

MAY2024 1 Phone Reimbursement-May 2024 Invoice 05/01/2024 05/15/2024 15.00 15.00 100-10-5140

          Total MAY2024: 15.00 .00 15.00

          Total 1064 KIM ROBERTS: 15.00 .00 15.00

1190 DANIEL OAKLEY

MAY2024 1 Cell Phone Reimbursement-May 2024 Invoice 05/01/2024 05/15/2024 15.00 15.00 610-30-5740

          Total MAY2024: 15.00 .00 15.00

          Total 1190 DANIEL OAKLEY: 15.00 .00 15.00

1255 AMUNDSEN DAVIS

759791 1 Attorney Fees Invoice 04/10/2024 05/15/2024 610.00 610.00 100-10-5130

          Total 759791: 610.00 .00 610.00

762089 1 Attorney Fees Invoice 04/30/2024 05/15/2024 610.00 610.00 100-10-5130



Village of Ephraim Unpaid Invoice Report Page:     6

Report dates: ALL-ALL May 09, 2024  10:21AM

Invoice Sequence Description Type Invoice Due Invoice Discount Net Invoice GL Account

Number Number Date Date Amount Amount Check Amount Number

          Total 762089: 610.00 .00 610.00

          Total 1255 AMUNDSEN DAVIS: 1,220.00 .00 1,220.00

1257 JAKE BASTIAN

MAY2024 1 Phone Reimbursement-May 2024 Invoice 05/01/2024 05/15/2024 15.00 15.00 100-20-5300

          Total MAY2024: 15.00 .00 15.00

REIMB2024 1 Mileage Reimbursement-On Call Invoice 04/07/2024 05/15/2024 8.04 8.04 610-30-5740

          Total REIMB2024: 8.04 .00 8.04

          Total 1257 JAKE BASTIAN: 23.04 .00 23.04

1265 WISCONSIN BUILDING SUPPLY

2437196 1 Expansion Joint Strips & 1/2x10 Rubber Invoice 04/24/2024 05/15/2024 84.13 84.13 100-20-5520

          Total 2437196: 84.13 .00 84.13

2440915 1 Concrete Mixer Rental Invoice 04/25/2024 05/15/2024 30.00 30.00 100-20-5332

          Total 2440915: 30.00 .00 30.00

2440923 1 40 Bags of Quick Concrete Invoice 04/25/2024 05/15/2024 399.60 399.60 100-20-5520

          Total 2440923: 399.60 .00 399.60

2457889 1 Pine Strip & Casing Nails Invoice 05/03/2024 05/15/2024 39.11 39.11 100-20-5332

          Total 2457889: 39.11 .00 39.11

2457996 1 Exterior Wood Deck 75pk Invoice 05/03/2024 05/15/2024 9.99 9.99 100-20-5332

          Total 2457996: 9.99 .00 9.99

          Total 1265 WISCONSIN BUILDING SUPPLY: 562.83 .00 562.83

1273 INSPECTION SPECIALIST LLC

APRIL2024 1 Building Permits Invoice 04/30/2024 05/15/2024 1,070.00 1,070.00 100-10-4431

          Total APRIL2024: 1,070.00 .00 1,070.00

          Total 1273 INSPECTION SPECIALIST LLC: 1,070.00 .00 1,070.00

1285 ACE HARDWARE SISTER BAY

2727 1 2x Flanges Invoice 05/01/2024 05/15/2024 3.58 3.58 100-20-5520

          Total 2727: 3.58 .00 3.58

2903 1 Flush Lever Invoice 05/06/2024 05/15/2024 13.99 13.99 100-20-5520

          Total 2903: 13.99 .00 13.99

          Total 1285 ACE HARDWARE SISTER BAY: 17.57 .00 17.57



Village of Ephraim Unpaid Invoice Report Page:     7

Report dates: ALL-ALL May 09, 2024  10:21AM

Invoice Sequence Description Type Invoice Due Invoice Discount Net Invoice GL Account

Number Number Date Date Amount Amount Check Amount Number

1292 NORTHERN DOOR PAINTING

03 1 Library-Interior Painting-50% VOE Invoice 03/24/2024 05/15/2024 800.00 800.00 100-20-5520

          Total 03: 800.00 .00 800.00

          Total 1292 NORTHERN DOOR PAINTING: 800.00 .00 800.00

1294 MACQEEN EMERGENCY

P28260 1 FDIC 23 Hot D Invoice 04/09/2024 05/15/2024 8,000.00 8,000.00 100-50-5220

          Total P28260: 8,000.00 .00 8,000.00

          Total 1294 MACQEEN EMERGENCY: 8,000.00 .00 8,000.00

1295 CLIMATE CHANGE COALITION OF DOOR COUNTY

1014 1 Tree Seedlings -Trays with 18 Trees Ea Invoice 05/01/2024 05/15/2024 162.00 162.00 100-20-5520

          Total 1014: 162.00 .00 162.00

          Total 1295 CLIMATE CHANGE COALITION OF DOOR COUNTY: 162.00 .00 162.00

1296 STEVE SAUTER

BOA-4-24 1 BOA Meeting 4-30-2024 Invoice 04/30/2024 05/15/2024 30.00 30.00 100-10-5144

          Total BOA-4-24: 30.00 .00 30.00

          Total 1296 STEVE SAUTER: 30.00 .00 30.00

9010 FRED BRIDENHAGEN

BOA-4-24 1 BOA Meeting 4-30-2024 Invoice 04/30/2024 05/15/2024 30.00 30.00 100-10-5144

          Total BOA-4-24: 30.00 .00 30.00

          Total 9010 FRED BRIDENHAGEN: 30.00 .00 30.00

9077 DOOR COUNTY COOPERATIVE

269714 1 Oil & Air Filter, Spark Plugs Invoice 04/24/2024 05/15/2024 353.72 353.72 100-20-5331

          Total 269714: 353.72 .00 353.72

          Total 9077 DOOR COUNTY COOPERATIVE: 353.72 .00 353.72

9090 EVENSON LAUNDRY & CLEANERS

769695 1 WW Rug Rental Invoice 04/26/2024 05/15/2024 28.55 28.55 201-30-5370

          Total 769695: 28.55 .00 28.55

          Total 9090 EVENSON LAUNDRY & CLEANERS: 28.55 .00 28.55

9168 SARA GLENN

BOA-4-24 1 BOA Meeting 4/30/2024 Invoice 04/30/2024 05/15/2024 30.00 30.00 100-10-5144

          Total BOA-4-24: 30.00 .00 30.00

          Total 9168 SARA GLENN: 30.00 .00 30.00



Village of Ephraim Unpaid Invoice Report Page:     8

Report dates: ALL-ALL May 09, 2024  10:21AM

Invoice Sequence Description Type Invoice Due Invoice Discount Net Invoice GL Account

Number Number Date Date Amount Amount Check Amount Number

9186 ASSOCIATED APPRAISALCONSULTANTS INC

174068 1 Assessor Fees Invoice 05/01/2024 05/15/2024 707.53 707.53 100-10-5153

          Total 174068: 707.53 .00 707.53

          Total 9186 ASSOCIATED APPRAISALCONSULTANTS INC: 707.53 .00 707.53

9189 CENTERPOINTE YACHT SERVICES LLC

2369 1 6V Commercial Battery Invoice 04/29/2024 05/15/2024 111.99 111.99 100-50-5220

          Total 2369: 111.99 .00 111.99

          Total 9189 CENTERPOINTE YACHT SERVICES LLC: 111.99 .00 111.99

9204 PROFESSIONAL SUPPLY

1087757 1 Janitorial Supplies Invoice 04/16/2024 05/15/2024 336.93 336.93 100-20-5332

          Total 1087757: 336.93 .00 336.93

          Total 9204 PROFESSIONAL SUPPLY: 336.93 .00 336.93

9260 WEST MARINE PRO

7188 1 Cooler - FD- Tax Exempt Invoice 04/10/2024 05/15/2024 99.99 99.99 100-50-5220

          Total 7188: 99.99 .00 99.99

          Total 9260 WEST MARINE PRO: 99.99 .00 99.99

9279 PENINSULA PULSE LLC

32566 1 Legal Notice-BOR Meeting Invoice 05/01/2024 05/15/2024 125.41 125.41 100-10-5140

32566 2 Legal Notice Invoice 05/01/2024 05/15/2024 27.37 27.37 100-10-5140

32566 3 Alcohol License Application Invoice 05/01/2024 05/15/2024 173.77 173.77 100-10-5140

          Total 32566: 326.55 .00 326.55

          Total 9279 PENINSULA PULSE LLC: 326.55 .00 326.55

9290 ANDREA COLLAK

MAY2024 1 Cell Phone Reimbursement-May 2024 Invoice 05/01/2024 05/15/2024 30.00 30.00 100-10-5140

          Total MAY2024: 30.00 .00 30.00

          Total 9290 ANDREA COLLAK: 30.00 .00 30.00

          Total : 88,515.02 .00 88,515.02

          Grand Totals:  88,515.02 .00 88,515.02

Summary by General Ledger Account Number

GL Account Number Debit Credit Net

100-10-44310 1,070.00 .00 1,070.00

100-10-51300-200 1,220.00 .00 1,220.00



Village of Ephraim Unpaid Invoice Report Page:     9

Report dates: ALL-ALL May 09, 2024  10:21AM

Summary by General Ledger Account Number

GL Account Number Debit Credit Net

100-10-51400-312 106.06 .00 106.06

100-10-51400-333 296.83 .00 296.83

100-10-51400-336 152.78 .00 152.78

100-10-51400-343 3,217.71 .00 3,217.71

100-10-51440-320 15.00 .00 15.00

100-10-51440-342 150.00 .00 150.00

100-10-51530-210 707.53 .00 707.53

100-10-51600-304 300.03 .00 300.03

100-10-51600-306 392.63 .00 392.63

100-10-51600-309 89.99 .00 89.99

100-10-51601-304 903.76 .00 903.76

100-20-53000-312 83.02 .00 83.02

100-20-53302-810 2,329.61 .00 2,329.61

100-20-53302-820 14,159.56 .00 14,159.56

100-20-53310-311 353.72 .00 353.72

100-20-53322-301 10.35 .00 10.35

100-20-53322-302 655.32 .00 655.32

100-20-53322-304 301.35 .00 301.35

100-20-53322-350 336.93 .00 336.93

100-20-53322-352 30.00 .00 30.00

100-20-53420-303 687.58 .00 687.58

100-20-53620-210 861.76 .00 861.76

100-20-53621-210 231.10 .00 231.10

100-20-53640-210 3,483.27 .00 3,483.27

100-20-55200-225 2,185.00 .00 2,185.00

100-20-55200-228 162.00 .00 162.00

100-20-55200-229 17.57 .00 17.57

100-20-55200-232 399.60 .00 399.60

100-20-55200-302 204.13 .00 204.13

100-20-55200-353 133.90 .00 133.90

100-20-55200-830 800.00 .00 800.00

100-50-52200-302 80.00 .00 80.00

100-50-52200-312 49.34 .00 49.34

100-50-52200-353 207.54 .00 207.54

100-50-52200-370 42.45 .00 42.45

100-50-52200-371 8,099.99 .00 8,099.99

100-50-52200-810 545.95 .00 545.95

201-30-53700-398 28.55 .00 28.55

202-40-55430-312 22.57 .00 22.57

610-30-57401-306 380.64 .00 380.64

610-30-57401-311 160.00 .00 160.00

610-30-57401-312 88.56 .00 88.56

610-30-57402-210 99.71 .00 99.71

610-30-57402-304 162.58 .00 162.58

610-30-57402-380 22.95 .00 22.95

610-30-57402-382 716.40 .00 716.40

610-30-57402-385 221.30 .00 221.30

610-30-57402-390 1,278.40 .00 1,278.40

610-30-57402-810 5,100.00 .00 5,100.00

610-30-57404-810 35,160.00 .00 35,160.00

          Grand Totals:  88,515.02 .00 88,515.02



Village of Ephraim Unpaid Invoice Report Page:     10

Report dates: ALL-ALL May 09, 2024  10:21AM

Summary by General Ledger Posting Period

GL Posting Period Debit Credit Net

00/00 88,515.02 .00 88,515.02

          Grand Totals:  

88,515.02 .00 88,515.02



VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM 
NOTICE OF ZONING ORDINANCE PUBLIC HEARING 

TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2024 – 7:00 PM 
 

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM 
ORDINANCE NO. 02-2024 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING §17.40(1) OF THE EPHRAIM CODE OF ORDINANCE AS 
IT RELATES TO FORMAL APPLICATIONS. 

SECTION I: Chapter §17 of the Ephraim Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 
NEW LANGUAGE IN BOLD ITALICS 
17.40 FORMAL APPLICATION.  

1) The content of a formal application for regular zoning or conditional use permits shall include floor 
plans, detailed elevations of all floors with complete dimensions, site plan, and a completed 
application. Building materials (roofing, siding, windows, doors, etc.) including colors are 
required as part of the formal application process by means of samples, catalog pictures, 
etc. 
CONSTRUCTION PARKING. Because of safety issues related to increased traffic and vehicle 
congestion associated with property improvements, a construction parking plan including the 
construction start date and anticipated completion date shall be a part of the permitting process 
for all building and zoning permit applications in the Village of Ephraim and must allow for the 
safe passage of traffic. Bi-directional traffic flow on STH 42/Water Street cannot be restricted 
during the summer season between Memorial Day and Labor Day. 

Upon request by the Plan Committee and/or the Zoning Administrator, applicants may be 
required to provide additional information on: 

• Landscaping plan with elevation contours and tree removal plans. 

• Erosion control plan pursuant to Chapter 16 of the Ephraim Municipal Code. 
2) Documentation shall be provided that provisions have been made for safe and adequate water 

supply and disposal of sewage. The application shall also include a nonrefundable application fee 
in accordance with a schedule established by the Village Board. The Plan Committee may require 
purely administrative, no-fee permits for excluded developmental activities to allow Village 
records for taxation and other purposes. 

3) State approval stamps are not required at the time of application, but any Village approval shall 
be conditioned upon completion of all State reviews and approvals as required. 

SECTION II: If any section, subsection, paragraph, or sentence of this ordinance is for any reason 
deemed unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance. 
SECTION III: This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication according to the law as an  
amendment to the Village Zoning Code under the procedures prescribed by §62.23(d) Wis. Stats. 
Passed and approved by the Village Board of Trustees at its regular meeting on the 9th day of April 2024. 
VILLAGE OF EPHRIAM 
BY: _________________________________ 
Michael McCutcheon, Village President 

Attest: _______________________________ 
Andrea Collak, Clerk

Published this____ day of _______ 2024 



VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM 
NOTICE OF ZONING ORDINANCE PUBLIC HEARING 

TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2024 – 7:00 PM 
 

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM 
ORDINANCE NO. 03-2024 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING §14.02 OF THE EPHRAIM CODE OF ORDINANCE AS IT 
RELATES TO BUILDING CODES – GENERAL INFORMATION. 

SECTION I: Chapter §14 of the Ephraim Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 
NEW LANGUAGE IN BOLD ITALICS 
14.02 GENERAL INFORMATION.  

1. A CERTIFICATE OF USE is also required for any change of use of a property involving the 
building of structures. An occupancy permit is required prior to the occupancy of any newly 
completed or remodeled structure or the whole or any part of any building that has not been 
continuously occupied for the previous twelve (12) months.   

2. WASTE DISPOSAL AND WATER SUPPLY. No application for a permit shall be considered 
by the Building Inspector and Zoning Administrator without evidence that County and/or State 
health and sanitation approval has been granted for a sanitary waste disposal system and 
water supply. Further, no permit shall be considered without a letter from the Ephraim Utilities 
Committee approving sanitary waste disposal for the development. 

3. CONSTRUCTION PARKING. Because of safety issues related to increased traffic and vehicle 
congestion associated with property improvements, a construction parking plan including the 
construction start date and anticipated completion date shall be a part of the permitting process for 
all building and zoning permit applications in the Village of Ephraim and must allow for the safe 
passage of traffic. Bi-directional traffic flow on STH 42/Water Street cannot be restricted during the 
summer season between Memorial Day and Labor Day. 

SECTION II: If any section, subsection, paragraph, or sentence of this ordinance is for any reason 
deemed unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance. 
SECTION III: This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication according to the law as an  
amendment to the Village Zoning Code under the procedures prescribed by §62.23(d) Wis. Stats. 
Passed and approved by the Village Board of Trustees at its regular meeting on the 9th day of April 2024. 

VILLAGE OF EPHRIAM 
BY: _________________________________ 
Michael McCutcheon, Village President 

Attest: _______________________________ 
Andrea Collak, Clerk

Published this____ day of _______ 2024 



Public hearing regarding Rezoning of Parcels 121-01-12312744K1, 121-01-
12312744K2 from Rural Residential to Commercial North 
Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 7:00 p.m. 
Ephraim Village Hall - 9996 Water St. 

At the regularly scheduled meeting of the Ephraim Board of Trustees on Tuesday, May 
14, 2024 at 7:00 p.m, the board will be having a public hearing to consider a zoning 
change for the following: 

• All of parcel 121-01-12312744K1
• All of parcel 121-01-12312744K2

These parcels are proposed to be changed from Rural Residential (R-R) to Commercial 
North (C-N).  The intention is work is to re-draw the property line between 44K1 and 
44K2 resulting two lots each comprised of 4.614 acres and rezone those lots that 
presently are residential to commercial. 

Notice is being sent to all Ephraim property owners and neighboring municipalities 
within 300’.  Comments may be made in person at the meeting or in writing to be 
received no later than 3:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 14, 2024.  Written comments via email 
at bbristol@ephraim.wi.gov will also be accepted.  All written comments must include 
name and address of commenting residents. 

Date: 5 / 3 /2024 

     Andrea Collak, Clerk   X Village Administrative Office 
   X Visitors’ Center 
   X Post Office 

 Kim Roberts, Deputy Clerk    X Website: ephraim.wi.gov 
   X Emailed to WDOR Radio 
   X Emailed to Peninsula Pulse 

Administrative Office   10005 Norway Road    PO Box 138     Ephraim  WI  54211 
Phone: (920) 854-5501    Fax: (920) 854-2072     E-Mail: office@ephraim.wi.gov 

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM 
FOUNDED 1853 

mailto:bbristol@ephraim.wi.gov


Public hearing regarding Rezoning of Parcels 121-01-12312744K1, 121-01-
12312744K2 from Rural Residential to Commercial North 
Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 7:00 p.m. 
Ephraim Village Hall - 9996 Water St. 

At the regularly scheduled meeting of the Ephraim Board of Trustees on Tuesday, May 
14, 2024 at 7:00 p.m, the board will be having a public hearing to consider a zoning 
change for the following: 

• All of parcel 121-01-12312744K1
• All of parcel 121-01-12312744K2

These parcels are proposed to be changed from Rural Residential (R-R) to Commercial 
North (C-N).  The intention is work is to re-draw the property line between 44K1 and 
44K2 resulting two lots each comprised of 4.614 acres and rezone those lots that 
presently are residential to commercial. 

Notice is being sent to all Ephraim property owners and neighboring municipalities 
within 300’.  Comments may be made in person at the meeting or in writing to be 
received no later than 3:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 14, 2024.  Written comments via email 
at bbristol@ephraim.wi.gov will also be accepted.  All written comments must include 
name and address of commenting residents. 

Date: 5 / 3 /2024 

     Andrea Collak, Clerk   X Village Administrative Office 
   X Visitors’ Center 
   X Post Office 

 Kim Roberts, Deputy Clerk    X Website: ephraim.wi.gov 
   X Emailed to WDOR Radio 
   X Emailed to Peninsula Pulse 

Administrative Office   10005 Norway Road    PO Box 138     Ephraim  WI  54211 
Phone: (920) 854-5501    Fax: (920) 854-2072     E-Mail: office@ephraim.wi.gov 

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM 
FOUNDED 1853 

mailto:bbristol@ephraim.wi.gov
















 

DOOR COUNTY YMCA www.doorcountyymca.org 
STURGEON BAY PROGRAM CENTER 1900 Michigan Street, Sturgeon Bay, WI  54235  P  920 743 4949  F 920 743 8812 
NORTHERN DOOR PROGRAM CENTER 3866 Gibraltar Road, Fish Creek, WI  54212  P 920 868 3660 F 920 868 9970  
 

 
 
                                               
 
 
 Door County YMCA 2024 Proposal 

 
April 12, 2024 
 
Dear Village of Ephraim Board Members, 
 
The Door County YMCA has been partnering with Ephraim to offer summer yoga classes, on Anderson 
Dock, for the last couple of years and we would like to offer it again this summer along with a Pilates class. 
We would like to continue with the same Hatha Yoga class that we have been offering. Hatha Yoga is the 
foundation of which all modern yoga was built. In this 60 minute, all levels class, accessible yoga postures 
are practiced to align, strengthen and promote flexibility in the body. Both meditation and breathing 
techniques are used throughout. The Pilates class we are proposing would be a 45 minute class.  Mat 
Pilates is a breath focused class that focuses on your core muscles while also training your arms and legs. 
Enhance your control, stability, coordination, endurance, balance, strength and flexibility.  Both classes will 
be taught by a trained YMCA instructor who will be equipped with the following: 
 

• First Aid Kits 
• Yoga Mats and straps 

 
Our proposal is to offer Pilates and Yoga in the green space by Anderson Dock. The YMCA would handle all 
registrations, waiver of liability forms that will be signed by any drop in participant, and all marketing 
materials, created by our marketing department. For marketing purposes we will include both the YMCA 
and Village of Ephraim logos on all marketing materials. We propose the following: 
 
Class: Yoga                                                                                  Class: Pilates 
Dates: Mondays June 17-August 19                                       Dates: Mondays June 17-August 19 
Time: 8:15a.m.-9:00a.m.                                                          Time: 9:15a.m.-10:00a.m. 
Fee: $47.00/Session Y Members/Ephraim Residents   Fee: $47.00/Session Y Members/Ephraim Resident 
        $93.50/Session Community Members                             $93.50/Session Community Members 
        $10.00 Drop In Fee/Per Class                                             $10.00 Drop in Fee/Per Class 
 
We would request a minimal fee (or no fee) to be charged to us for utilizing Anderson Dock. Ephraim 
Residents will be charged the YMCA member rate regardless if they are current members or not. We are 
looking forward to partnering again with the Village of Ephraim. If you have any questions, please feel free 
to reach out to me at hbutenhoff@doorcountyymca.org. 
 



 

DOOR COUNTY YMCA www.doorcountyymca.org 
STURGEON BAY PROGRAM CENTER 1900 Michigan Street, Sturgeon Bay, WI  54235  P  920 743 4949  F 920 743 8812 
NORTHERN DOOR PROGRAM CENTER 3866 Gibraltar Road, Fish Creek, WI  54212  P 920 868 3660 F 920 868 9970  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Holly Butenhoff 
Executive Director, 
Kane Center YMCA (Fish Creek) 
 
 
 
 
 



Request for Proposal 
 

Design and Construction Engineering Services 
Anderson Dock Project 

 
 
The Village of Ephraim is seeking Proposals for professional engineering services for their Anderson 
Dock Project at 3083 Anderson Ln in Ephraim. The Village intends to use a qualification-based 
selection process for the procurement of engineering services.  
 

 
Introduction and Project History 
 
First built in 1858 by Aslag Anderson, the dock and warehouse at 3083 Anderson Ln in Ephraim are on 
the State and National Registers of Historic Places.  Owned, maintained, and operated by the Village of 
Ephraim, the facility is a dock used for a combination of Village-run marina and public access and 
recreation, a public parking lot, a grass courtyard and a warehouse currently leased as an art 
gallery.  The Anderson Store is the second building on the property, located along Water Street, and is 
not included in the Project.   
 
Rising water levels, that set many monthly records a few years ago, prompted Village officials to look 
into the protection and issues present at Anderson Dock back in 2018 and 2019.  Investigation and 
reporting began in 2019 with staff work and continued until the end of 2022 with a final 
recommendation report to the Board of Trustees created by the Village’s Capital Projects Ad-hoc 
Committee.  
 
The Village has identified deteriorating steel and concrete along the dock, and deteriorated wood along 
the bottom of the warehouse walls.  The Village also has identified desired improvements to surface 
drainage, sanitary and marina facilities to be included in this project.  The Village has contracted for 
evaluations of the concrete and steel sheet pile on the dock, and structural degradation and remediation 
of the warehouse, (reports of which are included as attachments.)  The Village Board of Trustees has 
agreed that raising the overall elevation of the dock by ten (10) inches at the dock’s perimeter would be 
acceptable. 
 
 
Scope of Work 
 
The Project will include the design and construction engineering of repairs to and new construction on 
the dock, warehouse and parking lot as deemed necessary.  All concrete surfaces will be replaced and/or 
resurfaced with new concrete, and minimally sloped providing effective drainage away from the 
warehouse and off the dock pedestrian surfaces.  Concrete work to include new tiebacks for future sheet 
piling connection.  Existing sheet piling will be analyzed, and necessary repairs and/or replacement will 
be considered.  Repairs shall be made to the warehouse to restore structural integrity, and the sewage 
grinder pit and pumps serving the attached restrooms, shower and utility rooms shall be replaced.  The 
elevation of the grass courtyard shall remain the same as the surrounding concrete.  Movable wave 
attenuation on top of the dock along North dock face will be evaluated. 



 
A new utility trench providing water, electrical, and communication service to the warehouse and the 
marina slips along the shoreside dock face shall also be included.  In addition, the corner dock face at 
the intersection of the shoreside and main docks shall be raised to avoid submergence during periods of 
high lake water level, while maintaining limited public access, and continued memorial plaque display. 
Site survey to be completed up to the ROW of STH42. Parking lot drainage to be analyzed and 
improvement recommendations made. 
 
Coordination with the WisDNR and applicable historic registry agencies. 
 

• Concrete replacement or resurfacing. 
• Sheet pile tiebacks installed in new concrete. 
• Sheet pile analysis and necessary repairs/replacement. 
• Warehouse repair (building elevation may change if exterior deck/concrete elevation 

changes) 
• Utilities and utility rooms outside and inside the building to be replaced. 
• Wave attenuation 
• Replacement of and addition of new utility trenches serving marina and building. 
• Raising of corner dock. 
• Site survey. 
• Drainage improvements. 

 
 
Project Schedule 
 
Preliminary Design (60% plans) with a detailed cost estimate will be due 180 days following notice-to-
proceed. Once comments are provided from the Village, WisDNR, and applicable historic registry 
agencies, final plans, specifications and cost estimates will be due in 90 days.  
 
The Village wishes to undertake as much construction as possible in "off-season" time, i.e. from October 
15 to May 15, to avoid conflicts with art gallery and marina operating schedules and public use. 
 
 
 
Proposal Requirements 
 
Business Organization - name and address of firm, areas of expertise and a brief history of the firm 
along with size and office locations. Include information on the structure and business operation of your 
firm. Provide name and contact information of contact person in the firm for this proposal. Extensive 
boiler plate information on firm is not to be included. 
 
Experience and Capabilities - Provide information on the experience and types of professional 
services available at your firm, including the number of full time employees in each service with their 
office locations. Specifically addressing the services required for the project.  Once again, do not 
include extensive boiler plate information. 
 



Provide up to five projects your firm has completed in the last seven years that are similar to the 
Anderson Dock Project. Please limit project description to one page each. Examples with historic 
buildings and/or docks are preferable. Indicate which of the Proposed Staff below worked on these 
projects. Please also include a client contact person for each project the Village could contact for a 
reference check. 
 
Proposed Staff - Include a resume, no more than 2 pages each, for each of your staff to be assigned 
to the project. Indicate which of the sample projects above this person was involved with and their role. 
Provide resumes for the following positions and indicate the office out of which they work: 
- Project Manager 
- Structural Engineer 
- Electrical Engineer 
- Construction Engineer 
- Historic Building Architect 
- Port & Marine Engineer 
 
 
Proposed Use of Subconsultants - Indicate if any Subconsultant will be utilized by your firm for this 
project. If so, provide a description of your relationship with this Subconsultant along with project 
names, dates and contract. Provide a resume similar to the ones above for any staff to be provided by 
the Subconsultant. 
 
Project Approach - Provide a detailed project approach (up to eight pages in length) for both the 
design and construction engineering.  
 
Proposed Project Schedule - Provide a detailed schedule for the design and construction portions 
of the project. Based upon your experience with the WisDNR, and applicable historic registry agencies, 
include estimated review periods. Please comment on the Project Schedule presented by the Village 
above. 
 
Method of Compensation - Compensation for the professional engineering services will be based on 
an hourly billing rate with a “not-to-exceed” limit. Please indicate if your firm is agreeable to this method 
of compensation. The contract will be directly with the Village of Ephraim, and paid for with Village 
funds. Provide the Billing Rates for each of the individuals assigned to the project. 
 
 
 
Submittal Requirements 
 
Please submit one original and 5 paper copies, along with an electronic copy (.pdf), no later than 3 pm 
on Friday, January 5, 2018. Please mark “Proposal for Village of Ephraim Highway 42 Streetscape 
Project” on the envelope. The mailing and hand delivered address is: 
                                        
 
Village of Ephraim 
Brent Bristol, Village Administrator 
10005 Norway 
Ephraim, WI  54211 
 
 



 
 
Term and Conditions 
 
The Village reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals or portions thereof without stated 
cause. Upon selection of a finalist, the Village by its proper officials shall attempt to negotiate and reach 
a final agreement with the finalist. If the Village, for any reason, is unable to reach a final agreement 
with this finalist; the Village then reserves the right to reject such finalist and negotiate a final 
agreement with another finalist who has the next most viable proposal. The Village may also elect to 
reject all proposals and re-issue a new RFP.  
 
The Village reserves the right to obtain clarification of any point in a consultant’s proposal or obtain 
additional information. Any request for clarification or other correspondence related to the RFP shall be 
in writing or email, and a response shall be provided within two (2) business days.  
 
The Village reserves the right to waive any formalities, defects, or irregularities, in any proposal, 
response, and/or submittal where the acceptance, rejection, or waiving of such is in the best interests of 
the Village. The Village reserves the right to disqualify any proposal, before or after opening, upon 
evidence of collusion, intent to defraud, or any other illegal practice on the part of the consultant. 
 
Please be aware that it is the Village’s policy not to compensate a consultant for any time or expenses 
incurred during the selection or negotiation process. The Consultant’s cost to do the work will not be 
considering during the selection process, but will negotiate during the development of the scope and 
contract”. 
 
Contact Person 
 
Questions about the RFP or the project should be directed to Brent Bristol at (920) 854-5501 or 
bbristol@ephraim-wisconsin.com. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:bbristol@ephraim-wisconsin.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature Block 
 
Note: Please return this page with your proposal.  
 
The undersigned, an authorized agent of his/her company, hereby certifies:  
(   ) the receipt of this letter to solicit bids (on this date): ________________  

(   ) familiarization with all terms, conditions, and specifications herein stated,  

(   ) company is qualified to perform work and services as proposed,  

(   ) that the proposal submitted is valid until ___________________________ (date). 

 

 ___________________________________  ___________________________________  
Company Name Authorized Signature 
 
 ___________________________________  ___________________________________  
Mailing Address Printed Name 
 
 ___________________________________  ___________________________________  
City, State, Zip Title  
 
 ___________________________________  ___________________________________  
Type of Entity (S-Corp, LLC, etc.) Phone Number 
 
 ___________________________________  ___________________________________  
Web Site Email Address  



Maintenance Garage Expansion 
  

November 2022 
 
 
 
 

 

The Capital Projects Ad-Hoc Committee (CPAHC) worked with our maintenance staff 
(Brad Rasmussan, Justin MacDonald and Russ Salfi) regarding the issues with our 
maintenance garage. The current building was built in 1990 and an addition to the west 
side was constructed in 2000. The overall space is 2400 SF. The maintenance garage is 
heated with a single ceiling heater and includes the shop for projects and limited space 
to work on the vehicles and equipment. 

 
A pole barn was added to the southwest of the maintenance building in 2002. The 
unheated pole barn is used for dry storage of materials (sand and salt) and also 
equipment. 

 
The maintenance garage was a basic building when constructed. Although insulated, 
the large overhead doors are fiberglass without insulation. The windows are not energy 
efficient. The single overhead heater is not able to heat the space to a workable 
environment. The garage originally housed one employee, with just a few of pieces of 
equipment. 

 
Current building issues include: 

- Lack of well heated workspace; the building contains only a single ceiling heater 
- Lack of vehicle storage space; currently in the winter vehicles completely fill the 

space and have to be removed to create workspace 
- Lack of Storage; certain supplies are stored off-site and some equipment is stored in 

our Wastewater Treatment Plant 
- Lack of break room, safety station and adequate bathroom 
- Poor indoor lighting and lack of safe storage for items such as gasoline 
- Limited garage door width (10’), making it difficult to take trucks in and out with plows 

attached. 
 
 
Scope of Work 

 
 
The Village contracted with Keller Planners/ Architects/ Builders to provide preliminary 
planning and design, as well as a cost estimate for the project. They prepared three 
alternate plans. 



The first plan includes a 1600 SF addition on the north side of the existing building. Part of the 
existing space will be remodeled to provide for an office, bathroom and break room. The new 
addition will include 3 bays with doors on the north side. However, the garage doors will still be 
limited to 10’ wide. There will be a small mezzanine area (280SF) for storage in the addition. The 
2022 cost estimate includes design, construction management fees, approvals and permits, 
building and site work plus a $50,000 contingency. The cost estimate is $490,000. 

 
The second plan includes a 2500 SF addition to the north, basically doubling the size of the existing 
building. The three new garage doors will be 14’ wide, and two of the 10’ doors in the original 
garage will be replaced with an 18’ door. There will be a small mezzanine area (272 SF) for storage 
in the addition. There will also be a 10’ opening connecting the original garage to the addition. The 
2022 cost estimate is $960,000. 

 
Keller also provided a plan and cost estimate for an addition to our Pole Barn. The 900 SF addition 
will provide cold storage for materials and equipment. The cost estimate is $160,000. With either the 
2500 SF addition or a new maintenance garage building, the pole barn addition will not be required. 

 
An additional cost that needs to be considered is new pavement. Much of the pavement currently on 
the site is in poor condition. The pavement serves both the Wastewater Treatment Plant as well as 
the maintenance garage, so the cost will most likely be split. The cost estimate to replace all the 
pavement is $125,000. 
 

 
Option #1 

 
Option #1 would be the demolition of the existing building and replacing it with a new Maintenance 
Garage. In some ways, the existing building is at the end of its useful life. It was basic construction 
when it was built more than 30 years ago, and rehabbing it for a future 30 year life may not be cost 
effective. The current windows are inexpensive low efficiency units. As mentioned before, the 
existing doors are fiberglass with no insulation.  

 
A new building will provide the types of spaces we need now and in the foreseeable future. The 
new garage will have four 14’ high lift garage doors on the south side and three similar doors on the 
north side for drive-thru operations. There will be a mezzanine level for storage above the office 
space (1000 SF). The 2022 cost estimate is $1,500,000. 
 
 
 
 
Additional Supporting Documents 

 
1. Keller Municipal Garage Addition & Remodel (1600 SF) 
2. Keller Municipal Garage Addition & Remodel (2500 SF) 
3. Keller Municipal Garage Replacement (5000 SF) 
4. Keller Municipal Pole Building Addition 











4
0
'-
0
"

40'-0"

PROPOSED
ADDITION

EXISTING 
BUILDING

2
0
'-
0
"

3
0
'-
0
"

BUILDING CODE ANALYSIS

PROJECT ADDRESS

Street, City, State, Zip

APPLICABLE CODES

2015 International Building Code (w/ WI Amendments)
ASHRE Standard 90.1-2013
2015 IEBC (Level # Alteration)

OCCUPANCY

?-?
Accessory Use

?-?
Incedental Use

----
High-Piled Combustible Storage YES/NO
Hazardouse Materials YES/NO

Multiple Control Areas YES/NO

HEIGHT & AREA

Building Height: -'--" Maximum Allowed: -'--"
Number of Stories: -- Maximum Allowed: --
Total Building Area: -,--- S.F. Maximum Allowed: -,--- S.F.
Total Fire Area: -,--- S.F. Maximum Allowed: -,--- S.F.
Mixed/Separated Occupancies
Unlimited Area Building YES/NO

CONSTRUCTION TYPE

Construction Classification ?B
Fire Separation Distance -'--"

FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS

Assumed Sprinkler Type --
Fire Alarm System YES/NO

MEANS OF EGRESS

Occupant Load --
Panic Hardware YES/NO

STRUCTURAL DESIGN

Risk Category --
Roof Live Load -- psf
Second Floor/Mezz Live Load -- psf
Ground Snow Load -- psf    Exposure Factor  --    Thermal Factor  -
Wind Load  -- MPH     Exposure Category  --
Seismic Site Class  --

PLUMBING SYSTEMS

Mens WC Required YES/NO
Womens WC Required YES/NO
Drinking Fountain YES/NO
Other Source YES/NO

MECHANICAL SYSTEMS

X

SITE INFORMATION

SITE CONTENT

Building Size -,--- S.F. -.--%
Hard Surface -,--- S.F. -.--%
Green Space -,--- S.F. -.--%
Parcel Size (Approx.) -,--- S.F. -.-- Acres
Parking Provided -- Stalls
Area of Disturbance -,--- S.F.

ZONING

Property Zoning --
Setbacks FY -'--"  SY -'--"  RY -'--"
Hard Surface Setback -'--"
Coverage Limit --%
Greenspace Requirement --%
Parking Required -- Stalls
Refuse Enclosure YES/NO
RTU SCREENING YES/NO

PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:

DATE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 -

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

WISCONSIN

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

C1.0
11-30-2020

K. CLAFLIN

J. STOJKE

JHS

-------

-------

-------

-------

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 G

A
R

A
G

E
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 F

O
R

:

E
F

P
H

R
A

IM

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F
 E

P
H

R
A

IM

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM

MUNICIPAL GARAGE ADDITION FOR:

EFPHRAIM

1" = 30'-0"

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN

NORTH

SHEET INDEX

C1.0 SITE PLAN

A1.0 FLOOR PLAN

A2.0 ELEVATIONS

THE LOT DIMENSIONS AND BEARINGS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN
ARE INTERPRETED VALUES.  FOLLOW UP INVESTIGATION WITH STATE
AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND/OR WITH CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DATA
WHEN AVAILABLE IS REQUIRED.

0' 20' 40' 80' 160'

1

2

3

4

5

6



FINISH FLOOR

100' - 0"

BTM GRADE BEAM

99' - 0"

HIGH EXIST. EAVE HT.

113' - 0"

ADDITION EAVE HT.

114' - 0"

FINISH FLOOR

100' - 0"

LOW EXIST. EAVE HT.

110' - 6"

BTM GRADE BEAM

99' - 0"

HIGH EXIST. EAVE HT.

113' - 0"

ADDITION EAVE HT.

114' - 0"

FINISH FLOOR

100' - 0"

BTM GRADE BEAM

99' - 0"

ADDITION EAVE HT.

114' - 0"

PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:

DATE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 -

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

A2.0
11-30-2020

K. CLAFLIN

J. STOJKE

JHS

-------

-------

-------

-------

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 G

A
R

A
G

E
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 F

O
R

:

E
F

P
H

R
A

IM

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F
 E

P
H

R
A

IM

1/8" = 1'-0"

EAST ELEVATION

1/4" = 1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION

1

2

3

4

5

6

3D View from North



80'-0"

3
0

'-
0

"

40'-0"

2'-6" 10'-0" 2'-6" 10'-0" 2'-6" 10'-0" 2'-6"

10'-0"x12'-0" OH DOOR 10'-0"x12'-0" OH DOOR 10'-0"x12'-0" OH DOOR

4
0

'-
0

"
5
'-
0
"

5
'-
6

"

6'-0"

4'x7' OPNG

4
'x

7
' O

P
N

G

6" CONCRETE GRADE BEAM SLAB 
REINFORCED AS REQUIRED WITH REBAR

5'-0"x40'-0" THICKEND EDGE 
SLAB REIFORCED AS 
REQUIRED WITH REBAR

MEZZANINE AND STAIR

ADD NEW RESTROOM AND BREAK ROOM

TYPICAL EXISTING WALL

DEMO WALLS

WALL KEY

NEW WALL/FURRING

NEW MASONRY/
VENEER WALL

NEW COOLER/
FREEZER WALLS

NEW FOUNDATION WALL

FIRE WALL OR
FIRE BARRIER

PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:

DATE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 -

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

A1.0
11-30-2020

K. CLAFLIN

J. STOJKE

JHS

-------

-------

-------

-------

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 G

A
R

A
G

E
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 F

O
R

:

E
F

P
H

R
A

IM

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F
 E

P
H

R
A

IM

1/4" = 1'-0"

FLOOR PLAN

NORTH

1

2

3

4

5

6



 
 
 
 

 

Page 1 

PHONE 
920·766·5795     1·800·236·2534 

FAX 
920·766·5004 

WEB SITE 
www.kellerbuilds.com 

ADDRESS 
P.O. Box 620, Kaukauna, WI 54130-0620 

Planners | Architects | Builders 
   Offices in Fox Cities, Madison, 
       Milwaukee, & Wausau 

Village of Ephraim – Public Works Garage (Addition and Remodel) 
Preliminary Budget Estimate 

 
Revised 10/25/22 

 
Keller Inc. is pleased to provide the Village of Ephraim Fire Department with preliminary plans and a Budget 
Estimate for an addition and remodel to their existing Public Works Garage. The proposed addition and 
remodel would be located at 10285 Townline Drive.  The Proposed addition would be attached to the North 
side of the Existing Public Works Garage. Keller Architect Jim Stojke and Project Manager Kelly Claflin 
initially met with met with Public Works Director Russ Salfi and Brad Rasmusson on Sept. 3, 2020 to 
determine needs for preliminary design.  Subsequent meetings with Russ Salfi, Brad Rasmusson and Justin 
MacDonald occurred on October 27, 2020 to present Prelimianry plans for review and comment. The 
Village Board of Trustees prepared a Capital Improvement list of projects in December of 2020.  Based on 
the list of projects and a heavy cost to do Village shoreline improvements the Public Works Project and Fire 
Station project were to be put on the shelf for a few years.  In April of 2022 Russ Salfi contacted Kelly Claflin 
to inform him that the Ad Hoc Project Committee has now started the process of identifying which capital 
improvement projects to proceed with and would like to meet again to make a few changes to the previous 
plans.    
 
Russ Salfi requested a meeting with Keller and the Ad Hoc Committee members on site on May 4, 2022 to 
review the scope of the project where left off and discuss plan changes for both the Maintenance Building 
Fire Station project. The Committee was going to review the comments of the meeting and meet internally 
to prioritize the projects and discuss potential plan changes prior to Keller Budgeting the project. Minor 
Changes to the plans were then made by Keller and Keller was directed to prepare the Preliminary Budget 
estimate from those revised plans.  The Preliminary Budget estimate is based on Revised Preliminary 
drawings C1.0, A1.0, A2.0 dated 9/15/22 prepared by Keller, Inc.   
 
It is important to note that this is a preliminary budget estimate. It is also very important to note that the 
Construction industry has experienced unprecedented cost increases in the past two years due to the 
pandemic and inflation.  If the Village of Ephraim decides to move forward with the project the Village would 
be required to prepare state approved design documents and issue for competitive bidding per State 
Statutes.  Actual costs may be higher or lower and will not be known until bid date. The Budget was also 
prepared without Civil Engineering drawings.  An experienced Keller Estimator budgeted the project as if we 
were pricing the project for Bidding.  The remainder of the budget was prepared with assistance of 
subcontractors that Keller has used for similar projects.  Quantity takeoffs for building materials and labor 
along with comparable similar projects designed and constructed recently by Keller were used to complete 
the budget estimate.    
 
No definitive time frame has been established when the project would be approved.  For budget estimating 
purposes however, it was assumed that the Design Process could start in November of 2022 and the 
earliest construction could start is Spring of 2023 and be completed by end of year 2023. 
 
Should the project Design be started later than November 2022 the Budget would have to be adjusted 
accordingly based on current market conditions.  
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Page 2 

The Preliminary Budget estimate is intended to be all inclusive.  Specifically included are State approved 
Architectural Design, Structural Design, Plumbing Design, HVAC Design Electrical Design, Civil 
Engineering and Construction Management fees, General Condition costs, State Plan approval and Permit 
fees, Building and Site work costs, and a construction contingency allowance of $75,000.00  
 
Project Scope 
 

• Excavate and Grading for building and site improvements 
• Demolition of existing to receive new addition 
• Building and Site work staking 
• Storm Sewer, Water and Sanitary connections 
• Asphalt paving 
• Building and Site Concrete  
• Wood framed Rough carpentry 
• Finish Carpentry 
• Gypsum Board and Plastering 
• Cabinets and countertops 
• Landscape allowance of $2,000 
• Insulation and Poly 
• Asphalt roof Shingles 
• Soffit & Fascia with gutters and downspouts 
• Interior Masonry Firewall 
• Hollow metal doors and frames 
• Overhead doors with Operators 
• Acoustical ceiling 
• Interior Trim, Doors and Hardware 
• Toilet Accessories 
• Flooring 
• Painted Drywall wall finish in Toilet Rom and Breakroom 
• HVAC  
• Electrical 
• Plumbing 
• 3 Ft. high Partial wall liner panel and Ceiling liner panel in shop area.  

 
Estimated Budget Range to Design and Construct a new 2,500 sq. ft. Addition 

and remodel portion of existing space into Breakroom and Toilet room.  
Budget Range = $925,000 - $965,000 

 
 
Option #1: Asphalt Paving from Townline Road Inc. loop around Drop off Dump rd. Budget =  $124,740.00 
Option # 2: Add Asphalt paving in entire area of Pole Building Add $8,775.00 
Option # 3: Add Asphalt paving for Alt. #1 Pave between Drive around and Pole Building Add $65,790.00  
Option # 4: Add Asphalt paving around wastewater plant and (2) ramps Add $73,360.00 
 
 
 
Kelly Claflin 
Keller Construction Project Manager 



_
5
0
'-
0
" PROPOSED

ADDITION

EXISTING 
BUILDING

2
0
'-
0
"

3
0
'-
0
"

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

1
5
X

6
0

ALT #1 TO INSTALL 6" ASPHALT 
AND BASE AS NEEDED FOR 
11,600 SF RECYCLING AREA

2
0
'-
0
"

15'-0"

6
0
'-
0
"

NEW 6" 
ASPHALT
(+/- 2,300 SF)

5
'-
0
"

ALT #2 ADDED GRAVEL AREA (750 SF)

1
0
'-
0
"

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 4
0
x
6
0

REINFORCING REQUIRED AT EXISTING 
FOR ADDITIONAL SNOW LOAD ADDED 
TO ROOF FROM ADDITION

BUILDING CODE ANALYSIS

PROJECT ADDRESS

10,285 Townline Rd. Ephraim, WI 54211

APPLICABLE CODES

2015 International Building Code (w/ WI Amendments)
ASHRE Standard 90.1-2013
2015 IEBC (Level #3 Addition)

OCCUPANCY

S1-STORAGE REPAIR
Accessory Use

B
Incedental Use

N/A
High-Piled Combustible Storage NO
Hazardouse Materials NO

HEIGHT & AREA

Building Height: 15'-4"
Number of Stories: 1     
Total Building Area: VARIES Maximum Allowed: 15,750 S.F.
Total Fire Area: VARIES Maximum Allowed:   5,000 S.F.
Mixed Occupancies YES
Unlimited Area Building NO

CONSTRUCTION TYPE

Construction Classification 2B
Fire Separation Distance <40'-0"

FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS

Assumed Sprinkler Type N/A
Fire Alarm System NO

MEANS OF EGRESS

Occupant Load 2
Panic Hardware NO

STRUCTURAL DESIGN

Risk Category 2
Roof Live Load -- psf
Second Floor/Mezz Live Load -- psf
Ground Snow Load 40 psf    Exposure Factor  --    Thermal Factor  -
Wind Load  90 MPH     Exposure Category  --
Seismic Site Class  --

PLUMBING SYSTEMS

Mens WC Required YES
Womens WC Required NO
Drinking Fountain YES (BOTTLE)
Other Source

MECHANICAL SYSTEMS

X

SITE INFORMATION

SITE CONTENT

Building Size -,--- S.F. -.--%
Hard Surface -,--- S.F. -.--%
Green Space -,--- S.F. -.--%
Parcel Size (Approx.) -,--- S.F. -.-- Acres
Parking Provided -- Stalls
Area of Disturbance -,--- S.F.

ZONING

Property Zoning --
Setbacks FY -'--"  SY -'--"  RY -'--"
Hard Surface Setback -'--"
Coverage Limit --%
Greenspace Requirement --%
Parking Required -- Stalls
Refuse Enclosure YES/NO
RTU SCREENING YES/NO

BUILDING INFORMATION

Exisiting Building Size 4,883 S.F. 61%
Proposed Bulding Addition Size 3,063 S.F. 39%
Total Size 7,946 S.F. 100%

PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:

DATE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 -

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

WISCONSIN

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

C1.0
10.03.2022

K. CLAFLIN

J. STOJKE

JHS

-------

-------

P20294

-------

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 G

A
R

A
G

E
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 F

O
R

:

E
F

P
H

R
A

IM
,

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F
 E

P
H

R
A

IM

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM

MUNICIPAL GARAGE ADDITION FOR:

EFPHRAIM,

1" = 30'-0"

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN

NORTH

SHEET INDEX

C1.0 SITE PLAN

A1.0 FLOOR PLAN

A2.0 ELEVATIONS

A3.0 SECTIONS

THE LOT DIMENSIONS AND BEARINGS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN
ARE INTERPRETED VALUES.  FOLLOW UP INVESTIGATION WITH STATE
AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND/OR WITH CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DATA
WHEN AVAILABLE IS REQUIRED.

0' 15' 30' 60' 120'

1 06/29/2021 JHS

2 09/15/2022 R. ROSE

3

4

5

6



U
P

3
0

'-
0

"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
6
"

6'-0"

4'x7' OPENING

4
'x

7
' 
O

P
E

N
IN

G

6" CONCRETE GRADE BEAM SLAB 
REINFORCED AS REQUIRED WITH REBAR

5'-0"x40'-0" THICKEND EDGE SLAB 
REIFORCED AS REQUIRED WITH REBAR

8'-9 5/8"

5
'-
8
"

EXISTING

OFFICE

E03

TOILET

100

BREAK

ROOM

102

EXISTING

WAREHOUSE

E02

EXISTING

VEHICLE

STORAGE

E01

NEW SHOP

104

VEST.

103

MECH.

101

SINK
REF.
(BY OWNER)

UPPER/LOWER
CABINETS

UPPER/LOWER
CABINETS

TABLE& 
CHAIRS
(BY OWNER)

3'-0"x7'-0"

104D

3
'-
0
"x

7
'-
0
"

1
0
3

3'-0"x7'-0"

102

3
'-
0
"x

7
'-
0
"

1
0
0

3'-0"x7'-0"

101

14'-0" x 14'-0" O.H. DOOR

104A

14'-0" x 14'-0" O.H. DOOR

104B

14'-0" x 14'-0" O.H. DOOR

104C

5
0
'-
0
"

2'-0" 14'-0" 2'-0" 14'-0" 2'-0" 14'-0" 2'-0"

50'-0"

34'-0"

8
'-
0
"

12'-0" 12'-0" 10'-0"

18'-0" X 8'-0" O.H. DOOR

E02

2
X

1
2
 J

O
IS

T
S

 A
T

 1
2
" 

O
.C

. 
W

/ 
3
/4

" 
P

L
Y

W
O

O
D

 T
&

G
 D

E
C

K

6X6 POSTS @ 12' O.C.

(2) 1-3/4" X 14-1/2" LVL HEADERS

EXISTING

REPLACE (2) 10'X8' O.H. DOORS 
W/ (1) 18' X 8' O.H. DOOR 

STAIR UP TO MEZZANINE 
AT 9'-0" A.F.F.

1

A3.0

REPLACE HEADER WITH TRIPLE 
11-1/4" LVL FOR LARGER OPENING

10'-0" x 12'-0" O.H. DOOR

NEW 10'X12' OPENING 
IN EXISTING WALL

79'-9"

FINISH FLOOR - 100'-0"

MEZZANINE - 109'-0"

EXISTING FLOOT - 100'-0"

10'-0" x 12'-0" O.H. DOOR 10'-0" x 12'-0" O.H. DOOR

TYPICAL EXISTING WALL

DEMO WALLS

WALL KEY

NEW WALL/FURRING

NEW MASONRY/
VENEER WALL

NEW COOLER/
FREEZER WALLS

NEW FOUNDATION WALL

FIRE WALL OR
FIRE BARRIER

PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:

DATE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 -

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

A1.0
10.03.2022

K. CLAFLIN

J. STOJKE

JHS

-------

-------

P20294

-------

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 G

A
R

A
G

E
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 F

O
R

:

E
F

P
H

R
A

IM
,

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F
 E

P
H

R
A

IM

3/16" = 1'-0"

FLOOR PLAN

NORTH

1 06/29/2021 JHS

2 09/15/2022 R. ROSE

3

4

5

6



FINISH FLOOR

100' - 0"

B/O GRADE BEAM

98' - 4"

ADDITON BEARING HEIGHT

116' - 6"

EXISTING ADDITION

SHINGLE ROOF

GUTTERS AND DOWNSPOUTS 

METAL ARCH. PANEL

FINISH FLOOR

100' - 0"

B/O GRADE BEAM

98' - 4"

ADDITON BEARING HEIGHT

116' - 6"

3:12 SLOPESHINGLE ROOF

GUTTERS AND DOWNSPOUTS 

METAL ARCH. PANEL

FASCIA TRIM

FINISH FLOOR

100' - 0"

B/O GRADE BEAM

98' - 4"

ADDITON BEARING HEIGHT

116' - 6"

3:12 SLOPE

SHINGLE ROOF

GUTTERS AND DOWNSPOUTS 

METAL ARCH. PANEL

ADDITION BEYOND

FASCIA TRIM

FINISH FLOOR

100' - 0"

B/O GRADE BEAM

98' - 4"

ADDITON BEARING HEIGHT

116' - 6"

3:12 SLOPE

EXISTINGADDITION

SHINGLE ROOF

GUTTERS AND DOWNSPOUTS 

METAL ARCH. PANEL

PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:

DATE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 -

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

A2.0
10.03.2022

K. CLAFLIN

J. STOJKE

JHS

-------

-------

P20294

-------

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 G

A
R

A
G

E
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 F

O
R

:

E
F

P
H

R
A

IM
,

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F
 E

P
H

R
A

IM

1/8" = 1'-0"

EAST ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION

1 06/29/2021 JHS

2 09/15/2022 R. ROSE

3

4

5

6



FINISH FLOOR

100' - 0"

ADDITON BEARING HEIGHT

116' - 6"

6" CONCRETE SLAB

1 1/2" RIGID INSULATION 
(CUT OFF 4'-0" SHEET -
2'-0" MINIMUM)

1 1/2" RIGID INSULATION
(R7.5)

FRP INSULATION COVER

FINISHED BASE ANGLE

12" WIDE x 18" DEEP INCULATED 
GRADE BEAM W/ REINFORCING 

PER FINAL ENGINEERING

7/16" PLYWOOD 
LINER TO CEILING

FABRAL 29 GA. LINER

1" ZIP SHEATHING

R38 BLOWN INS. W/ 
VAPOR BARRIER

STEEL CEILING PANEL

GUTTER W/ DOWNSPOUTS 
AS REQUIRED

FLASHING OVER 
2x FASCIA BOARD

TRIPLE TOP PLATE

PROPER VENTING

"ASPHALT" SHINGLES" ON 
15# FELT ON 1/2" ROOF 
SHEATHING W/ "H" CLIPS

H
E

E
L

1
1
"

6 MIL POLY VAPOR 
BARRIER OVER 2x8 WOOD

STUD WALL 16" O.C. W/
FIBERGLASS INSULATION (R19)

3:12 SLOPE

RIDGE VENTING

ALUM. VENTED SOFFIT

PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:

DATE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 -

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

A3.0
10.03.2022

K. CLAFLIN

J. STOJKE

JHS

-------

-------

P20294

-------

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 G

A
R

A
G

E
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 F

O
R

:

E
F

P
H

R
A

IM
,

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F
 E

P
H

R
A

IM

3/8" = 1'-0"

CROSS SECTION

1 06/29/2021 JHS

2 09/15/2022 R. ROSE

3

4

5

6



 
 
 
 

 

Page 1 

PHONE 
920·766·5795     1·800·236·2534 

FAX 
920·766·5004 

WEB SITE 
www.kellerbuilds.com 

ADDRESS 
P.O. Box 620, Kaukauna, WI 54130-0620 

Planners | Architects | Builders 
   Offices in Fox Cities, Madison, 
       Milwaukee, & Wausau 

Village of Ephraim – Public Works Garage (Demo Existing and Build New) 
Preliminary Budget Estimate 

Revised 10/25/22 
 
Keller Inc. is pleased to provide the Village of Ephraim Fire Department with preliminary plans and a Budget 
Estimate for a New Public Works Garage at the same location of the existing Public Works Garage located 
at 10285 Townline Drive.  Keller Architect Jim Stojke and Project Manager Kelly Claflin initially met with met 
with Public Works Director Russ Salfi and Brad Rasmusson on Sept. 3, 2020 to determine needs for 
preliminary design.  Subsequent meetings with Russ Salfi, Brad Rasmusson and Justin MacDonald 
occurred on October 27, 2020 to present Prelimianry plans for review and comment. The Village Board of 
Trustees prepared a Capital Improvement list of projects in December of 2020.  Based on the list of projects 
and a heavy cost to do Village shoreline improvements the Public Works Project and Fire Station project 
were to be put on the shelf for a few years.  In April of 2022 Russ Salfi contacted Kelly Claflin to inform him 
that the Ad Hoc Project Committee has now started the process of identifying which capital improvement 
projects to proceed with and would like to meet again to make a few changes to the previous plans.    
 
Russ Salfi requested a meeting with Keller and the Ad Hoc Committee members on site on May 4, 2022 to 
review the scope of the project where left off and discuss plan changes for both the Maintenance Building 
Fire Station project. The Committee was going to review the comments of the meeting and meet internally 
to prioritize the projects and discuss potential plan changes prior to Keller Budgeting the project. Minor 
Changes to the plans were then made by Keller and Keller was directed to prepare the Preliminary Budget 
estimate from those revised plans.  The Preliminary Budget estimate is based on Revised Preliminary 
drawings C1.0, A1.0, A2.0 and A3.0 dated 10/03/22 prepared by Keller, Inc. after a meeting with the 
Building Committee on 8/24/2022 which requested to option a new Building in addition to a remodel.   
 
It is important to note that this is a preliminary budget estimate. It is also very important to note that the 
Construction industry has experienced unprecedented cost increases in the past two years due to the 
pandemic and inflation.  If the Village of Ephraim decides to move forward with the project the Village would 
be required to prepare state approved design documents and issue for competitive bidding per State 
Statutes.  Actual costs may be higher or lower and will not be known until bid date. The Budget was also 
prepared without Civil Engineering drawings.  An experienced Keller Estimator budgeted the project as if we 
were pricing the project for Bidding.  The remainder of the budget was prepared with assistance of 
subcontractors that Keller has used for similar projects.  Quantity takeoffs for building materials and labor 
along with comparable similar projects designed and constructed recently by Keller were used to complete 
the budget estimate.    
 
No definitive time frame has been established when the project would be approved.  For budget estimating 
purposes however, it was assumed that the Design Process could start in November of 2022 and the 
earliest construction could start is Spring of 2023 and be completed by end of year 2023.  Should the 
project Design be started later than November 2022 the Budget would have to be adjusted accordingly 
based on current market conditions.  
 
The Preliminary Budget estimate is intended to be all inclusive.  Specifically included are State approved 
Architectural Design, Structural Design, Plumbing Design, HVAC Design Electrical Design, Civil 
Engineering and Construction Management fees, General Condition costs, State Plan approval and Permit 
fees, Building and Site work costs, and a construction contingency allowance of $75,000.00  
 
 
 



 
 
 

Page 2 

Project Scope 
 

• Excavate and Grading for building and site improvements 
• Demolition of existing Building 
• Building and Site work staking 
• Storm Sewer, Water and Sanitary connections 
• Asphalt paving 
• Building and Site Concrete  
• Pre-Engineered Metal Building 
• Finish Carpentry 
• Gypsum Board and Plastering in Office, Meeting and Unisex 
• Cabinets and countertops 
• Landscape allowance of $2,000 
• Insulation and Poly 
• Standing Seam Metal Roof 
• Soffit & Fascia with gutters and downspouts 
• Interior Masonry Firewall 
• Hollow metal doors and frames 
• Overhead doors with Operators 
• Acoustical ceiling in Meeting, Office and Unisex rooms 
• Interior Trim, Doors and Hardware 
• Toilet Accessories 
• Flooring in Offices 
• Painted Drywall in Office, Meeting and Unisex 
• HVAC  
• Electrical 
• Plumbing 

 
Estimated Budget Range to Design and Construct a new 5,000 sq. ft Building 

Budget Range = $1,450,000 - $1,490,000 
 
 
Option #1: Asphalt Paving from Townline Road Inc. loop around Drop off Dump rd. Budget =  $124,740.00 
Option # 2: Add Asphalt paving in entire area of Pole Building Add $8,775.00 
Option # 3: Add Asphalt paving for Alt. #1 Pave between Drive around and Pole Building Add $65,790.00  
Option # 4: Add Asphalt paving around wastewater plant and (2) ramps Add $73,360.00 
 
 
 
 
 
Kelly Claflin 
Keller Construction Project Manager 
 
  
 
          
      



P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

1
5
X

6
0

ALT #1 TO INSTALL 6" ASPHALT 
AND BASE AS NEEDED FOR 
11,600 SF RECYCLING AREA

2
0
'-
0
"

15'-0"

6
0
'-
0
"

ALT #2 ADDED GRAVEL AREA (750 SF)

1
0
'-
0
"

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 4
0
x
6
0

PROPOSED 
BUILDING5

0
'-
0
"

2
5
'-
0
"

100'-0"

CONC. PAD

BUILDING CODE ANALYSIS

PROJECT ADDRESS

10,285 Townline Rd. Ephraim, WI 54211

APPLICABLE CODES

2015 International Building Code (w/ WI Amendments)
ASHRE Standard 90.1-2013
2015 IEBC (Level #3 Addition)

OCCUPANCY

S1-STORAGE REPAIR
Accessory Use

B
Incedental Use

N/A
High-Piled Combustible Storage NO
Hazardouse Materials NO

HEIGHT & AREA

Building Height: 15'-4"
Number of Stories: 1     
Total Building Area: VARIES Maximum Allowed: 15,750 S.F.
Total Fire Area: VARIES Maximum Allowed:   5,000 S.F.
Mixed Occupancies YES
Unlimited Area Building NO

CONSTRUCTION TYPE

Construction Classification 2B
Fire Separation Distance <40'-0"

FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS

Assumed Sprinkler Type N/A
Fire Alarm System NO

MEANS OF EGRESS

Occupant Load 2
Panic Hardware NO

STRUCTURAL DESIGN

Risk Category 2
Roof Live Load -- psf
Second Floor/Mezz Live Load -- psf
Ground Snow Load 40 psf    Exposure Factor  --    Thermal Factor  -
Wind Load  90 MPH     Exposure Category  --
Seismic Site Class  --

PLUMBING SYSTEMS

Mens WC Required YES
Womens WC Required NO
Drinking Fountain YES (BOTTLE)
Other Source

MECHANICAL SYSTEMS

X

SITE INFORMATION

SITE CONTENT

Building Size -,--- S.F. -.--%
Hard Surface -,--- S.F. -.--%
Green Space -,--- S.F. -.--%
Parcel Size (Approx.) -,--- S.F. -.-- Acres
Parking Provided -- Stalls
Area of Disturbance -,--- S.F.

ZONING

Property Zoning --
Setbacks FY -'--"  SY -'--"  RY -'--"
Hard Surface Setback -'--"
Coverage Limit --%
Greenspace Requirement --%
Parking Required -- Stalls
Refuse Enclosure YES/NO
RTU SCREENING YES/NO

BUILDING INFORMATION

Exisiting Building Size 4,883 S.F. 61%
Proposed Bulding Addition Size 3,063 S.F. 39%
Total Size 7,946 S.F. 100%

PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:

DATE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 -

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

WISCONSIN

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

C1.0
10.03.2022

K. CLAFLIN

J. STOJKE

JHS

-------

-------

P20294

-------

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 G

A
R

A
G

E
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 F

O
R

:

E
F

P
H

R
A

IM
,

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F
 E

P
H

R
A

IM

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM

MUNICIPAL GARAGE ADDITION FOR:

EFPHRAIM,

1" = 30'-0"

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN

NORTH

SHEET INDEX

C1.0 SITE PLAN

A1.0 FLOOR PLAN

A2.0 ELEVATIONS

A3.0 SECTIONS

THE LOT DIMENSIONS AND BEARINGS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN
ARE INTERPRETED VALUES.  FOLLOW UP INVESTIGATION WITH STATE
AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND/OR WITH CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DATA
WHEN AVAILABLE IS REQUIRED.

0' 15' 30' 60' 120'

1

2

3

4

5

6



PR
O

PO
SE

D
 P

U
B

LI
C 

W
O

R
K

S 
G

AR
AG

E 
FO

R
:

PLANNERS   ARCHITECTS   BUILDERS

Keller
FOX CITIES

W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"

WAUSAUMILWAUKEE

MADISON

EP
H

R
AI

M

VI
LL

AG
E 

OF
 E

PH
R

AI
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
K50AA

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
KL1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
K29DB

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
KL1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
K50AA

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
KL1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'x10' HIGH LIFT  O.H. DOOR (4 WINDOWS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UGARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
32' TRENCH DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTAL FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
K50AA

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
KL1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
K50AA

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
KL1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
K50AA

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
KL1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
K50AA

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
KL1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
K50AA

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
KL1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
K50AA

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
KL1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICROWAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
34" AFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEETING

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UOFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UCORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
FURNACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
32' TRENCH DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFRIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOP SINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER BOTTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' CONC. APRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-PANELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100G

AutoCAD SHX Text
100D

AutoCAD SHX Text
100E

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UMECHANICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
NON-OCCUPIED COLD STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100C

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'x14' HIGH LIFT O.H. DOOR (4 WINDOWS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'x14' HIGH LIFT O.H. DOOR (4 WINDOWS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
100A

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAKE-UP AIR SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PALLET RACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PALLET RACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PALLET RACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERVICE PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRESSURE TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY SINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMNS AND BEAM FOR MEZZANINE SUPPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" C.M.U. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
POSITIVE PITCH EDGE (NO GUTTER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UUNISEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.D.A. SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST FOR STAIR LANDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL STAIR TO MEZZANINE (18 RISERS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
100F

AutoCAD SHX Text
100K

AutoCAD SHX Text
100H

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE APRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100H

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'x14' HIGH LIFT O.H. DOOR (4 WINDOWS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
K29DB

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
KL1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
K50AA

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
KL1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
K50AA

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
KL1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UFLOOR PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPEDITOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUPERVISOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT MANAGER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
-------

AutoCAD SHX Text
-------

AutoCAD SHX Text
-------

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.CLAFLIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
This design, drawing and detail is the  copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.   No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated, distributed, disclosed or made available to  anyone without the expressed written  consent of KELLER, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N216 State Road 55 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kaukauna, WI  54130

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE  (920)  766-5795  /

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX   (920)  766-5004

AutoCAD SHX Text
3600 Stewart Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE  (715)  849-3141

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX   (715)  849-3181

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wausau, WI  54401

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.kellerbuilds.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
W177 N9856 Rivercrest Dr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Suite 104

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE  (262)  250-9710

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX   (262)  250-9740

AutoCAD SHX Text
Germantown, WI  53022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-236-2534

AutoCAD SHX Text
Suite B

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 620

AutoCAD SHX Text
              1-800-236-2534

AutoCAD SHX Text
3308 Nursery Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE  (608)  445-2245

AutoCAD SHX Text
Middleton, WI  53562

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCT. 7 2011  PAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
0CT 3 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-------

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. STOJKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JHS



PUBLIC WORKS GARAGE

VILLAGE OF
EPHRAIM

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 P

U
B

LI
C 

W
O

R
K

S 
G

AR
AG

E 
FO

R
:

PLANNERS   ARCHITECTS   BUILDERS

Keller
FOX CITIES

EP
H

R
AI

M
W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"

WAUSAUMILWAUKEE

VI
LL

AG
E 

OF
 E

PH
R

AI
M

MADISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURAL STEEL SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULLY ADHERED RUBBER ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2:12 PITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE SCORE BURNISHED CMU VENEER (RUNNING BOND W/ "V" TOOLED JOINTS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM FRAME WINDOW w/TINTED GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAMFER SILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPLITFACE CMU VENEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURAL STEEL SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULLY ADHERED RUBBER ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2:12 PITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAMFERED C.M.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER AND DOWNSPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER AND DOWNSPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER AND DOWNSPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM FRAME WINDOW w/TINTED GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM FRAME WINDOW w/TINTED GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
14' X 14' HIGH LIFT O.H. DOOR (4 WINDOWS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM FRAME WINDOW w/TINTED GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' X 10' HIGH LIFT O.H. DOOR (3 WINDOWS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURAL STEEL SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURAL STEEL SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLLARD (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UNORTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UEAST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPEDITOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUPERVISOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT MANAGER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0CT 3 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-------

AutoCAD SHX Text
-------

AutoCAD SHX Text
-------

AutoCAD SHX Text
-------

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.CLAFLIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. STOJKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JHS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
This design, drawing and detail is the  copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.   No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated, distributed, disclosed or made available to  anyone without the expressed written  consent of KELLER, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N216 State Road 55 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kaukauna, WI  54130

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE  (920)  766-5795  /

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX   (920)  766-5004

AutoCAD SHX Text
3600 Stewart Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE  (715)  849-3141

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX   (715)  849-3181

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wausau, WI  54401

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.kellerbuilds.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
W177 N9856 Rivercrest Dr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Suite 104

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE  (262)  250-9710

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX   (262)  250-9740

AutoCAD SHX Text
Germantown, WI  53022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-236-2534

AutoCAD SHX Text
Suite B

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 620

AutoCAD SHX Text
              1-800-236-2534

AutoCAD SHX Text
3308 Nursery Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE  (608)  445-2245

AutoCAD SHX Text
Middleton, WI  53562

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USOUTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UWEST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
...



PR
O

PO
SE

D
 P

U
B

LI
C 

W
O

R
K

S 
G

AR
AG

E 
FO

R
:

PLANNERS   ARCHITECTS   BUILDERS

Keller
FOX CITIES

W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"

WAUSAUMILWAUKEE

MADISON

EP
H

R
AI

M

VI
LL

AG
E 

OF
 E

PH
R

AI
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:12 PITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
9" HEAVY INSULATION SYSTEM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLASHING   

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL LINER PANELING   

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-FINISHED METAL GUTTER & DOWNSPOUTS  

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAVE FLASHING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THERMAL BLOCKS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDING SEAM ROOF STEEL  

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" HEAVY INSULATION SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
'Z' PURLINS 5'-0" O.C.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" PSK WALL INSULATION  

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-ENGINEERED METAL BUILDING FRAME-VERIFY ALL REQUIREMENTS W/ METAL BUILDING MANUF.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONCRETE SLAB (REINFORCE AS REQUIRED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULLY ADHERED RUBBER ROOF  

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 5/8" STEEL STUD WALL  

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" GYPSUM BOARD  

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACOUSTICAL DROP CEILING  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE SCORE BURNISHED C.M.U. (RUNNING BOND W/ "V" TOOLED JOINTS)  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPLITFACE  C.M.U. VENEER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUNDATION WALL (REINFORCE AS REQUIRED)  

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEETING

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UOFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UMECHANICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UUNISEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" GIRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" PRECAST PLANKS W/ 3" CONC. TOPPING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY  

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" HIGH BLOCK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USTORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
201

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURAL PANEL  

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:12 PITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
9" HEAVY INSUALTION SYSTEM  

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLASHING   

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL LINER PANELING   

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-FINISHED METAL GUTTER & DOWNSPOUTS  

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAVE FLASHING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THERMAL BLOCKS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDING SEAM ROOF STEEL  

AutoCAD SHX Text
P12" HEAVY INSULATION SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
'Z' PURLINS 5'-0" O.C.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" PSK WALL INSULATION  

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-ENGINEERED METAL BUILDING FRAME-VERIFY ALL REQUIREMENTS W/ METAL BUILDING MANUF.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURAL PANEL  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPLITFACE  C.M.U. VENEER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUNDATION WALL (REINFORCE AS REQUIRED)  

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" GIRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" PRECAST PLANKS W/ 3" CONC. TOPPING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" HIGH BLOCK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" HIGH CURB  

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANEL TO EXTEND 2" BELOW FINISHED FLOOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURAL PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLASHING  

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONCRETE SLAB (REINFORCE AS REQUIRED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCH DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" HIGH CURB  

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEZZANINE EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-6" H. RAILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USTORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
201

AutoCAD SHX Text
DN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON PATH OF TRAVEL (MAX. 75'-0")

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0" WIDE REMOVABLE RAILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" PRECAST FLOOR WITH 3" TOPPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL STAIR TO MEZZANINE (18 RISERS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UBUILDING SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPEDITOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUPERVISOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT MANAGER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
-------

AutoCAD SHX Text
-------

AutoCAD SHX Text
-------

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.CLAFLIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
This design, drawing and detail is the  copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.   No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated, distributed, disclosed or made available to  anyone without the expressed written  consent of KELLER, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N216 State Road 55 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kaukauna, WI  54130

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE  (920)  766-5795  /

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX   (920)  766-5004

AutoCAD SHX Text
3600 Stewart Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE  (715)  849-3141

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX   (715)  849-3181

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wausau, WI  54401

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.kellerbuilds.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
W177 N9856 Rivercrest Dr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Suite 104

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE  (262)  250-9710

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX   (262)  250-9740

AutoCAD SHX Text
Germantown, WI  53022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-236-2534

AutoCAD SHX Text
Suite B

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 620

AutoCAD SHX Text
              1-800-236-2534

AutoCAD SHX Text
3308 Nursery Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE  (608)  445-2245

AutoCAD SHX Text
Middleton, WI  53562

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UBUILDING SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UMEZZANINE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0CT 3 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-------

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. STOJKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JHS



 
 
 
 

 

Page 1 

PHONE 
920·766·5795     1·800·236·2534 

FAX 
920·766·5004 

WEB SITE 
www.kellerbuilds.com 

ADDRESS 
P.O. Box 620, Kaukauna, WI 54130-0620 

Planners | Architects | Builders 
   Offices in Fox Cities, Madison, 
       Milwaukee, & Wausau 

Village of Ephraim – Pole Building Addition 
Preliminary Budget Estimate 

 
Revised 10/25/22 

 
Keller Inc. is pleased to provide the Village of Ephraim Fire Department with preliminary plans and a Budget 
Estimate for an addition and remodel to their existing Public Works Garage. The proposed addition and 
remodel would be located at 10285 Townline Drive.  The Proposed addition would be attached to the North 
side of the Existing Public Works Garage. Keller Architect Jim Stojke and Project Manager Kelly Claflin 
initially met with met with Public Works Director Russ Salfi and Brad Rasmusson on Sept. 3, 2020 to 
determine needs for preliminary design.  Subsequent meetings with Russ Salfi, Brad Rasmusson and Justin 
MacDonald occurred on October 27, 2020 to present Prelimianry plans for review and comment. The 
Village Board of Trustees prepared a Capital Improvement list of projects in December of 2020.  Based on 
the list of projects and a heavy cost to do Village shoreline improvements the Public Works Project and Fire 
Station project were to be put on the shelf for a few years.  In April of 2022 Russ Salfi contacted Kelly Claflin 
to inform him that the Ad Hoc Project Committee has now started the process of identifying which capital 
improvement projects to proceed with and would like to meet again to make a few changes to the previous 
plans.    
 
Russ Salfi requested a meeting with Keller and the Ad Hoc Committee members on site on May 4, 2022 to 
review the scope of the project where left off and discuss plan changes for both the Maintenance Building 
Fire Station project. The Committee was going to review the comments of the meeting and meet internally 
to prioritize the projects and discuss potential plan changes prior to Keller Budgeting the project. Minor 
Changes to the plans were then made by Keller and Keller was directed to prepare the Preliminary Budget 
estimate from those revised plans.  The Preliminary Budget estimate is based on Preliminary drawings 
C1.0, A1.0, A2.0 dated 10/25/21 prepared by Keller, Inc.   
 
It is important to note that this is a preliminary budget estimate. It is also very important to note that the 
Construction industry has experienced unprecedented cost increases in the past two years due to the 
pandemic and inflation.  If the Village of Ephraim decides to move forward with the project the Village would 
be required to prepare state approved design documents and issue for competitive bidding per State 
Statutes.  Actual costs may be higher or lower and will not be known until bid date. The Budget was also 
prepared without Civil Engineering drawings.  An experienced Keller Estimator budgeted the project as if we 
were pricing the project for Bidding.  The remainder of the budget was prepared with assistance of 
subcontractors that Keller has used for similar projects.  Quantity takeoffs for building materials and labor 
along with comparable similar projects designed and constructed recently by Keller were used to complete 
the budget estimate.    
 
No definitive time frame has been established when the project would be approved.  For budget estimating 
purposes however, it was assumed that the Design Process could start in November of 2022 and the 
earliest construction could start is Spring of 2023 and be completed by end of year 2023. 
 
Should the project Design be started later than November 2022 the Budget would have to be adjusted 
accordingly based on current market conditions.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Page 2 

 
The Preliminary Budget estimate is intended to be all inclusive.  Specifically included are State approved 
Architectural Design, Structural Design, Plumbing Design, HVAC Design Electrical Design, Civil 
Engineering and Construction Management fees, General Condition costs, State Plan approval and Permit 
fees, Building and Site work costs.   
 
Project Scope 
 

• Excavate and Grading for building and site improvements 
• Demolition of existing to receive new addition 
• Building and Site work staking 
• Asphalt paving in existing Pole Building 
• Building concrete pads for 2x6 posts  
• Wood framed Rough carpentry 
• Guard posts at Overhead doors 
• 29 gage metal wall and roof panels 
• Hollow metal door and frames 
• (2) Overhead doors  
• Electrical 

 
 

Estimated Budget Range to Design and Construct a new 900 sq. ft. Lean to Addition 
and 840 sq. ft. asphalt in existing Pole Building   

Budget Range = $150,000 - $161,560 
 

 
Alternate # 1 Add Gravel Base to 11,600 sq. ft. for Recycling area Add $11,147  
 
Alternate #2 Add Gravel Base to 750 sq. ft. south of existing pole Building  Add $ 1,968 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Kelly Claflin 
Keller Construction Project Manager 
 
  
 
          
      
     



FINISH GRAVEL

100' - 0"

EX. EAVE HT.

115' - 3 1/2"

T.O. FOOTING PAD

96' - 0"

1

A3.0

123456789

NEW LOW EAVE

111' - 7 1/2"

FINISH GRAVEL

100' - 0"

EX. EAVE HT.

115' - 3 1/2"

T.O. FOOTING PAD

96' - 0"

NEW LOW EAVE

111' - 7 1/2"

AB

FINISH GRAVEL

100' - 0"

EX. EAVE HT.

115' - 3 1/2"

T.O. FOOTING PAD

96' - 0"

NEW LOW EAVE

111' - 7 1/2"

A B

3
'-
8
"

FINISH GRAVEL

100' - 0"

EX. EAVE HT.

115' - 3 1/2"

T.O. FOOTING PAD

96' - 0"

1

A3.0

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

NEW LOW EAVE

111' - 7 1/2"

1

A3.0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

8
'-
0

"
8

'-
0

"
8

'-
0

"
8

'-
0

"
8

'-
0

"
8

'-
0

"
8

'-
0

"
4

'-
0

"

40'-0" 15'-0"

6
0

'-
0

"

NEW (3) PLY 2x6 POSTS 
SET ON CONCRETE PAD 
4'-0" BELOW GRADE

TRUSSES 8'-0" O.C.

1'-6" 12'-0" 1'-6"

12'-0" x 10'-0" O.H.D.

100C

3'-0"x7'-0"

100B

12'-0" x 10'-0" O.H.D.

100A

873 SF

LEAN-TO

ADDITION

100

35'-0"

2
4
'-
0
"

5'-0"

EXISTING SHELVING
TO REMAIN (EDIT AS 
REQ'D FOR NEW 
DOOR)

1'-6" 12'-0" 1'-6"

NEW 6" ASPHALT
(SHADED AREA)
(840 SF)

NEW 6" 
GRAVEL
FLOOR

A B

3'-0"x7'-0"

100D

PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:

DATE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 -

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

A2.0
03 MAY 2021

K. CLAFLIN

J. STOJKE

JHS

-------

-------

P20294

-------

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 F

O
R

 -
-

E
P

H
R

A
IM

,

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F
 E

P
H

R
A

IM

1/8" = 1'-0"

EAST ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION

1

2

3

4

5

6

1/8" = 1'-0"

FLOOR PLAN



JUNE  

1 
   

   
 G

et
 In

vo
lv

ed
 

 

Sponsored by the Village of Ephraim Green Tier Committee and the 

Ephraim Business Council. 

Cleanup  
COMMUNITY 

Join your neighbors in cleaning up 

your Ephraim neighborhood. 

  Saturday, June 1, 2024 

Trash bags will be available on Friday, May 31st, at the  

Village hall, if needed, from xx to xx. 

After collecting litter in your neighborhood, bring it to 

the Village Hall between 9 AM and Noon.  

Stay to enjoy a community celebration of a         

CLEAN EPHRAIM   

with  juice, coffee, and doughnuts. 

















Photocopies $0.25/page
Facsimile $1.00/page

CDs $5.00/each

Non-sufficient funds $25.00/occurrence
Assessment Letters $25.00/each

Dog License $15.50 Unneutered/Unspayed Animal
$5.50 Neutered/Spayed Animal

Local non-profit preapproved renters No Charge if pre-approved by Village Board
Theater Productions, Associations, Concerts, Approved Meetings, or Classes $50.00 Minimum, $80.00 Daily (4 or more hours)

Village Taxpayer Private Functions* $80 Daily charge 
Non Village Taxpayer Private Functions* $250 Per Day and must be paid prior to event day

0 - 1,499 sq. ft. $850.00
1,500 - 1,999 sq. ft. $1,000.00
2,000 - 2,499 sq. ft. $1,100.00
2,500 - 3,000 sq. ft. $1,150.00
Over 3,000 sq. ft $1,150.00 + $0.10 per sq. ft. over 3,000 sq. ft.

Manufactured Dwellings (modular) $500.00 + any additions or garage per item #3 below
State Seal $35.00

a. Building $0.11 per sq. ft. (all areas)

0 to 500 sq. ft. $50.00 (each)
501 - 1,000 sq. ft. $60.00 (each)

 1,001 - 1,300 sq. ft. $75.00 (each)
1,301 - 2,000 sq. ft. $100.00 (each)
2,001 - 2,500 sq. ft. $125.00 (each)

Over 2,500 sq. ft. $0.05 per sq. ft. (each)
c. Erosion (below grade over 400 sq. ft.) $40.00 additions only

3. Electric Service $75.00 residential    $50.00
4. Manufactured Homes (HUD homes or house trailers) $200.00 (fee includes slab, electric service, & occupancy)
5. Temporary Occupancy $50.00
6. Early Start $50.00 (footing and foundation only)

1. Building $0.10 per sq. ft. ($50.00 minimum)
2. Electric, plumbing & HVAC $0.05 per sq. ft. ($40.00 minimum)

a. Building $0.12 per sq. ft. (all areas) - ($75.00 minimum)

0 to 600 sq. ft $60.00 (each)
601 - 1,250 sq. ft $75.00 (each)

1,251 - 1,700 sq. ft. $100.00 (each)
1,701 - 2,100 sq. ft $125.00 (each)
2,101 - 2,500 sq. ft $150.00 (each)

Over 2,500 sq. ft. $0.6 per sq. ft. each
c. Storage buildings, warehouses, detached garages $0.10 per sq. ft 

2. Temporary Occupancy, Change of Use, Occupancy $50.00
3. Early Start $100.00
4. Electric Service $75.00    $60.00
5. Erosion Control $75.00
6. Plan Review Per Table SBD-118

1. Re-inspection fee $30.00
2. Failure to call for an inspection $30.00

4. Extension to permit (permits are valid for 24 months) 25% of original fee

Land Disturbance $25.00 per
Moving or Demolition $25.00 per

Alteration Permits $25.00 per project
Conditional Use/Special Exception $125.00 each

Accessory Structures $25.00 each
Building Permits (Residential) $25.00 + $0.15 per square ft

Building Permits (Commercial) $25.00 + $0.20 per square ft
Signs (Permanent) $15.00 each
Signs (Temporary) $5.00 each

Administration

2024 Village of Ephraim Fee Schedule
Sales taxes included unless specified.

Public records research which requires more time than customary 5 to 10 
minutes 

$30.00/hour

The actual cost to the Village for all engineering work incurred by the Village in 
connection with the subdivision, including inspections required.

Engineering fee 

1. New Structure Fees include building, electric, plumbing, HVAC and erosion permits

   ACCESSORY STRUCTURES - Detached garages, storage buildings, and decks.

      COMMERCIAL
1. New buildings, additions, alterations, remodels:

b. Electric, plumbing, HVAC

2. Additions/ Remodels/ Alterations:

* A Security deposit of $250.00 is required for all rentals and will be held during the duration of the rental. This may be applied to the balance due or used for 
additional cleaning if necessary.  $25 Processing Fee for all cancellations.

Building and Zoning Fees

Ephraim Village Hall Rental Fees:

          RESIDENTIAL - 1 & 2 FAMILY
      Building Inspection Fees (Brett Guilette - Inspection Specialists LLC) - Fees are based on ALL living areas and garage.

3. Double fees are due if work is started before permit is issued

     ZONING FEES

      MISCELLANEOUS

b. Electric, plumbing, HVAC

https://dsps.wi.gov/Documents/Programs/SBD118.pdf
brent bristol
Cross-Out

brent bristol
Cross-Out

brent bristol
Highlight

brent bristol
Highlight



2024-25 Village of Ephraim Committee Appointments 
 

 

MARINAS AND MOORINGS: 

Bob Plansky 

BD Thorp 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMITTEE: 

Marilyn Cushing 

Amy Russell 

PHYSICAL FACILITIES & UTILITIES COMMITTEE: 

Brian Reinhardt 

Rick Hoyerman 

Fred Bridenhagen 

COMMUNITY PROTECTION COMMITTEE: 

Tad Dukehart 

AIRPORT COMMITTEE: 

Tim Halbrook 

LIBRARY COMMITTEE: 

Carly Mulliken – Chair 

Windsor McCutcheon 

BOARD OF APPEALS 

Keith Krist 

Sara Glenn 





































































VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM  
GREEN TIER AD-HOC COMMITTEE WORKING SESSION MINUTES 
THURSDAY, APRIL 18, 2024 – 8:00 AM - 9996 WATER STREET 
Present: Jeff Lutsey, Michael McCutcheon, Bruce Nelson, Lane Methner, and Cindy Nelson-Chair. 
Absent: Jeff O’Keefe. 
Guests:  None. 
Staff: Brent Bristol – Village Administrator and Kim Roberts – Deputy Clerk. 

1. Update on the Green Tier worksheet and phone conversation with DNR Green Tier Representatives: 
C. Nelson provided an update on the conversation that was held with DNR Green Tier representatives  
Jennifer Feyerherm and Mandaline Bergstrom. C. Nelson acknowledged that the DNR representatives had 
contacted many Door County Green Tier Communities for feedback. C. Nelson reviewed during the 
meeting the challenges with the scoresheet, the areas of the scoresheet that were successful, and the 
impracticality of many of the metrics and supporting actions for a small community. The amount of time 
dedicated to completing the scoresheet and supporting actions for a small community is just too much. 
Suggestions were shared with DNR representatives on how to improve the scoresheet process such as 
breaking communities into three (3) tiers in addition to creating applicable scoresheets and supporting 
actions for each tier. Additionally creating a way for communities to connect and help each other similar to 
how Wisconsin Clerks assist each other. Changing the format of the DNR Green Tier meetings into subject-
driven webinars to allow people to search for topics and watch at their convenience to avoid hours of 
attending online meetings. C. Nelson suggested the use of the 7 Rs (Rethink, Refuse, Reduce, Repurpose, 
Reuse, Recycle, and Rot) within the Green Tier program. Both DNR representatives stressed that the 
program and the scoresheet are works in progress. 
Lutsey shared his conversation with the DNR representatives as the countywide Green Tier meetings 
coordinator. He had communicated similar concerns that the other Door County Green Tier communities 
had voiced. With the concentration of Green Tier Communities in Door County, the DNR was concerned 
about the feedback and is considering attending the next Door County countywide meeting. 
C. Nelson shared that she had been asked why the Village remained a Green Tier Community. She 
responded that we ask ourselves that same question; it will be a hard sell to remain a member if it continues 
to be this difficult. We don’t need to be a Green Tier Community to participate in the county-wide group. 
Lutsey shared that for many communities it is the financial incentives that motivate continued membership. 
For example, the City of Sturgeon Bay joined so that Sturgeon Bay Utilities could access a loan that might 
be forgiven. 
C. Nelson noted that the DNR had been really good, initially, with sharing the incentive information but 
those efforts have waned over the years. 

2. Update on 2024 Goals: 
The Green Tier Committee reviewed 2024 goals: Water filling stations, energy audits on Village buildings, 
food pantry donation magnets for STRs, battery collection, pollinator gardens for Moravia Point and Village 
Hall, and signs for the Wetlands. 
A brief discussion was held regarding each of the goals. B. Nelson was continuing research on filling station 
costs. Lutsey will work on gathering information on energy audits after the Big Plant. McCutcheon inquired 
if the energy audits were necessary and noted they would need to go before the Board for approval. C. 
Nelson added that energy audits have been part of Green Tier since the very beginning. Since the Village is 
looking at remodels on some Village buildings, it would be good to have the data. Methner reported that 
there was no update to report on the magnets; they are still working with other Community Business 
Associations to discuss the project. She explained that the magnets were to provide information to STRs 
where they could donate non-perishable food at the end of their stay. Lutsey will also address battery 
collection after the Big Plant. C. Nelson continues to work on the pollinator gardens for the Village Hall and 
Moravia Point as well as signage for the Wetlands. She noted that she was able to track down the woman 
who did the signs for the Fern Trail at Newport State Park. 
 



C. Nelson introduced the idea of a Community Clean Up day where residents work in their 
area/neighborhood, pick up garbage, and bring it to the Village Hall for coffee and doughnuts. Committee 
members present thought that it was a good idea.    
McCutcheon noted that the proposal would need to go before the Village Board 
Discussion continued in determining the details of the proposed event.  Saturday, June 1, 2024, was the date 
that was chosen for the event so that the proposal could be included on the May Village Board Agenda. 
Bristol requested a write-up for the Board packet to facilitate discussion. 
 

3. Next meeting: 
Next meeting date: Thursday, May 16, 2024, at 8:00 AM. 
The meeting adjourned at 8:35 AM.  
Recorded by, Kim Roberts – Deputy Clerk 



 

1 
 

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM PLAN COMMITTEE 
WORKING SESSION MEETING MINUTES   
TUESDAY, APRIL 30, 2024 - 12:00 PM 
9996 WATER STREET 
 
Present: Andy Bartelt, Grace Held, Monique McClean, Ken Nelson, Susie Samson, B.D. Thorp, and Michael 
McCutcheon - Chair.  
Staff: Brent Bristol - Village Administrator and Kim Roberts - Deputy Clerk. 
Guests in person:  None.             Guests online: None.
Call to Order: The working session was called to order by McCutcheon at 12:02 PM.  
The Plan Committee discussed the Multi-Family Ordinance; specifically duplexes during the ordinance working 
session. Bristol explained that duplexes did not currently exist in the zoning code. At one point they were part of 
the Planned Residential Development “PRD” ordinance that since has been disallowed. An idea to create an 
avenue to include them within the zoning code again would be to include them as part of the Multi-Family 
Development “MFD” which the committee committed to discussing again. Ephraim’s  R1 district is made up of 
single-family homes. The RR district contains single-family homes on a minimum of two (2) acre lots. It is the 
opinion of the attorney that the place to put a duplex would be in the RR district and/or the Commercial district. 
A discussion was held regarding duplex units. K. Nelson noted that currently, there were no provisions for a 
duplex to be approved in the code. Bristol confirmed that a duplex could not be approved because it is not an 
allowable use. Bristol discussed new language within the code could stand alone or be tied to MFD ordinance 
language. He provided further reference to the state building code in that 1-2 units are considered residential and 
3-4 units are considered commercial. The committee reviewed current duplexes within the Commercial District. 
K. Nelson pointed out that separate language could be provided for the Historic District to make it more 
restrictive regarding duplexes; it would all come down to design.  K. Nelson noted that he would have difficulty 
allowing duplexes in RR when people have intentionally built on the two (2) acre minimum; it should be nothing 
but residential.  
The committee continued the discussion regarding duplexes. Discussion included limiting duplexes by density, 
defining MFD units under one roof, defining the minimum unit size, and defining the density. Bristol explained 
that there could be different densities for stand-alone units versus multi-family under one roof. The committee 
further discussed the amount of property in the Commercial North that could be developed.  The initial density 
discussions for Townline1 development were reviewed and how the density was eventually reduced by the 
developer. The committee also discussed the density of the Enclave development.    
McCutcheon requested a copy of the zoning map and the MFD ordinance as a starting point for the discussion at 
the next meeting. He thought a good starting point would be to leave the RR district alone and to focus on the 
Commercial District pertaining to duplexes in order to keep the higher density to that area. 
K. Nelson suggested a walk of the Protected Waterfront “PW” district in an effort to continue working on the PW 
ordinance. 
McCutcheon agreed that the next meeting should start with a walk of the PW. 
Thorp discussed controlling people doing work without permitting. 
Bristol discussed the challenges with new residents and that many of the projects thought to be unpermitted were 
actually permits issued over the counter that did not need to come before the Plan Committee for approval. He 
discussed avenues to allow residents to view a list of permitted work as well as information in the next newsletter 
regarding permitting. 
The committee further discussed defining accessory structures in the future and permitting for major landscaping 
and tree removal. 
The meeting adjourned at 12:57 PM.  
Recorded by, Kim Roberts – Deputy Clerk  



 

1 
 

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM  
PHYSICAL FACILITIES & UTILITES MINUTES   
TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2024 - 8:00 AM 
9996 WATER STREET 
 
Action Items: 
Peterman moved, Bridenhagen seconded to approve the minutes of April 2, 2024, all ayes. Motion carried. 
Bridenhagen moved to adjourn at 9:12 AM, Flottman seconded, all ayes. Motion carried. 

Present: Fred Bridenhagen, Paul Flottman, Jim Peterman, Diane Taillon, and Matt Meacham-Chair 
Absent: None. 
Staff: Justin MacDonald – Maintenance Manager/Fire Chief, Brent Bristol – Village Administrator, and Kim 
Roberts- Deputy Clerk. 
Guests: Maggie Peterman, Lane Methner, Kelsey Stone, Duska Pearson, Dr. Michael McCutcheon, and Cindy 
Nelson. 
Call to Order: Meeting called to order by Chair Meacham at 8:01 AM.  

1. Quorum: A quorum was present for this meeting.  
2. Changes in Agenda: There were none. 
3. Visitors’ Comments: There were none.  
4. Approval of Previous Minutes: 

Peterman moved, Bridenhagen seconded to approve the minutes of April 2, 2024, all ayes. Motion 
carried. 

5. Maintenance Manager Report: 
MacDonald reviewed his April Report. He explained that the Maintenance Department has been 
resetting the Village for Spring and Summer.  

6. Discussion and consideration of Moravia Point: 
A discussion was held regarding Moravia Point. Discussion included previous plans, what Sterling 
Landscape would create as part of the fee for design services, and creating parameters to provide 
Sterling Landscape with. 
The Committee agreed on the following parameters as a starting point for design services for Moravia 
Point: 

• Low maintenance. 
• The wall needs to be made into something presentable. 
• The conduit needs to be moved and covered up. 
• A plan for the trees (extracted and replanted was suggested). 
• Methods to control weeds (clover was suggested). 
• Native plants/grasses 

C. Nelson discussed having a naturalist, Jason Miller of Silver Creek Ecological Services, that has 
worked with the Crossroads come and look at the area to develop a plan as an alternative. She noted that 
he does not charge a design fee. He is a landscape architect with interesting ideas utilizing native plants. 
Meacham asked that McDonald send the parameters to Sterling Landscape and invite Jason Miller to the 
next meeting in June. 
 
 



 

2 
 

7. Discussion and consideration of Christmas Decorations: 
Duska Pearson presented two (2) estimates for Christmas Light Decorations. She noted that the 
difference between the two (2) estimates primarily was the difference of purchasing the lights and 
leasing the lights. Both plans would require the Village to install new electrical service needed for the 
lighting plan. She noted that it was designed to be a three (3) year plan. 
A discussion was held regarding the plan estimates. Discussion included life expectancy of the lights, 
leasing versus purchasing the lights, tone and warmth of lights, annual cost, scaling back the plan, the 
unknown expense of adding additional electric service as called for in the plan estimates, how the 
proposed plan fit into the resident sentiment as provided in the PFU Christmas Decoration Survey. 
McCutcheon offered a reminder that the plan would need to go to the Board for approval.  He 
questioned those who came up with the plan if they had reviewed the Christmas Decoration Survey. He 
noted that the results of the survey showed that residents did not want more lights. He suggested that 
they review the survey results again and amend the plan to be in keeping with the survey responses. 
Further discussion was held regarding Pearson’s plan. She preferred to present the full concept to the 
Village Board at a cost of forty thousand dollars ($40,000). MacDonald stressed that there was no line 
item in the PFU budget for Christmas Decorations. Meacham suggested that a plan with the lighting at 
Olson Park, the Gazebo, and the Crab Apples at Harborside Park be presented at a reduced cost of 
approximately six thousand five hundred dollars ($6,500). Bridenhagen discussed community 
participation in funding the project.  
The consensus of the committee was to present the full option and paired down option to the Village 
Board next month. 
All committee members thanked Pearson for her efforts. 

8. New Business for the next meeting: 
• Silver Creek Ecological Services regarding Moravia Point 

• Christmas Decorations/Lights 
9. Adjournment: 

Bridenhagen moved to adjourn at 9:12 AM, Flottman seconded, all ayes. Motion carried.  

Recorded by,  
Kim Roberts – Deputy Clerk  



 

1 
 

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM  
MARINAS AND MOORINGS MINUTES 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 8, 2024 – 8:00 AM 
9996 Water Street- Ephraim Village Hall 
 
Action Items: 
Thorp moved, B. Nelson seconded to approve the minutes of March 6, 2024, as presented, all ayes. Motion 
carried. 
Thorp moved, B. Nelson seconded to approve the marina facility walk-through notes from April 17, 2024, 
all ayes. Motion carried. 
The consensus of the committee was that the Firehouse Marina parking lot and launch ramp should be closed 
on Saturday, June 15, 2024, for Fyr Bal. The committee asked EBC to post one date-specific sign in addition to 
multiple “Closed Saturday” signs to make marina customers aware of the closure.    
The consensus of the committee was to commence exploring the concept of expanding the Anderson Dock 
breakwater by beginning to gather information regarding design, cost, and gauge interest by involved parties. 
Thorp moved, Plansky seconded to adjourn at 10:00 AM, all ayes. Motion carried.  

Present: John Held, Bruce Nelson, BD Thorp, Robert Plansky. and Tim Nelson - Chair. 
Absent: None. 
Staff: Brent Bristol - Village Administrator/Harbormaster, Justin MacDonald – Fire Chief/Maintenance 
Manager and Kim Roberts - Deputy Clerk.  

1. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order by T. Nelson at 8:00 AM.  
2. Changes to the agenda:  Bristol requested item 6 be moved ahead of item 5. 
3. Visitors’ Comments: There were no comments.  
4. Approval of the previous minutes: 

Thorp moved, B. Nelson seconded to approve the minutes of March 6, 2024, as presented, all ayes. 
Motion carried. 
Thorp moved, B. Nelson seconded to approve the marina facility walk-through notes from April 
17, 2024, all ayes. Motion carried. 

5. Update regarding current projects including a review of the on-site work list: 
Bristol reviewed the worklist and noted he would continue to update it as work gets completed. He noted 
that Jeff Long would be coming up to work on Friday.   
A discussion was held regarding the work list. Discussion included: rub rail removal which was decided 
to be left in place as is, pressure washing the marina building will be discussed with the Village Board 
with a quote obtained for the work, Anderson Dock steps for the finger piers to be brought down to the 
site for installation, and installation of rock at Firehouse Dock marina at the top of the launch ramp near 
the “L” pier.  

6. Discussion and consideration regarding marina parking during Fyr Bal: 
Kelsey Stone and Lane Methner of Ephraim Business Council “EBC” asked about the possibility of 
closing the marina parking lot and launch ramp for the Saturday of Fyr Bal. 
A discussion was held regarding closing the marina parking lot for the Saturday of Fyr Bal. T. Nelson 
reviewed the issues from last year and felt that it would be better to close the lot and the launch ramp. 
Stone reviewed that the deputy had not been in the correct position in 2023 and traffic came into the lot 
and parked.  



 

2 
 

The consensus of the committee was that the Firehouse Marina parking lot and launch ramp should be 
closed on Saturday, June 15, 2024, for Fyr Bal. The committee asked EBC to post one date-specific sign 
in addition to multiple “Closed Saturday” signs to make marina customers aware of the closure.    

7. Discussion regarding Anderson Dock Breakwater: 
T. Nelson gauged the interest of the committee in exploring the idea of expanding the Anderson Dock 
breakwater. He explained that property ownership has changed therefore working with the property 
owner who has riparian rights may be agreeable at this time. It would make the property owner’s 
landside slips more useful as well as improve the wave action for marina slip holders. Kahr had 
recommended this option to create a calmer marina for docking. Kahr had advised that working with the 
WI DNR for breakwater is not as difficult as dredging. 
The consensus of the committee was to commence exploring the concept of expanding the Anderson Dock 
breakwater by beginning to gather information regarding design, cost, and gauge interest by involved 
parties. 

8. Discussion regarding marina parking on German Road: 
MacDonald provided an update on the German Road project. He explained that the project is on the 
schedule for JR construction. 
A discussion was held regarding the German Road Project. Held presented the committee with a list of 
questions regarding the project noting that the project is bigger than moving the trailer parking from 
Wastewater to German Road. Discussion included: Who could park their trailers at the site, if proper 
planning had been completed to ensure successful use of the property, communication with those who 
use the property, allowable uses (transient, daily launch, seasonal slip holders, and mooring customers), 
recommendations that could be made from the M&M committee to PFU, forwarding the list drafted by 
Held to the PFU committee, and the layout of the property. 

9. Discussion and consideration regarding marina opening dates and the possibility of soft opening: 
A discussion was held regarding the opening and closing dates for the marina. The committee felt that 
the closing date was a set date with no flexibility. However, the opening date could be impacted by 
completed work, weather, and infrastructure being in place. There was concern that if the weather was 
positive enough and the launch ramp was installed, there may not be navigational buoys in place for 
those who launch their boats early in the season.  It was noted that a sign could be created to notify that 
customers were using the launch ramp, they were doing so at their own risk before the marina facility 
opening. For slip holders, the use of the marina before the marina opening date should be expressly given 
by the Harbormaster with direct contact made to obtain formal permission.  

10. Discussion and consideration regarding the Clean Marina Program: 
B. Nelson reviewed the updates to the Clean Marina Program Emergency Procedure Manual and Marina 
Rules and Regulations. The following updates were noted: 

• Page 2: Keep the daily trailer parking information. Remove the Washington Island Coast Guard 
information. 

• Page 3: Update Hospital information (remove Aurora Nor-Door and add Sturgeon Bay 
information). 

• Page 4: Update the spill kit information: “Firehouse Marina dock staff will assist with locating 
necessary spill kit items.” 

• Page 5: Add slip S4. 
• Page 6: Check on the location of Firehouse Marina power shut off. Add “required key access” to 

Anderson Marina. 
• Page 8: Leave 4(a) as is. 
• Page 9: Defibrillator information acceptable to the committee. 
• Page 18: Remove “Overdue Boater”. 



 

3 
 

• Page 20: Remove “Wild Fire” 
• Page 22: Remove “Pressure Washing at Ramp”. 
• Marina Rules and Regulations – Update #8 Maintenance -The third sentence shall read, “Any 

project involving the vessel’s surface or sanding/grinding of any of the vessel’s surface requires 
prior approval from the Harbormaster or Assistant Harbormaster.” 

• Incident Report: Remove “Overdue Boater” and “Wild Fire” from the type of incident. 
11. Discussion and consideration regarding new projects (building siding, zebra mussels, and charter 

of the committee): 
T. Nelson noted that the marina building siding would be continuing discussion. 
B. Nelson explained that Zebra Mussels were no longer a concern as our marinas do not have chains. He 
further requested that the committee review Chapter 20 next winter to see if any updates are required. 
Held requested that the customer lists be provided for the opening day of the marinas and the waitlist be 
made public information. 
Thorp requested that the policy on slip transfers be reaffirmed at the next meeting. 

12. Discussion and consideration regarding Anderson Dock Capital Project Elements (utility trench, 
monument corner, and others): 
T. Nelson provided an update on the Anderson Dock Capital Project. He explained that the Request for 
Proposal “RFP” was underway and nearly finalized. The utility trench and monument area are spelled out 
in the “RFP”.  
A discussion was held regarding the Anderson Dock Capital Project. Bruce Nelson recommended that 
the utility trenches and stormwater treatment should also be reviewed as part of the project. 

13. New business for the next meeting: 
a. Slip Transfer Policy. 
b. Storage for marina equipment. 
c. Customer List. 
d. Marina Waitlist. 

MacDonald requested that the committee speak with Jeff Long about the condition of the chains before 
installation. 
The next meeting of the Marinas and Moorings Committee will take place on Wednesday, June 5, 
2024, at 8:00 AM. 

14. Adjournment: 
Thorp moved, Plansky seconded to adjourn at 10:00 AM, all ayes. Motion carried. 

 Recorded by, Kim Roberts – Deputy Clerk 



        VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM 

FOUNDED 1853 
 

 

 
 
 
 
Present: Chair-Karen McMurtry, Fred Bridenhagen, Sara Glenn, Keith Krist, Steve Sauter 
Staff: Brent Bristol-Administrator, Andrea Collak-Clerk/Treasurer 
Guests: Diane Taillon, BD Thorp, Michael McCutcheon, Monique McClean 
     

1. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order by McMurtry-Chair at 4:00 PM. 
2. Quorum:  A quorum of the Ephraim Board of Appeals is present for this meeting. 
3. Compliance with open meeting law and public notice requirements 

Bristol confirmed that the agenda was posted following open meeting law and that public notice 
requirements have been met. 

4. Changes in Agenda:  None. 
5. Announcement of Proceedings: 

Chair McMurty read the Announcement of Proceedings Role of the Board 
The Village Board of Appeals is an appellate board required by state law in any municipality that has 
adopted a zoning ordinance.  The board does not have the authority to amend or repeal any provision 
of the zoning ordinance. Its authority is limited to appeals regarding interpretations of ordinance 
provisions, and considerations of variances.  The board functions like a court. Its purpose is to give a 
full and fair hearing to any person whose property interests are affected by these matters. Its job is to 
apply the zoning ordinance and appropriate legal standards to the facts of each case.  The board 
meeting and public hearings are open to the public.  A taped recording is being made of the 
proceedings. 
 
The Appeal of the Board Decisions  
A decision of the board may be appealed by commencing an action in the circuit for this county 
within 30 days after the date of filing of the decision in the office of the board. 
 
Instructions for Witnesses 
Anyone wishing to speak should wait until called upon as a witness; address your comments and 
questions to the chair and state: Your name and place of residence, your qualifications to speak on 
this matter, the source of your information, and whether you favor, oppose, or are only providing 
information in this matter and your concerns. 
 

6. Diane Taillon – 9980 Water St  
a) Variance from 40’ rear yard setback standard  

Public Hearing opened by Karen McMurtry. The notice was read into the record.  This is case 
number 155, notices were sent out on April 19, 2024, and the hearing date is April 30, 2024, to hear 
and transcribe testimony both for and against, written and verbal. Public Hearing on zoning appeal 
application on property #121-24-0033A2, variance from 40’ rear setback standard of Ephraim 
Zoning Code. 
 
The property is zoned Commercial Center. The proposal is for the construction of a 64-square-foot 
addition to the subject property that encloses the SE corner of the building and connects two existing 
decks above. This new proposed work does not meet the 40’ rear setback and requires a 5’ variance.  

 

EPHRAIM BOARD OF APPEALS MINUTES 

Tuesday, April 30, 2024, 4:00 PM 
 
 



 Board of Appeals Minutes Page 2 
 

Chair McMurtry asked the committee members if they inspected the site. Some of the committee 
members knew the property in question, and some passed by and visually inspected the property in 
question.  

 
Statement by the Applicant 
Taillon stated that water had damaged the decks. Currently, there are two decks at this corner, and 
they not only do not connect but they are also of different heights all of which contributed to the 
water damage. Because these decks do not connect, one of them has no access to the stairway to the 
ground level. This addition does not conflict with neighboring properties, does not alter the basic 
nature of the site, does not harm public interests, and only requires one variance. The Hillside is a 
historic property that existed lawfully before the passage of the current zoning ordinance. The 
addition of the 8’ x 8’ corner at the southeast corner of the building is at the back of the building 
which the public does not see from Hwy 42 or Cherry Street. Safety is enhanced because the entire 
deck would now have access to the stairway from the second floor to the ground level.   

 
Reading of the Staff Report 
The subject property, parcel #121-24-0033A2, is owned by Diane Taillon and is located at 9988 
Water Street. The property is zoned Commercial Center and is used as a hotel. 
 
Bristol in his notes stated that the proposal calls for a 64-square-foot addition on the SE side of the 
structure that will be enclosed by walls and connect the two existing decks above.  
 
 A regular zoning permit cannot be issued because the proposed project does not comply with the 40’ 
rear setback requirement for new work in the Commercial Center. 

 
The applicant is requesting: 

• A 5’ Variance from the 40’ rear setback standard of the Ephraim Code of Ordinances. 
 

Correspondence: 
Bristol reported that there was correspondence received concerning this matter. 
 
Sandy Van Sickle, 3035 Church Street, has no objection to the proposed glass enclosure of the 
existing covered patio or the 64-square-foot addition at the SE corner of the Hillside. She is in 
support of the 4’ and 5’ variance needed for the applicant to complete the two projects.  
 
Charles and Kitty Boutell, 9976 Moravia Street, have no objection to the structural changes that 
the applicant requested. However, they do not think that the request for a skylight should be 
accepted. Skylights are for Airports, not for an area like Ephraim. Their concern is that the skylights 
will take away the night's beauty. If this request is permitted, they are concerned that over time other 
people will be asking for skylights. Ephraim is a unique beauty compared to the rest of Door County. 
They asked the committee not to mess it up.  
 
Dorothy Schueffner, 9976 Moravia Street, has no objection to the project in general. However, she 
is wondering what the impact of evening lights from the new enclosure with all the glass and very 
large skylight might be for the residents at Anderson Condos. Schueffner is suggesting Diane Taillon 
might address her plans for window treatments and/or louvered skylights if lights will be on after 
dark. 
 



 Board of Appeals Minutes Page 3 
 

Paul and Colleen Mayer, 9976 Moravia, owners of the condo at Anderson House Condominiums 
located directly East behind the Hillside have a concern about the effect of the large skylight on their 
view after dark. It would be nice to limit the amount of light coming through the skylight after dark. 
Hopefully, the hedge will remain along Moravia Street after the retaining wall reinforcement is done. 
It is great that the Hillside is planning to update the East side of their building. The Mayers are 
assuming that the design fits into the historical district feel. 
 
Julie and Jim Chosy, 9976 Moravia, owners of the condominium at Anderson House 
Condominiums have a concern with the large size of the skylight on the proposed new enclosure. 
Given its size, the top of the structure may be more of a glass roof as opposed to a skylight, and it 
appears very modern in contrast with the traditional exteriors of buildings in Ephraim. They are 
concerned about light being emitted from the large, raised glass roof at night, as well as the 
possibility of noise when it rains. It appears from the drawing of the proposed new enclosure that 
such a large glass roof may not be necessary as the space will have ample outdoor light from the wall 
of glass doors/windows shown in the picture. 

 
It was confirmed that there was no ex-parte communication. 

 
Witness or Visitor Statements:  

   
         Findings of Fact:  
         Glenn has no issue with enlarging the deck but questions whether it is necessary to screen the area 

below. Taillon said it was not necessary and explained that the screen was supposed to hide garden 
equipment.  

 
 Bridenhagen feels that the application is not complete. It includes an inaccurate survey from 3 

owners ago instead of the site plan. Bridenhagen does not believe there was any attempt at fixing the 
water problem. Other steps could be taken to eliminate the water issue. Bridenhagen does not see the 
hardship in it at all and is opposed to granting this variance.  

 
 Glenn asked whether the builder provided a plan of how the water would be diverted away from the 

building once the deck was completed. The construction plan/site plan would be helpful when 
making this decision. 

 
 Bridenhagen asked whether there are two units and one of them can not access the stairway from 

their deck. Taillon clarified that there is only one unit with two decks but cannot access the stairway 
from one of the decks.  

 
 Sauter noted that the requested variance has to meet the test of unnecessary hardship, the hardship 

due to physical limitations of the property, and not to be contrary to the public interest. Sauter 
believes that in this case there has to be a better argument for unnecessary hardship. Glenn agreed 
that the argument for unnecessary hardship is not present.  

 
 McMurtry would like to see a plan stating the reason why connecting those two decks would protect 

the building from water damage. 
 
 Bridenhagen stated that the applicant has the burden of proof to demonstrate all three criteria. 

Bridehagen does not see decks going together helping in this situation.  
 



 Board of Appeals Minutes Page 4 
 

 The Board members agreed that the variance does not meet all three tests. 
 

McMurtry asked the Board members whether more information from the applicant would be helpful 
to make the decision. McMurtry does not want to deny the variance if more information can help to 
make an educated decision. Bridenhagen pointed out that this is the hearing and the burden of proof 
is on the applicant, not the Board. The Board should not settle for an incomplete application. 
McMurtry said that the Board can table the decision until additional information is provided with a 
burden to prove still on the applicant. 
 
Bridenhagen asked whether giving the opinions and statements regarding the burden of proof would 
relate to coaching of the applicant and contouring the applicant's decisions.   
 
Sauter asked whether denying the variance would keep the applicant from coming back again and 
requesting the hearing. Sauter would like to table this case and see more information before making 
the final decision. Glenn agreed. Glenn does not see any harm in tabling this case. McMurtry and 
Krist agreed. 
 
The Board of Appeals members agreed to vote before filling out the conclusions of the law. 

  
         Public Hearing Closed by Karen McMurtry. 
 

Conclusions of Law:  Conclusions were not stated for this case. 
Unnecessary Hardship:  
 

  Unique Physical Property Limitations:  
          
         No Harm to Public Interest:  
 

McMurtry moved, Glenn seconded to table the requested 5’ variance from the 40’ rear yard 
setback standard of the Ephraim code of ordinances for Diane Taillon at 9980 Water Street 
as presented with no conditions, Sauter aye, Bridenhagen nay, Glenn aye, McMurtry aye, 
Krist aye, and the motion carried 4:1. 

 
7. Diane Taillon – 9980 Water St  

b) Variance from 40’ rear yard setback standard  
Public Hearing opened by Karen McMurtry. The notice was read into the record.  This is case 
number 156, notices were sent out on April 19, 2024, and the hearing date is April 30, 2024, to hear 
and transcribe testimony both for and against, written and verbal. Public Hearing on zoning appeal 
application on property #121-24-0033A2, variance from 40’ rear yard setback standard of Ephraim 
Zoning Code. 
 
The property is zoned Commercial Center. The proposal is for the construction of a 152-square-foot 
glass enclosure of the existing covered patio on the east side of the building. The new proposed work 
does not meet the 40' rear setback and requires a 4' variance. 
 

Chair McMurtry asked the committee members if they inspected the site. Some of the committee 
members knew the property in question, and some passed by and visually inspected the property in 
question.  

 



 Board of Appeals Minutes Page 5 
 

Statement by the Applicant 
         Taillon noted that the dining room at the Hillside is small for the number of guests. She is requesting 

a variance from the rear setback of the property to enclose the patio by constructing a glass wall and 
skylight. She would at least like to enlarge the dining room if the skylight is not approved. Enclosing 
the patio while removing the wall that separates the patio and the dining room doubles the size of the 
room. This addition does not conflict with neighboring properties, does not alter the basic nature of 
the site, does not harm public interests, and only requires one variance. The Hillside is a historic 
property that existed lawfully before the passage of the current zoning ordinance. Even though 
COVID is somewhat in the past, the current dining room is small when all the guests convene for 
breakfast. Increasing the space will increase the distance between individuals. 

 
Reading of the Staff Report 
The subject property, parcel #121-24-0033A2, is owned by Diane Taillon and is located at 9980 
Water Street. The property is zoned Commercial Center and is used as a hotel. 
 
Bristol in his notes stated that the proposal calls for a 152-square-foot addition on the E side of the 
structure that will enclose the existing covered patio with glass walls and alter the existing deck 
above.  
 
 A regular zoning permit cannot be issued because the new work is subject to the current setback and 
the 40' rear yard setback is not met.  
 
The applicant is requesting: 

• A 4’ Variance from 40’ rear yard setback minimum of the Ephraim Code of Ordinances. 
 

Correspondence: 
Bristol reported that there was correspondence received concerning this matter.  

    
         Sandy Van Sickle, 3035 Church Street, has no objection to the proposed glass enclosure of the 

existing covered patio or the 64-square-foot addition at the SE corner of the Hillside. She is in 
support of the 4' and 5' variance needed for the applicant to complete the two projects.  
 
Charles and Kitty Boutell, 9976 Moravia Street, have no objection to the structural changes that 
the applicant requested. However, they do not think that the request for a skylight should be 
accepted. Skylights are for Airports, not for an area like Ephraim. Their concern is that the skylights 
will take away the night's beauty. If this request is permitted, they are concerned that over time other 
people will be asking for skylights. Ephraim is a unique beauty compared to the rest of Door County. 
They asked the committee not to mess it up.  
 
Dorothy Schueffner, 9976 Moravia Street, has no objection to the project in general. However, she 
is wondering what the impact of evening lights from the new enclosure with all the glass and very 
large skylight might be for the residents at Anderson Condos. Schueffner is suggesting Diane Taillon 
might address her plans for window treatments and/or louvered skylights if lights will be on after 
dark. 
 
Paul and Colleen Mayer, 9976 Moravia, owners of the condo at Anderson House Condominiums 
located directly East behind the Hillside have a concern about the effect of the large skylight on their 
view after dark. It would be nice to limit the amount of light coming through the skylight after dark. 
Hopefully, the hedge will remain along Moravia Street after the retaining wall reinforcement is done. 



 Board of Appeals Minutes Page 6 
 

It is great that the Hillside is planning to update the East side of their building. The Mayers are 
assuming that the design fits into the historical district feel. 
 
Julie and Jim Chosy, 9976 Moravia, owners of the condominium at Anderson House 
Condominiums have a concern with the large size of the skylight on the proposed new enclosure. 
Given its size, the top of the structure may be more of a glass roof as opposed to a skylight, and it 
appears very modern in contrast with the traditional exteriors of buildings in Ephraim. They are 
concerned about light being emitted from the large, raised glass roof at night, as well as the 
possibility of noise when it rains. It appears from the drawing of the proposed new enclosure that 
such a large glass roof may not be necessary as the space will have ample outdoor light from the wall 
of glass doors/windows shown in the picture. 

 
It was confirmed that there was no ex-parte communication. 

 
Witness or Visitor Statements:  
 

         Findings of Facts:  
         Sauter does not see an unnecessary hardship stated in the application. A small dining room is not an 

unnecessary hardship.  
 
 A short discussion about the former use of the current dining room. Bridenhagen noted that it used to 

be a bedroom in the past. 
 
 Bridenhagen does not see anything historic about the skylight, but he is shocked that the applicant 

cannot enclose what is currently there. Bridenhagen believes that the skylight will create 
substantially more watershed through the winter because the sun will get to that point last. Taillon 
said that she does not need the skylight but would like to expand the dining room. 

 
 McMurtry noted that only the enclosure can be approved without the skylight feature. 
   
 Sauter said that the unnecessary hardship might be present, but it is not in making a little bigger 

dining room. It is desire. Glenn agreed. Having a larger space to eat in does not seem like an 
unnecessary hardship. Having safe access to the staircase in case of fire would be more necessary, 
concluded Glenn.  

 
 Sauter recommended tabling this request. 

 
         Public Hearing Closed by Karen McMurtry. 
 

Conclusions of Law: Conclusions were not stated for this case. 
 
Unnecessary Hardship:  
 
Unique Physical Property Limitations:  
 

         No Harm to Public Interest:  
  
Sauter moved, Krist seconded to table the requested 4’ variance from the 40’ rear 
yard setback standard of the Ephraim code of ordinances for Diane Taillon at 9980 



 Board of Appeals Minutes Page 7 
 

Water Street as presented, Sauter aye, Bridenhagen aye, Glenn nay, McMurtry aye, 
Krist aye, and the motion carried 4:1. 

 
8. Adjournment 

McMurtry moved, Krist seconded to adjourn the Board of Appeals meeting at 4:45 PM, all 
ayes and the motion carried. 

 
    Recorded by,  
 
    Andrea Collak - Clerk/Treasurer 



 

 
 
Historic Preservation Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 – 6:30 PM 
 
Present: Ken Nelson-Chair, Kathy Pentler, Amy Russell, Cody Schreck 
Absent: Marilyn Cushing 
Staff: Brent Bristol- Administrator, Andrea Collak – Clerk/Treasurer  
Guests: Lars Topelmann BD Thorp, Colin Welford, Monique McClean, Michael McCutcheon, 
Kelsey Stone, Grace Held, Andrew Bartelt 
 
1. Call to order: The meeting was called to order by Ken Nelson – Chair at 6:30 PM.   
2. Quorum:  A quorum is present for this meeting.  
3. Changes in Agenda: Bristol stated that item #9 was withdrawn at the applicant’s request and is 

no longer an actionable item due to the applicant’s variance request being tabled at the Board of 
Appeal meeting this afternoon.  

4. Visitors’ comments: None 
5.   Previous minutes:  Minutes from 4/2/2024 

Schreck moved, Russell seconded to approve HPC minutes from April 2, 2024, as 
presented, all ayes, and the motion carried. 

 
6. Anatolia Cuisine – 9922 Water St – Sign 

         Bristol noted that this application is for the 24”x 24” sign on the front of the building. The sign 
has already been displayed on the building. A picture was provided to the committee members. 

 
  The applicant stated in the application that the material would be weatherproof PVC. The word 

“Anatolia” is written in a blue script font which can be seen as elegant and sophisticated. The 
curvy lines of the script font could also evoke the feeling of the Mediterranean Sea. The words 
“Mediterranean Cuisine” are written in a black sans serif font, which is a more common and 
simple font style.  

 
 The committee members had no issues with this sign application. 
 

Schreck moved, Pentler seconded to recommend the approval of the Sign application to the 
Plan Committee for Anatolia Cuisine at 9922 Water Street, Unit #7 as submitted, all ayes, 
and the motion carried. 

    
7. Lars Topelmann – 3060 Church St – Fence 

 Bristol said that the application is for a solid, picket style 4 feet 6 inches high, 29 feet long, and 16 
feet wide fence on the SW corner of 3060 Church Street, between their building and a neighbor’s 
building. This item is before the committee for design review purposes.  
 
Lars Topelmann would like to erect the proposed solid fence to define the parking area, add 
privacy, and block headlights from shining into neighbors’ windows. A short dry stack rock will 
also be added between the trees and the fence as a landscaping feature.   
 
Bristol noted that he received one piece of correspondence regarding this item. 
 

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM 
FOUNDED 1853 

 



 
Historic Preservation Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 
 

                 
 

Paul and Mandy Miller, 3064 Church Street, wrote in support of Lars and Monique’s 
application for a fence adjacent to their property. They feel the plans are in keeping with the 
Village’s overall esthetic and would enhance both properties. 

 
 The committee members had no issues with this application. 
 
Russell moved, Schreck seconded to recommend the approval of the Design Review 
application for the Fence application to the Plan Committee for Lars Topelmann at 3060 
Church Street as submitted, all ayes, and the motion carried. 

 
8. Ephraim Historical Foundation – 3060 Anderson Ln, 3081 Anderson Ln, 9988 Moravia St, 

9966 Moravia St - Signs 
Ephraim Historical Foundation (EHF) would like to replace the existing two-sided signs for 3060 
Anderson Lane (32”x 60”) at Southwest corner of property at site of current sign, 9988 Moravia 
Street (24”x34”) at West edge of the property at site of current sign and 9966 Moravia Street (24” 
x 34”) at West edge of the property at site of current sign and replace and move existing sign at 
3081 Anderson Lane. The material used will be carved, dimensional, and painted High-Density 
Urethane (HDU). The material is very durable and used in most modern outdoor signage projects. 
Bay & Lake Creative Workshop in Ephraim will use existing posts, reinforce them, and wrap them 
in new durable cedar. The size and the site placement of the signs will remain the same as the 
current, except for the Anderson Store sign, whose final location is yet to be determined. Bristol 
has no issues from a dimensional standpoint. 

 
A short discussion on the location of the Anderson sign. If the location changes from the site of the 
current location, the EHF will come before the committee for approval. The committee members 
had no issues with the proposed signs. 
 
Pentler moved, Russell seconded to recommend approval of the proposed Signs applications 
for Ephraim Historical Foundation at 3060 Anderson Lane, 3081 Anderson Lane, 9988 
Moravia Street, 9966 Moravia Street as submitted, all ayes, Schreck abstained, and the 
motion carried. 

 
9. Diane Taillon – 9980 Water St – Design Review – Deck addition and Porch Enclosure (first 

requiring variance from BOA) 
Bristol noted at the beginning of the meeting that the variance request was tabled at the Board of 
Appeal meeting that afternoon and thus will not be an actionable item at this meeting.  

   
10.  New Business for Next Meeting: Schreck commended the Village for moving the church's 

historic marker/monument. It looks nice. Russell agreed. 
 

11.  Adjournment  
Russell moved, Schreck seconded to adjourn the Historic Preservation Committee Meeting 
at 6:50 PM, all ayes, and the motion carried. 

 
Recorded by  
 
Andrea Collak- Clerk/Treasurer 



 

of the Village of Ephraim. 
 

 
Plan Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 – 7:00 PM 

 
Present: Michael McCutcheon-Chair, Andrew Bartelt, Grace Held, Monique McClean, Kenneth Nelson, 

BD Thorp  
Absent: Susie Samson 
Staff: Brent Bristol- Administrator, Andrea Collak – Clerk/Treasurer  
Guests: Lars Topelmann, Kelsey Stone, Scott Barnes, Julie Barnes, Sarah Anschutz, Cody Schreck, Elfi 

Johnson  
  
1. Call to order: The meeting was called to order by Michael McCutcheon-Chair at 7:00 PM.  
2.      Quorum:  A quorum is present for this meeting.  
3.      Approval of previous minutes 

Thorp moved, Nelson seconded to approve the Plan Committee Working Session meeting 
minutes from April 2, 2024, as presented, all ayes, and the motion carried. 

 
Thorp moved, Nelson seconded to approve the Plan Committee meeting minutes from April 2, 
2024, as presented, all ayes, and the motion carried. 

         
4.      Changes in Agenda: Bristol stated that item #9 was withdrawn at the applicant’s request and is no 

longer an actionable item due to the applicant’s variance request being tabled at the Board of Appeal 
meeting this afternoon. Also, item #14 is no longer an actionable item as it is still being discussed 
during the working session.   

 
5.      Visitors’ comments: None 
 
6.      Anatolia Cuisine – 9922 Water St – Sign 

 Bristol noted that this application is for the 24”x 24” sign on the front of the building. The sign has 
already been displayed on the building. A picture was provided to the committee members. Bristol 
has no issues with this application. 
 
The applicant in his application stated that the material would be weatherproof PVC. The word 
"Anatolia" is written in a blue script font which can be seen as elegant and sophisticated. The curvy 
lines of the script font could also evoke the feeling of the Mediterranean Sea. The words 
"Mediterranean Cuisine" are written in a black sans’ serif font, which is a more common and simple 
font style.  
 

 This item went before the Historic Preservation Committee (HPC) for design review purposes and 
HPC recommended approval of the colors and materials as submitted. 

 
The committee members had no issues with this application.  

 
Bartelt moved, McClean seconded to approve the Sign application for Anatolia Cuisine at 
9922 Water Street as submitted, all ayes, and the motion carried. 

 
 
 

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM 
FOUNDED 1853 

 



 
Plan Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 
Page 2 of 7 

 
 

                 
 

 
 7.   Lars Topelmann – 3060 Church St - Fence  
       Bristol said that the application is for a solid, picket style 4 feet 6 inches high, 29 feet long, and 16 feet 

wide fence on the SW corner of 3060 Church Street. This item is before the committee for design 
review purposes.  

 
 Lars Topelmann would like to erect the proposed solid fence to define the parking area and block 

headlights from shining into our neighbors’ windows. A short dry stack rock will also be added 
between the trees and the fence as a landscaping feature.   

         
 Bristol noted that he received one correspondence received regarding this item. 
 
 Paul and Mandy Miller, 3064 Church Street, wrote in support of Lars and Monique’s application 

for a fence adjacent to their property. They feel the plans are in keeping with the Village’s overall 
esthetic and would enhance both properties. 

 
 Nelson noted that HPC recommended the approval of this item based on design, material, and colors. 
  
        The committee members had no issues with this application. 
   

Thorp moved, Held seconded to approve the Fence application for Lars Topelmann at 3060 
Church Street as submitted, all ayes, McClean abstained, and the motion carried. 

 
8.   Ephraim Historical Foundation – 3060 Anderson Ln, 3081 Anderson Ln, 9988 Moravia St, 9966 

Moravia St –Signs  
 Ephraim Historical Foundation (EHF) would like to alter existing signs for 3060 Anderson Lane (32”x 

60”) at Southwest corner of property at site of current sign, 9988 Moravia Street (24”x34”) at West 
edge of the property at site of current sign and 9966 Moravia Street (24” x 34”) at West edge of the 
property at site of current sign and move existing sign at 3081 Anderson Lane. The material used will 
be carved, dimensional, and painted High-Density Urethane (HDU). The material is very durable and 
used in most modern outdoor signage projects. Bay & Lake Creative Workshop in Ephraim will use 
existing posts, reinforce them, and wrap them in new durable cedar. The size and the site placement of 
the signs will remain the same as the current, except for the Anderson Store sign, whose final location 
is yet to be determined. Bristol has no issues from a dimensional standpoint. 

 
Nelson noted that HPC recommended the approval of this item based on color, material, and existing 
location.  
 

        The committee members had no issues with this application. If a different location is determined for 
the Anderson Store sign by EHF, the item will come before the committee for approval.  

 
Thorp moved, McClean seconded to approve the Signs applications for Ephraim Historical 
Foundation at 3060 Anderson Lane, 3081 Anderson Lane, 9988 Moravia Street, and 3966 
Moravia Street contingent upon the sign at the Anderson Store will remain at the present 
location, all ayes, and the motion carried. 

 
 



 
Plan Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 
Page 3 of 7 

 
 

                 
 

 
  9.   Diane Taillon – 9980 Water St – Design Review – Deck Addition and Porch Enclosure (first 

requiring a variance from BOA) 
 The item was withdrawn at the applicant’s request. The applicant’s variance request was tabled at the 

Board of Appeal meeting this afternoon. 
 
  10.   Ephraim Business Council – Event – Fyr Bal 
 Kelsey Stone presented the committee with plans for the Fyr Bal public event on June 15, 2024. The 

event will take place in downtown Ephraim, Hwy 42. The road will be closed from Moravia Street to 
Cedar Street. There will be approximately 50 vendors, and 4-6 food/drink vendors. The public 
restroom facilities will be available behind the Village Hall, Harborside Park, and Visitor Information 
Center. Parking will be available at Green Gables & UUFDC on the North side and Ephraim/Gibraltar 
Airport on the South side. Barricades and signage will be placed around the Village. Two reserve 
deputies have been requested to help with traffic control. 

 
Nelson moved, McClean seconded to approve the FyrBal Event for the Ephraim 
Business Council on June 15, 2024, as presented, all ayes and the motion carried.  

 
  11.   Ephraim Business Council – Event – Evenings in Ephraim  
 Kelsey Stone presented the Plan committee with plans for the upcoming Evenings in Ephraim Concert 

Series. This public event will take place at the Harborside Park & Gazebo every Monday from June 17 
until August 26, 2024, from 6 PM-8 PM. Public restrooms will be available at Ephraim Village Hall. 
In years past, they have not had any issues with parking in Ephraim public parking areas. They will be 
using the signage in A-frame with black and white sign, with red Ephraim Business Council logo, to 
inform the public about the event. 

 
McClean moved, Nelson seconded to approve Evenings in Ephraim Event for the 
Ephraim Business Council from June 17, 2024, until August 26, 2024, as presented, all 
ayes and the motion carried.  

 
12. Ephraim Business Council - Event – Bondemarked 

 Kelsey Stone presented the Plan committee with plans for the upcoming Evenings in Ephraim – 
Bondemarked (Farmer’s Market in Norwegian). This public event will take place at the grass lots next 
to the Red Putter golf course every Monday from June 17 until August 26, 2024, from 3:30 PM to 6:30 
PM. Public restrooms will be available at the Red Putter. The car park will be located at the Red 
Putter. They will be using the yard signage at parking locations.  

  
Bartelt moved, McClean seconded to approve the Bondemarked Event for the Ephraim 
Business Council from June 17, 2024, until August 26, 2024, as presented, all ayes and 
the motion carried.  

 
13. David Hatch – Tax Parcels (121-01-12312744K1, 121-01-12312744K2) – Building Concept 

discussion  
 Bristol noted this item ties in with item #14 which is a discussion and consideration regarding 

ordinance relating to Multi-Family & 2-Family (Duplex). There is nothing additional submitted from 
Hatch at this point, but it all plays into the mentioned ordinance language still discussed during the 
working session meetings.  



 
Plan Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 
Page 4 of 7 

 
 

                 
 

  
14. Discussion and consideration regarding ordinance relating to Multi-Family & 2-Family (Duplex)  
       Bristol stated at the beginning of the meeting that this item is no longer actionable as it is still being 

discussed during the working sessions.   
 

15. Scott & Julie Barnes – Employee housing concept discussion 
 Scott and Julie Barns would like to ask the committee for their participation and partnership to help 

them in times of great need. Scott Barnes commended the fire departments for their professionalism 
and compassionate approach. The Barnes appreciate the support from the community. 

 
In the early hours of April 25th, 2024, they suffered a devastating fire at their 2854 Shannon Square 
property. They lost housing for two full residents and seven contracted J-1 employees. The first of 7 
arrives this Friday. Our immediate loss of housing puts both of our businesses, Ephraim Motel and 
Door County Rock and Gem, at great risk to be able to operate. Julie and Scott Barnes have been 
doing everything in their power since the fire, to formulate a plan to secure and provide needed 
housing for 7 seasonal J-1 employees for the 2024 season (May-October). 
 
They are proposing the solution of bringing onto their property mobile housing units with 8 beds. They 
are working with Secura to find appropriate units. This will be for the 2024 season and possibly 2025.  
 
This solution is only temporary and seasonal until such a time as Yellow House is rebuilt, and they 
have an occupancy permit. Services to the temporary housing will come from services currently at 
Yellow House. The sewer will connect directly to the sewer currently on the property. Whatever the 
solution, we must house people contracted to be housed by us, no later than June 10th, 2024. This area 
is not visible to the public and will be removed upon rebuilding the Yellow House. 

 
 Scott Barnes mentioned that he met with Kurt Van from Van’s Lumber who built their house, and he 

optimistically reassured him that he could have the Yellow House rebuilt for the 2025 season. They 
are actively trying to remedy this temporary housing situation.  

 
 Julie Barnes said that first they were looking at the mobile homes; 400 square feet and up. However, 

they are big and according to the state code they need to be put on a concrete slab and that is not 
economically feasible because it is not a permanent solution. They investigated tiny homes, and those 
units are available in Sturgeon Bay. They are brand new and very attractive from the outside and can 
have 3 beds per unit. They do not fall under the mobile home classification by 1 square foot, 399 sq. 
foot, and under, would be park model/RV. They also checked with their insurance company which 
cooperates with other agents that work with people who find themselves in difficult situations, very 
much like the FEMA project. They suggested housing people in Green Bay or Sturgeon Bay. Barnes 
said that option was not feasible; having foreign employees who might not speak English that far away 
from an employer as well as getting them back and forth to work. However, the company has tiny 
homes also available. Barnes is still waiting for pictures of those units so she can provide those to the 
committee for reference. Those units are also brand new and have two separate bedrooms with two 
beds in each bedroom. They will need two units to house their J-1 employees. The housing 
requirement for J-1 employers is to provide at least one bed for each student. These units need to be 
safe and comfortable. 

 
 The committee members were very sympathetic to the applicant’s situation.  



 
Plan Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 
Page 5 of 7 

 
 

                 
 

 
 Bartelt noted that there is nothing in the ordinance that addresses this situation. However, he is willing 

to pursue an exception.  
 
 Bristol said that the Plan Committee can weigh in to some level but how this item moves forward 

would be ultimately the Village Board's decision. The Plan Committee must work with Chapter 17, the 
zoning code. The applicant is looking at doing something that is on a chassis that is from the ordinance 
standpoint considered a mobile home and specifically excluded from the Village of Ephraim. Also, 
park models/camping is disallowed in the Village of Ephraim. The minimum square footage for a 
home is 1000 sq. feet. Bristol consulted several times with the Village attorney who suggested 
bringing this issue to the Village Board for discussion and consideration. Depending on what 
mechanism the Board, as the governing body of the Village, would use, it could be decided promptly. 
The Plan Committee cannot make an exception to the written rule. 

 
 McCutcheon, the Plan Committee Chair, and the Village Board President suggested having a 

special/emergency meeting of the Board as soon as possible before the next regular Board meeting. 
McCutcheon would like the board members to research the options with the attorney’s help and get 
this in motion. The Village must investigate how to do this but still protect the Village. The Board 
might be able to come up with the decision by the next scheduled Board meeting in May. 

 
 Scott Barnes thanked the committee as well as the Village Board. Barnes is not trying to set a 

precedent by choice nor force the Village into a hasty decision. Barnes believes that under hardship 
conditions things can happen. Barnes reassured the committee that there would be a building permit 
for the new house to be rebuilt.  

 
16. Discussion regarding EHF historic marker signage  
       Schreck presented the committee with a mockup of the proposed historical marker 18” x 24” at the last 

meeting. The finished height would be about 6 feet. Schreck is looking at any feedback from the 
committee. They are looking for permission to do this project on their private properties such as the 
Anderson Barn, Anderson Store, Pioneer School House, and Iverson House. There is an interested 
donor, Diane Taillon, who would like to help fund this project. Schreck would like to include the 
marker at her location, at the Hillside. The location needs to be clarified and included in the packet for 
the HPC and Plan Committee.  

 
 There are 21 structures/properties that are listed in the Village of Ephraim Zoning Code, plus German 
Road.  

 
  Some are owned by the Village of Ephraim: Aslag Anderson Warehouse, Ephraim Information 
Center, Village Hall, and Old Firehouse. 

 
  Some are owned by the Ephraim Historical Foundation: Andreas Iverson House, Thomas 
Goodletson Log Cabin, Anderson Family Barn, Aslag Anderson Store, and Pioneer Schoolhouse.  

 
  Some are owned by Private Individuals or Entity: Halvor Anderson House, Hillside Hotel, 
Abraham Oneson House, Aslag Anderson House, Moravian Church, Bethany Lutheran Church, Aslag 
Anderson Icehouse, Oscar Wilson’s Ice Cream Parlor, Evergreen Beach Hotel, Hansen’s General 
Store, Log Schoolhouse built by Rev. Andreas Iverson 



 
Plan Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 
Page 6 of 7 

 
 

                 
 

 
German Road as a historic road was added 11/6/95. 

  
 Of the 21 structures/properties deemed of historic importance by the Historic Preservation Committee 
(HPC) of the Village of Ephraim, 10 are listed on the National Register of Historic Places, 10 are 
listed on the State Register of Historic Places and 2 are eligible for both listings but had their 
nominations declined by the owners at the time. Of the 21 listed structures/properties, 5 are owned by 
the Ephraim Historical Foundation, 4 are owned by the Village of Ephraim, and 11 are owned by 
private individuals and entities.  

 
 Schreck noted at the HPC that at this point it is in the hands of the Plan Committee. Schreck is willing 
to provide the committees with any needed information to keep the project moving. 

 
Bristol noted that the committee needs to consider whether to call it a sign or a memorial plaque. If it is 
considered a memorial plaque, ordinance 17.19 Memorials could create the mechanism to do so and a 
place for it to live through ordinance modification. The HPC would play an important role in putting a 
recommendation onto the Plan Committee. However, when the ordinance was written it put a 
maximum size of a memorial plaque at a foot and a half square foot or have a single dimension of 18 
inches or less. EHF is asking for 2 feet by 18 inches. This would require some ordinance amendments 
to be passed from the HPC and Plan Committee onto the Village Board for consideration. It requires a 
process if it is considered a memorial.  
 
If it is a sign the message of it would have to be readable from the public way. If a business decides to 
put up a 4-square-foot memorial sign, they will have to reduce their commercial business signage by 
that. Bristol feels that it is a better fit as a memorial.   
  

  McCutcheon believes that this should only be limited to the Ephraim Historical Foundation properties 
and the signs should be smaller. McCutcheon does not want to see the Village with 21 big memorial 
marker signs with posts all over the place. It would distract from the simplicity of the Village. He 
believes the size of the historic marker sign should be smaller and attached to the building only for 
those who have an interest in reading it. Schreck said that if that is considered and the sign would not 
be on the pole the EHF might withdraw from this project. It is the purpose of the roadside marker to 
have a sign on the pole.  

 
McClean is open to the pole. There are roadside markers she saw around the country that are 
significantly bigger than what is being presented by EHF. However, she is up for discussion about the 
smaller size of the sign. 
 
Bartelt likes the proposed idea from the Ephraim Historical Foundation. He is not concerned about the 
pole or the size of the historic marker signage. It is not only identifying some of the buildings for 
drivers but also explaining a little history for pedestrians.  
 
Nelson has no issue with the posts but would like to see smaller signs. Because there are main signs 
located by the road for drivers to see that were approved this evening, Nelson would like to see these 
proposed historic markers with written information closer to the building, maybe on the building 
targeting pedestrians.  
 



 
Plan Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 
Page 7 of 7 

 
 

                 
 

 McCutcheon asked the applicant to research the options for smaller signs with and without the posts. 
 
Schreck added that he will provide the committees with the purpose statement for what these historic 
markers are supposed to do. 
  

17. New business for next meeting/next meeting date: The next meeting is Tuesday, May 28, 2024, at 
7:00 PM.   

 
18.    Adjournment:       

Nelson moved, Held seconded to adjourn the Plan Committee Meeting at 7:50 PM, all ayes, 
and the motion carried. 

 
Recorded by,  
 
Andrea Collak-Clerk/Treasurer 


	Board Minutes.pdf
	24-4-9 Closed Session Board Minutes
	24-4-9  Board Minutes
	24-5-7 Special Board Minutes
	VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM BOARD MEETING MINUTES


	Maintenance Supporting Docs.pdf
	Pole Building
	Public Works
	Maint Bldg.pdf
	Sheets
	A1.0 - FLOOR PLAN
	A2.0 - ELEVATIONS
	C1.0 - SITE PLAN

	GARAGE R1 - Sheet - A2-0 - ELEVATIONS.pdf
	Sheets
	A1.0 - FLOOR PLAN
	A2.0 - ELEVATIONS
	C1.0 - SITE PLAN


	GARAGE R1 - Sheet - C1-0 - SITE PLAN.pdf
	Sheets
	A1.0 - FLOOR PLAN
	A2.0 - ELEVATIONS
	C1.0 - SITE PLAN



	22-10-28 Cap Ad Hoc Keller Materials.pdf
	Village of Ephraim Public Works Garage Remodel Budget Revised 10-25-22
	C1.0 - SITE PLAN (R2)
	Sheets
	C1.0 - SITE PLAN


	A1.0 - FLOOR PLAN (R2)
	Sheets
	A1.0 - FLOOR PLAN
	A2.0 - ELEVATIONS
	A3.0 - SECTIONS
	C1.0 - SITE PLAN


	A2.0 - ELEVATIONS (R2)
	Sheets
	A1.0 - FLOOR PLAN
	A2.0 - ELEVATIONS
	A3.0 - SECTIONS
	C1.0 - SITE PLAN


	A3.0 - SECTIONS (R2)
	Sheets
	A1.0 - FLOOR PLAN
	A2.0 - ELEVATIONS
	A3.0 - SECTIONS
	C1.0 - SITE PLAN


	Village of Ephraim Public Works Garage (New) Budget Revised 10-25-22
	C1.0 CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN
	Sheets
	C1.0 - SITE PLAN


	A1.0 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	P10378-A REV 1-A2.0


	A2.0 ELEVATIONS
	Sheets and Views
	P10378-A REV 1-A3.0


	A3.0 MEZZANINE AND SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	P10378-A REV 1-A4.0


	Village of Ephraim Pole Building Addition Budget Revised 10-25-22 letter
	STORAGE BUILDING
	Sheets
	A2.0 - ELEVATIONS




	2024-Fee-Schedule-updated-5-7-24.pdf
	2024 Fee Schedule

	Committe Minutes.pdf
	24-4-18 Green Tier Ad Hoc Working Session Minutes
	24-5-7 pfu MINUTES
	VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM
	PHYSICAL FACILITIES & UTILITES MINUTES

	24-4-30 Plan Working Session Minutes.pdf
	VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM PLAN COMMITTEE
	WORKING SESSION MEETING MINUTES





